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IMPORTANT NOTICE

N

The board of directors (the “Board”), supervisory committee,
and the directors, supervisors and senior management officers of
the Company confirmed that there are no false representations,
misleading statements or material omissions in this interim
report and accept joint and several responsibilities for the
truthfulness, accuracy and completeness of the contents of
the report.

Eleven directors of the Company attended the Board meeting.
Independent non-executive director, Mr. Chen Fusheng could
not attend the Board meeting due to official duties and
he appointed independent non-executive director, Mr. Yang
Xiongsheng to vote on his behalf at the Board meeting.

The financial statements of the interim report of the Company
were unaudited, but were reviewed by the Audit Committee
of the Board of the Company.

Wang Xing, Chairman, Jin Xiaofeng, the person in charge
of accounting affairs, and Li Hongning, head of accounting
department (Accounting Supervisor), have declared that they
assured for the truthfulness and completeness of the financial
statements in the Interim Report.

Proposal on profit distribution or capitalization of capital reserve
to increase share capital for the reporting period approved by
the Board: No

Risk declaration for the forward-looking statements
None

Any appropriation of non-operating fund by the controlling
shareholder and its related parties
No

Any external guarantee provided not in compliance with the
required decision-making procedures?
No

Others
None
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In this report, unless the context otherwise

BAAEES
Definition

P N/NE= BN/ NS S 27N &
“The Company”, "Company”,
"Parent”

(OF 3 ¥
“Industry”

A% B

“Horizontal machine”

TE b g% ¥
"Floor-type machine”

ML &
“Machining center”

REFIEE B

“Gantry machine”

(REPE) e

“Company Law”

(FFHED) e

“Securities Law”

(&F5) |
“Accounting Law”
ToFL B ¥
“RMB”, “RMB'000” and

“RMB0’000"

au Y

L
requires, the following expressions have the |

THEBERARKERNDAERAE

Shenji Group Kunming Machine Tool Company Limited

TR 1T 3R
the machine tool industry in the PRC

EAS 82 TR

horizontal boring and milling machine tool

& R

floor-type boring and milling machine tool

BAZUAN A

horizontal products machining center

REFTEE TR

gantry boring and milling machine tool

(PEARKAFMBERRE)

the Company Law of the People’s Republic of China

(PEARAMBEESE)

the Securities Law of the People’s Republic of China

(PEARAMNBEGTE)

the Accounting Law of the People’'s Republic of China

ARETT - ARBTI AR®ET
RMB, RMB thousand and RMB ten thousand
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COMPANY PROFILE

COMPANY INFORMATION
Name of the Company (Chinese)
L SR B R AR R AR (D B PR A R)

Abbreviated Name of the Company (Chinese)
B R

Name of the Company (English)
SHENJI GROUP KUNMING MACHINE TOOL
COMPANY LIMITED

Abbreviated Name of the Company (English)
kmtcl

Legal Representative

Wang Xing

CONTACT PERSON AND CONTACT INFORMATION
Secretary to the Board (Company Secretary)

Name

Luo Tao

Correspondence address
23 Ciba Road, Kunming City, Yunnan Province

Telephone number
86-871-66166612

Facsimile number
86-871-66166288

E-mail

luotao@kmtcl.com.cn

Securities Affairs Representative
Name

Wang Bihui

Correspondence address
23 Ciba Road, Kunming City, Yunnan Province

Telephone number
86-871-66166623

Facsimile number
86-871-66166288

E-mail
wangbh@kmtcl.com.cn
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www.kmtcl.com.cn
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600806

. BASIC INFOR

Reglstered address

23 Ciba Road, Kunming Clty, Yunnan

Post code of registered address
650203

Business address
23 Ciba Road, Kunming City, Yunnan Province

Post code of business address
650203

Website
www.kmtcl.com.cn

E-mail
dsh@kmtcl.com.cn

PLACE OF
DOCUMENT INSPECTION

Designated newspapers for publishing
China Securities Daily, Shanghai Securities News and
Securities Times

Designated internet websites by CSRC for
publishing interim report
WWW.Ss€e.com.cn,

www.hkex.com.hk,

kmtcl.com.cn

Interim report available at
Office Building, 23 Ciba Road, Kunming City,
Yunnan Province

SHARE LISTING
Class of Shares

A Shares

Stock exchange
Shanghai Stock Exchange

Short Name

FE B IR

Stock Code
600806
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Stock exchange
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Short Name
Kunming Machine

Stock Code
0300

CHANGES IN REGISTRATION OF THE COMPANY
DURING THE REPORTING PERIOD

Date of registration
10 August 2011

Place of registration
Yunnan Province Administration for Industry and Commerce

Business registration number
530000400000458

Tax registration number
530111622602196

Organization code
62260219-6

Index of registered changes during the reporting period
Please refer to the basic information in 2011 Annual Report
for the first business registration of the Company
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SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING

FINANCIAL INDICATORS

INDICATORS

1. Principal accounting data

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING DATA AND FINANCIAL

Bz:or BE:ARK

Unit: RMB
rEED AREML LF
(1-68) LERH ] BB B R ( %)
For the six For the six
months ended months ended 30
TELHEE Principal accounting data 30 June 2015 June 2014 Change (%)
L1 N Operating income 481,448,407.49  388,434,348.75 23.95
HER LT A ARREFHE Net profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company -19,380,580.56 -38,537,064.21 -49.71
BER ETARARENMRIE Net profit (excluding extraordinary
EEIERNE A gains and losses) attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company -34,458,904.86 -46,645,051.91 -26.13
BERDHELNRERETFE Net cash flow from operating activities -101,758,886.45 -8,767,892.32 -1,060.59
AEERARL EF
AFEAR LEER BRI (%)
As at 30 June As at 31
2015  December 2014 Change (%)
FENEMARARREFEE Net assets attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company 1,066,176,993.26  1,085,557,573.82 -1.79
BEE Total assets 2,916,123,836.46  2,815,121,513.91 3.59
(D)X EpRIgE 2. Principal financial indicators
AHEH RREML EF
(1-6R) LERE () #1281 (%)
For the six For the six
months ended months ended 30
TERKER Principal financial indicator 30 June 2015 June 2014 Change (%)
ERERYEE T/ ]) Basic earnings per share (RMB/share) -0.0365 -0.0726 -49.73
wRERkE (T /) Diluted earnings per share (RMB/share) -0.0365 -0.0726 -49.73
R EEFHREENHER Basic earnings per share excluding
B (/) extraordinary gains and losses (RMB/share) -0.0649 -0.0878 -26.10
IMEFFEERGEE(%) Return on net assets (weighted average) (%) -1.80 3,02 EM.2@EHE
Increased by 1.22
percentage points
MG R B EOME  Return on net assets based on net profit -3.23 366 EM043EEDH

TR RERHE()

excluding extraordinary gains and losses
(weighted average) (%)

Increased by 0.43
percentage points
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DIFFERENCES BETWEEN ACCOUNTING DATA
UNDER DOMESTIC AND OVERSEAS ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS

- BRNEFHEATEHHEBER 11

@R NA#EA OApplicable  VNot applicable

= REMBERERNESE Ill. EXTRAORDINARY GAINS AND LOSSES AND
AMOUNTS
ViEAR OTER VApplicable [ONot applicable
By - ox KR ARK
Unit: RMB
&8
FEREMBRIER Extraordinary gains and losses Amount
M EERERT Disposal of non-current assets 260,863.51

A BB BT - 88
ARIEREELBR AN -
HORRKERT - B8

Government grants recognized through profit and
loss (excluding those having close relationship
with the Group’s operation and enjoyed in

BETHRNTEREZTIH

BT # BY R S

fixed amount or quantity according to
uniform national standard)

17,068,405.98

BEfEHEZ Gain on debt restructuring 1,324,338.08
f bl =78 2 INEOE fib & ZE 4N Other non-operating income and expenses
WAFIZ H besides items above -919,167.89
DERRER R Effect of minority interests 4,050.57
TSt 258 Effect of income tax -2,660,165.95
&t Total 15,078,324.30
g~ HAth IV. OTHERS
s None
m-EESHRE IV. DIRECTORS’ REPORT

— ESERARATAREHAEEBRN
RS

2015F L5 BRQERE 217X
EREBR  ERHEXSHEEREMF
BT ARMISFERLTRE  BREEBR
FHR EEBERBOTERUNARES A
AIAMSAPL  BIRABREMERE T
BT XRBEEE o BB E R
BEXMTF BHEB RALFEFERWK
AR - FRIEEH A RMETET SR
BRE  BERLERRBEFRYPEAN
E-ERAIARKEEHEENTERN
2 REAMSEH AR - BFAMRTE
BRTEAMERAGRTREY - RtbERMN
HERBRLHATE BE2RAHEER
R BRUERAEKRENEK - #ZKFRA
ERBHNAZEBARRKERETR -

THE BOARD’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS ON
THE OPERATION OF THE COMPANY DURING THE
REPORTING PERIOD

In the first half of 2015, the overall economy growth of
China slowed down, resulting in excess capacity in a number
of industries, and shrinking size and weaker profitability in
traditional manufacturing businesses. The lack of demand in the
machine tool market brought along fierce competitions in price.
Against the back drop of industry sluggishness, the Company
actively transformed itself into an industry service provider by
endeavoring to adjust the product structure, and adopting a
market-oriented approach. Focusing efforts on key customers
and main projects with development of new technology and
products, the Company achieved revenue growth in the first
half of 2015, and made breakthroughs in key contracts and
broadening market access, recording slight improvement from
the operating results of the corresponding period last year.
Nevertheless, currently, the main obstacles in the operating
activities of the Company are: a lack of momentum in the
later stage markets, unsatisfactory payment collection, year
on year decline in new contract numbers for products except
horizontal machining products, continued tight cash flows, and
heightened pressure in collecting receivables. The operating
results of the two subsidiaries of the Company, Kunming TOS,
and Xi'an Saier both decreased.

I -
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To address the above issues, in the second half %‘

Company will leverage key customers and the demonstration

effects of key projects to broaden market access under a point-
to-plane approach, and give full play to existing technology
research and development and advantages in production
support resources to explore new markets; plan financing
proposals to ease capital pressure by proactively leveraging
the strengths of various parties; step up the management
and control of various expenses to diversify income sources
and reduce expenditures; and adopt other countermeasures
to improve the position of the Company.

ANALYSIS OF PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

(1). Table of analysis of changes in relevant items of

financial statements

Bz or BE:ARK

Unit: RMB
BRY LRI EBRE EHEE%
Closing balance Closing balance at
EE Item at 30 June 2015 31 December 2014  Increase/decrease Change (%)
BHES Cash at bank and on hand 134,132,549.71 163,027,997.62 -28,895,447.91 -17.72
RN EE Bills receivable 28,790,188.10 65,234,659.97 -36,444,471.87 -55.87
JEURER 3 Accounts receivable 677,584,720.42 573,067,324.65 104,517,395.77 18.24
BRHE Prepayments 43,837,065.31 35,318,463.55 8,518,601.76 24.12
BE Inventories 912,857,582.08 896,675,761.84 16,181,820.24 1.80
HyR®EE Other current assets 23,000,000.00 1,724,042.72 21,275,957.28 1,234.07
ERIE Construction in progress 310,326,841.12 268,623,936.12 41,702,905.00 15.52
EHIE Short-term borrowings 338,000,000.00 284,500,000.00 53,500,000.00 18.80
ERRE Bills payable 87,508,582.27 75,048,188.00 12,460,394.27 16.60
Bl A Advances from customers 183,948,914.78 229,755,546.36 -45,806,631.58 -19.94
FE (T B T % Employee benefits payable 10,840,078.54 12,709,724.16 -1,869,645.62 -14.71
R E Taxes payable 19,316,975.28 6,877,214.09 12,439,761.19 180.88
—ERE K Non-current liabilities due
EREEE within one year 220,403,988 44 19,747,105.78 200,656,882.66 1,016.13
RHIEE Long-term borrowings 124,724,136.15 200,000,000.00 -75,275,863.85 -37.64
RHEMNE Long-term payables 1,172,650.05 11,445,098.47 -10,272,448.42 -89.75
REEAB T &M Long-term employee
benefits payable 3,298,716.35 5,110,774.06 -1,812,057.71 -35.46
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RURZBERIREIERA/AHAHE
BFRL  YERTHARBDESH
TR BEsBRREEFAE
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1 FE MR TR ER BB P #TIE

FBNERFIEMRRNBRRART THIL
BIHEARFE  ZMHTE X
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HEMRnBEELINEER AT AREMNA
EHTEE2 3008 L EBMERATE

EETERENERSAMEERES
MEHBUNTERERE EXBE
GFEFEERSESTERERARREER
FEABLKAFAREE

RHESIEMRARAR T ERLES
BESWAR - EMRITEBER
B

ENEEENEE AT EEEST
2 BARTANLEZUE M

= .
N

MR FOR A = B2 F A AT HI TR WK
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ERREEMEBZRRASAHEE
AIBINE1S B RIBER B INAAER

—FRBHHERBRERMNEAR
HEBEARMERD -FRIHME
B BN P — A B A 45 4
ERIE

EHERBRLERAREEL —FA
B EARVEFRATEL

The decrease in cash at bank and on hand was due to
the effect of macroeconomy, current capital was tight
in the market as well as the recovery of receivables was
slow;

The decrease in bills receivable was due to a decrease
in settlement of trade receivables, and in order to
supplement the inadequate of working capital, portion
of bills receivable were discounting;

The increase in accounts receivable was attributable
to the broader scope and terms of customer credit to
strengthen sales, resulting in accounts receivable balance
increased;

The increase in prepayments was attributable to the
increased amount prepaid for tool magazine, machine,
and grating scale etc. imported parts in order to complete
the subsequent sales contracts;

Other non-current assets increase was due to the subsidiary
of the Company, Kunming TOS purchased RMB23 million
financial products;

Construction in progress increase was due to the continuing
construction of heavy machinery assembly plant, bar iron
flat form foundation of heavy plan etc. projects and the
arrival equipment enter into the installation and testing
phase;

Short-term borrowings increase was due to the increase of
short-term bank loans to lessen the shortage of working
capital;

Bills payable increase was due to the Issuance of bank
acceptance bills to pay for materials since shortage of
working capital in the current period;

Advances from customers decrease was due to previous
advances from customers realized sales in the current
period and the proportion of advances from customers
of new contracts was lower;

Taxes payable increase was due to operating income
increased this period resulting in VAT increase;

Non-current liabilities due within one year increase was
due to the increase of borrowings adjusting to long-term
borrowings due within one year and the secured loans
adjusting to long-term payables due within one year;

Long-term borrowings decrease was due to transferring
out borrowings due within one year;

0
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M. RHERNFUNDZESHBE R
—FRE e E AR

N. RHABRNBIFHIRSZESEEF
R —FA M RB THMEAZE

MNBTHMS -

M T
M. Long-term payables decrease was due to tra%-?fe in
secured loans due within one year;

N. Long-term employee benefits payable decrease was due
to transfer employee benefits payable within one year
to employee benefits payable.

MBERERRERERHBRESEH D (2). Table of analysis of changes in relevant items of

Vi income statement and cash flow statement
By T BE:ARK
Unit: RMB
BN LERHE ZEHHI(%)

As at 30 June As at 30 June

RBE Items 2015 2014 Change (%)
=ELON Operating income 481,448,407.49  388,434,348.75 23.95
EESIEN Operating costs 376,714,645.16  300,539,892.92 25.35
HEER Selling and distribution expenses 37,405,477.84 41,313,163.85 -9.46
EEEH General and administrative expenses 69,530,648.60 85,796,304.50 -18.96
HHER Financial expenses 16,637,206.98 5,837,229.79 185.02
BERERX Impairment losses 20,347,564.55 9,644,810.68 110.97
REWE Investment income -887,637.46 8,489,809.24 -110.46
EEIMNIA Non-operating income 18,696,586.29 874,873.96 2,037.06
LS Non-operating expenses 962,146.61 257,515.19 273.63
eI E R (Ui LAl - [E3) Income tax ("-" for credit) -3,411,534.52 -10,048,530.87 66.05
BEEDELENREREFE Net cash flow from operating activities -101,758,886.45 -8,767,892.32 -1,060.59
REFDHEENREREFE Net cash flow from investing activities -89,777,922.04 -26,972,709.03 -232.85
EEFHEANTEREFE Net cash flow from financing activities 147,625,660.28 90,735,143.53 62.70
e S R&D expenses 17,436,573.82 25,781,769.05 -32.37

A BRWAENRRARAREGRHREE
AR o DN SR S IR E O A HE S e 8
ENE  BEEAHARKEER LFR

H Tt

B, EEMAMERMAERTEE

C. HEERATRIZEEARARYIHE
MPIRMBEEE  2E8E%  ER
BRFEWEETERIES - FAE

e

A. The increase in operating income was attributable to a
year-on-year increase in the sales volume of machine
tools, driven by the Company’s proactive enhancement
of its product mix as well as strengthened marketing and
sales of machine tool products;

B.  Operating costs grew in line with the operating income
growth;

C. The decrease in selling and distribution expenses was
mainly attributable to higher cost effectiveness as a result
of effective management initiatives on its sales force,
including clearly defined duties, all-staff assessment and
budgeted costs;
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The decrease in general and administrative expenses
was attributable to strengthened cost management, as
well as a year-on-year decrease in R&D expenditures as
certain projects have been concluded or the preliminary
investments have been almost completed;

The increase in financial expenses was mainly attributable
to the increase in interest paid on borrowings due to
higher financing costs during the period;

The increase in impairment losses was attributable to
the increased accounts receivable and hence the higher
provision for bad debts during the period;

The decrease in investment income was attributable to
the fact that the investment income last year mainly
comprised other comprehensive income transferred from
capital reserve as a result of the inclusion of Kunming
TOS into the scope of consolidation on 15 May 2014;

The increase in non-operating income was attributable
to the government subsidies for the previous periods
that were carried forward to the current period as well
as recognition of the income from debt restructuring;

The increase in non-operating expenses was due to a
loss accrued for the litigation with Jilin Haoyu during
the period;

The decrease in income tax credit was mainly attributable
to a year-on-year decrease in deductible temporary
differences;

The year-on-year increase in net cash outflows from
operating activities was mainly attributable to a year-
on-year decrease in cash received from sale of goods,
coupled with a year-on-year increase in expenses relating
to operating activities to ensure delivery of orders on
hand as scheduled;

Net cash outflows from investing activities recorded a
year-on-year increase, mainly attributable to a year-on-
year increase in cost of construction in progress as well
as the investment of Kunming TOS in wealth management
products, compared with the additional RMB22.57 million
cash balance as a result of the inclusion of Kunming TOS
into the scope of consolidation in the same period last
year;

Net cash inflows from financing activities recorded a
year-on-year increase, mainly due to a year-on-year
increase in cash received from borrowings as a result
of the higher financial leverage to cater for insufficient
production capital arising from the limited settlement of
trade receivables during the period;

.
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R&D expenditures recorded a year-on-year decrea
most of expenditures for major special national proj
initiated previously had been expensed in previous
periods, while the focus of the work in the first half of
2015 was mainly on project acceptance, inspection and
audit procedures.

(3). Others

(1)

(2)

Progress of Business Plan

Currently, the domestic economy featuring structural
adjustments has a lower growth rate. The machine tool
industry is accordingly faced with a sluggish market,
declining profitability, and tight industry chain capital
without major highlights; the downstream heavy and
sophisticated products industries suffer from overcapacity,
and the market is squeezed by high-end import products;
the middle and small-sized ordinary products also face
decreased orders, deferred pick-ups, and intensified
competition. Based on the operating conditions of the
Company in the first half of 2015, it is recommended to
adjust the annual operating targets and corresponding
budgets of 2015 as follows: operating revenue of RMB1.05
billion; and net profit attributable to the parent company
of RMB9.53 million.

Analysis of Orders

As at 30 June 2015, the newly effective order contracts
amounted to 229 units, and the total amount of orders
was RMB399 million, among which orders for CNC
machine tools accounted for 94%. Orders of horizontal
product machining center took up 41% of the CNC
machine tools orders, constituting a major component
of the orders for the year, with a 240% increase YoY
in order amount, demonstrating the emerging market
competitiveness of such products in entertaining high-end
market demands. Floor-type boring machine tools, as one
of the most important contributors to the sales for the
past years, underperformed in the year, and accounted
for only 15% of the CNC machine tools orders, with
order amount decreasing 53% YoY. After the significant
growth in 2014, gantry boring and milling machine tools
underperformed in the year and the orders accounted for
only 5% of the CNC machine tools orders, representing
a decrease of 84% YoY. Orders of digital horizontal
machine tools accounted for 6% of the total orders,
representing a 61% decrease YoY, which was mainly
due to the acceleration in the upgrade of the market
demand structure: With increase in demand for middle
to high end products, and plummet in the demand for
low-end products, the order number of CNC machine
tools recorded significant growth as compared to that of
digital machine tools in the first half of this year.

Glis—
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2. SEGMENT, PRODUCT AND REGIONAL OPERATION
(1). Analysis of principal activities by products

Bfy T BE:ARK
Unit: RMB
TEERATERR Analysis of principal activities by segments

EEQAL EERAL ik
EXHA BEAAR  ENE(%) LFRE(%) LFEH(%) L 1(%)

Percentage Percentage
change in  change in Percentage
Operating Operating Gross profit ~ operating  operating change in gross
VRN Business segments income cost margin (%) income (%) cost (%) profit margin (%)
B Machine tools 420,371,592.65 325,217,992.95 22.64 2401 2316 EMOSEAAH
increased by 0.5
percentage points
HEZE IR Turbo machines 61,076,814.84 51,496,652.21 15.69 23.52 4105 EP052EENH

decreased by 10.52
percentage points

IRERIERER Analysis of principal activities by products
EEUWAL  EEAAL EYilkdi7
ELON BERR  ERIR(%) LFEHE(%) LFEEH(%) LEH(%)

change in  change in

Operating Operating Gross profit ~ operating  operating change in gross
PER Products income cost margin (%) income (%) cost (%) profit margin (%)
AR 42 R Horizontal boring and milling  58,441,025.65  43,397,238.07 25.74 -25.04 4161 EM0TEESH
machine tools increased by 21.07
percentage points
Ei A HER Floor-type boring and milling  79,175,213.67  56,450,894.80 28.70 -41.65 4546 EN498HENE
machine tools increased by 4.98
percentage points
EPRERRK Gantry boring and milling 82,123,931.63 60,667,709.15 26.13 236.55 197.83 E9.61HE S &
machine tools increased by 9.61
percentage points
BaASER Table-type boring and milling  87,775,897.46  75,679,812.47 13.78 72.62 85.21 H5.86EB D E
machine tools decreased by 5.86
percentage points
B\ AL Horizontal products 48,534,864.76  41,406,467.43 14.69 150.28 37594 FHAA04EBNE
machining center decreased by 40.4
percentage points
SEHER Jig boring machine 10,776,068.38  3,220,512.81 70.11 100 100 E070.11EFHE
increased by 70.11
percentage points
=0 Others 114,621,405.94  95,892,010.43 16.34 43.01 8166 HA17.80HENE
decreased by 17.08
percentage points
At Total 481,448,407.49 376,714,645.16 2175 34.58 3254 BM2EEDE

increased by 1.21
percentage points

I
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2. FEEBHRANEHER

(2). Changes in costs of principal activities

By - Fr HBE: ARE

Unit: RMB’000
rH  BEEA% LERS  BRLA% BEEE%

As at 30  Proportion As at 30  Proportion Change
5 H Item June 2015 (%) June 2014 (%) (%)
B Raw materials 241,600.68 64.13  186,665.22 62.11 29.43
BEEAL Direct labor costs 41,903.93 o112 20,537.88 6.83 104.03
HERIBENE Benefits expenses 12,087.67 B 17,303.21 5%.6 -30.14
B Manufacturing costs 72,161.95 19.16 62,273.76 20.72 15.88
SMBINTE External processing expenses 8,960.41 2.38 13,759.82 4.58 -34.88
B Total 376,714.65 100.00  300,539.89 100.00 25.35
it Note:

AR EHEER AR L FREIEINT76,174.76
For #iEAE2535% c M ETERAR :
1 BEWAR EFRAEM23.95% @ & %
BABEERE 2180 - 2« RS RBLEE T
SRNTE  WRIMBIIRE - AR
T REEINTEEATKR -

(Z)ROEFHDH
1. EmRiEZ

MERREREBEEMNAERNEAN
i - EEDRBEREARMERM
MZHE - ERB AT B2
R BERAARRRENM A AT F
BMeERBIFER - UAFREREA
o REBRERAT - AHEHIEEA
T BARBFIATHERSELER
SR BE AL KRG - T
Fie - PE - B EXEBAEN
= 7K S Bl B B B 3 58 4 B Bkl
AT BEFED  WRARIRTTAIFEE
INFBE - RATAREZRNERS
JE B - IR IR R N 5T = AR E HE
B MABXTHBERSE BEE
IRERAHNRERATRML  BEA
RIABEENEE - BE - BEAR
& NABERABERIF - Al
EMMBERRBAIR - TEIRA
BAip - —RWEmR - BRI RO
Fh e

During the reporting period, the operating costs increased
RMB76,174,760 or 25.35%. The reasons for the increase were: 1)
operating income increased 23.95% as compared with the same
period of last year and the operating costs increased accordingly.
2) affected by the macro economy downturn, the scale of external
processing was reduced and turns to internal processing, thus, at
the same time, the labor costs increased.

ANALYSIS OF CORE COMPETITIVENESS
1. Technical advantages of products:

We are committed to seizing significant opportunities in
the national blueprint on strategic emerging industries to
embrace technological evolvement and market challenges
at home and abroad. A high-level technical team with
a balanced mix in age, education, title and specialty is
in place to sharpen our edge in technical professionals
and enhance our innovation capability, benefiting from
our emphasis on the people-oriented talent fostering and
introduction mechanism and model with an aim to build
a stable and strengthened technical team by creating a
sound workplace with conducive conditions for talents to
demonstrate themselves and grow through career, practice
and mechanism incentives. With a long-range strategic
vision in its development, the Company is stepping up
its efforts in establishing and improving its intellectual
property systems, providing incentives for developing
independent intellectual property and fostering the
building a quality intellectual property team to improve
the Company’s capabilities in origination, management,
implementation and protection of intellectual property.
Through the positive interaction between intellectual
property and innovation, the Company forges top-
notch technologies and products to strengthen its core
competitiveness.
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HEMZHE  REMEE AN
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e ) #= .
BEREES

[BlRE  BEARAA BRI EEE
BB ETEEIR - REEETEXR
BEEREBEIER  THM-uRYBER
BAZUIN T AR O ~ BB S EAZU N T A D
RaIF¥Ee - SESUEKR - 8ux
ZE R AR ERE AR TS
ot - REEAE T BK863F 1A
B : MEBEAT TIES IS
AT ATHEE = RS B IR 4%
ERIEHBEIITAE R ERRE - 17
TR E mEE T L2 E R R K
T BRIt R KE - REMTE
EH - AKBEMNBATERMNILE
HEEE  BBSHEEFLIAR  E—
FRATRAFNBEREKTE 5
TEGNMSBRET -

Platform advantages:

As a state-level enterprise technology centre, the Company
is advantageously positioned in the precision machine
tool segment to better play its role in promoting the
strengthening of its technological innovation and boosting
of its product research, development and competitiveness
for achieving sustainable growth. Addressing market
competition with product mix improvement and growth
model upgrading as drivers for innovation, the Company
has made breakthroughs and grasped a range of cutting-
edge universal technologies by undertaking key national,
provincial and ministerial projects through methods such
as origination, re-innovation and integration. Upgrading
existing products and developing new products through
the use of innovative technologies have led to significant
enhancement in independent innovation and market
competitiveness.

Precision manufacturing advantages:

The motto of “to take innovation as the priority, quality
as the foundation and precision as the soul” is the best
footnote to the spirit of Kunji. The national special
key technological projects undertaken by the Company
include: THM-pu series precision horizontal machining
centre, precision vertical and horizontal machining centre
technological innovation platform, high-end CNC machine
tools, CNC systems, and key standards and test platform
for functional components. We have also participated in
the national “863 Technology Development Projects”,
such as performance testing standards and promotion
of box-type precision machine tools, and key technology
development and exemplary application of high-speed
precision CNC machine tools for green manufacturing. The
precision of many of the products developed by us have
reached or approximated advanced world-class standards,
allowing high-speed and high-precision machining under
the heavy-duty and high-torque conditions. Through
participating in such projects, the Company has further
enhanced the precision manufacturing standards and
market competitiveness of its products.

.
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(1). External

2).

(3).

i PN -
Equity Investment A

(1) Investment in securi.tie.'s :

ClApplicable VNot applicable

(2) Holding shares in other listed companies:

CJApplicable +/Not applicable

(3) Holding shares in financial enterprises
(Applicable +/Not applicable

Entrusted investment of non-financial entities and

investment in derivatives

(1) Entrusted investment

CApplicable +/Not applicable

(2) Entrusted loan
OApplicable +/Not applicable

(3) Other wealth management and derivatives
investment

OApplicable +/Not applicable

Use of proceeds from raised fund
(1) the overall use of proceeds from raised fund

OApplicable +/Not applicable

(2) committed projects of raised fund

OApplicable +/Not applicable

(3) changed projects of raised fund
OApplicable +/Not applicable

(4) Others
No
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Unit: RMB’000

TEERARS EfER BERR EBWA RAE
Registered Business
Name Business nature Main products and services capital Assets scale income  Net profit
BLRIABERERKER REX fBRRET RBE 50,000 319,791 61,077 -4,595
BRAT
Xi'an Ser Turbo Machinery manufacturing  Energy-saving compressor rotor
Manufacturing Co., Ltd. and complete machine
("Xi'an Ser")
AZhRRENETRAR REX RERDEEZRE 60,000 132,412 33,482 -3.889
BRAF
Xi'an Ruite Laser Prototyping manufacturing  Laser prototyping machine
Manufacturing & Engineering
Research Co., Ltd.
("Xi'an Ruite”)
RREHRAERAT REX % Rit AEMBERE  5,000(ET) 124,740 11,006 2,417
BIRAYEmREH
Kunming TOS Machine Tool manufacturing ~ Development, design, 5,000 (Euro)
Manufacturing Co., Ltd. production and sales of
("Kunming TOS") self-produced machine
tool series products
and accessories
ERRBBARBERAT REX R REAORE - ReT M 3,000 3,155 - -
&
Kunming Kunji General manufacturing ~ Development, design,

Machine Co., Ltd.

5. FEEELIEAIFNR
@R VTEm

production and sales of
self-produced machine
tool series products
and accessories

(5). Use of proceeds from non-raised fund

ClApplicable VNot applicable

.
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PROPOSAL ON PROFIT DISTRIBUTION

CAPITALIZATION OF CAPITAL RESERVE TO INCRE

SHARE CAPITAL

Implementation or Adjustment of Profit Distribution
Proposal for the Reporting Period

No
Semi-annual profit distribution proposal, proposal

of capitalization of capital reserve to increase share
capital

None

OTHER DISCLOSURES

Expectation of a possible loss or substantial changes
in aggregate net profit from the beginning of the
year to the end of next reporting period over the
same period, and explanations of reasons therefore

OApplicable VNot applicable

Explanation of the Board on the “Non-Standard
Audit Report” Issued By The Auditor

OApplicable  VNot applicable

Other disclosures

None

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

Since there is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association, the Company did not have
any arrangement for the pre-emptive rights scheme during
the reporting period.

WARRANTS AND OTHERS

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries issued any
warrants, convertible securities, options or other securities
with similar rights, nor did any person exercise any rights as
stated above.

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES
OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any securities issued by the Company during
reporting period.
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IV. BANKLOANS, OVERDRAFT AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Details of bank loans, overdrafts and other borrowings as at 30
June 2015 are set out in the notes to the financial statements.

MAJOR LITIGATION, ARBITRATION AND MATTERS
COMMONLY QUESTIONED BY MEDIA

VApplicable [ONot applicable

Major litigation, arbitration and matters commonly
questioned by media has disclosed in the
announcement without subsequent progress

No

Major litigation, arbitration did not disclosed in
the announcement or with subsequent progress

VApplicable [ONot applicable

(1) The Company and its distributor Beijing Hanhai Hongzheng
Machinery Co., Ltd. (“Beijing Hanhai”) signed a Machine
Tool Sales Contract in August 2011, and the Company
signed a Manufacturer Authorization Letter authorizing
Beijing Hanhai to participate in a tender exercise conducted
by Jilin Haoyu Electrical Co., Ltd. (“Jilin Haoyu") using
the tool machine, and the Company undertook to assume
responsibility for quality assurance of the tool machine.
Subsequent to being awarded the tender, Beijing Hanhai
signed a Machine Tool Sales Contract with the end-user,
Jilin Haoyu. lJilin Haoyu instituted legal proceedings in
November 2013 whereby Beijing Hanhai and the Company
was named the 1st and 2nd defendants, respectively. Jilin
Haoyu considered that Beijing Hanhai and the Company
were unable to resolve product quality issues effectively
within the product warranty period, and requested that
the product be returned and the amount of RMB11.7325
million paid to Beijing Hanhai be refunded, and liquidated
damages of RMB1.235 million be paid; and at the same
time requested that the Company assume joint and several
liabilities for payment. The Company pointed out in its
defence at the trial of first instance that the Company
had performed its quality assurance obligations, and that
in accordance with the confirmed Service Invoice and
Work Completion Invoice for the maintenance service
of the Company, it could basically be confirmed that
the tool machine under dispute had been functioning
normally. Therefore, the Company did not commit any
act in breach of the contract and should not assume joint
and several liabilities. On 24 July 2014, as requested by
the plaintiff, the court commissioned the identification
organization to identify the machine. On 18 December
2014, identification organization issued a report that the
main entrusted identified issues of the machine did not
have the identification conditions.

R
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b WELKEEERBEKREGE
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ERmHRRARZERREEE(2015)
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2015F K AT AR AR & X 8
A A EF17,922,340.305C ¢ A A
1,317,961.397C : WAERFEFAE
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Recently, the Company received a civil judgment fro

Intermediate People’s Court of Jilin City, Jilin Province

that:

a. the Purchase Contract on TK6926 CNC Floor-type
Boring and Milling Machine Tool between Jilin Haoyu
Electrical Co., Ltd. (the plaintiff) and Beijing Hanhai
Hongzheng Machinery Co., Ltd. (the defendant) be
discharged; the Technical Services Agreement on
TK6926 CNC Floor-type Boring and Milling Machine
Tool between Jilin Haoyu Electrical Co., Ltd. (the
plaintiff) and Shenji Group Kunming Machine Tool
Co., Ltd. (the defendant) be discharged;

b.  within ten days after the judgment comes into force,
Shenji Group Kunming Machine Tool Co., Ltd. (the
defendant) shall return to Jilin Haoyu Electrical Co.,
Ltd. (the plaintiff) the consideration of the contract
of RMB11,732,500, together with a payment of
RMB617,500 as liquidated damages;

c. upon fulfilment of the payment obligations as
determined in paragraph b above, Shenji Group
Kunming Machine Tool Co., Ltd. (the defendant)
may at its own cost fetch the TK6926 CNC floor-
type boring and milling machine tool deposited at
Jilin Haoyu Electrical Co., Ltd. (the plaintiff);

The costs of action of RMB99,600 and authentication
fee of RMB148,000, RMB247,600 in total, shall be borne
by Shenji Group Kunming Machine Tool Co., Ltd. (the
defendant).

After receiving the judgment and duly consulting its
lawyer, the Company believed that the facts identified
in the first instance judgment went against the opinion
of authentication. Accordingly, the Company has filed
an appeal to the Higher People’s Court of Jilin Province.

On 3 August 2015, the Company received a civil summons
from the Intermediate People’s Court of Kunming City,
Yunnan Province in relation to the dispute on the Sale
and Purchase Contact [(2015) Kun Min Su Chu Zi No.
35)], and appeared in court on 6 August 2015.

Through court mediation, the Company and Yuxi
Dunhuang Casting Materials Co., Ltd. reached the
following agreement in respect of the dispute on the Sale
and Purchase Contact: the Company shall as scheduled
pay to the counterparty RMB17,922,340.30 as payment
for goods and RMB1,317,961.39 as interest before the
end of 2015; and shall bear the costs of action of
RMB70,597.85 as charged with a discount of 50%.
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3.

VI.

VII.

VIII.

Matters Commonly Questioned By Media But
Did Not Disclosed In The Announcement Or With
Subsequent Progress

None

Other Explanations

None

BANKRUPTCY AND RESTRUCTURING RELATED
MATTERS

OApplicable VNot applicable

ASSETS TRANSACTIONS AND MERGER OF COMPANIES
OApplicable  VNot applicable

EQUITY INCENTIVES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
EFFECT

OApplicable VNot applicable

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS OF THE COMPANY
DURING THE REPORTING PERIOD

VJApplicable [ONot applicable

1. Kunming Kunji Group Co., Ltd. was authorized by the
People’s Government of Yunnan Province to succeed the
rights and obligations of the “Land Use Rights Rental
Agreement” and the “Premise Rental Agreement”
signed between the People’s Government of Yunnan
Province and the Company on 12 November 2001. On 31
January 2011, the Company entered into an agreement
for rental adjustment with Kunming Kunji Group Co.,
Ltd.. The annual rent of land use rights was adjusted to
RMB4,457,340.00, and the annual rent of premises was
adjusted to RMB792,660.00. The adjusted annual rent
was effective from 12 November 2010 to 11 November
2013. On 28 August 2014, the Company and Kunming
Kunji Group Co., Ltd. renewed the said land use rights
and premise rental agreements at unchanged rents for
the period from 12 November 2013 to 11 November
2016.

Under the agreement for rental adjustment above, the
Company incurred a rental totaling RMB5,250,000 in
respect of the land and premises leased from Kunming
Kunji Group Co., Ltd. for 2014.

-
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On 4 August 2014, the Company entered into

Master Purchase Agreement with Yunnan CY Group

Company Limited (“Yunnan CY Group”) regarding the sale
of machine tool parts; 2) the Master Supply Agreement
with Yunnan CY Group Jinhui Coating Factory (“Jinhui”)
regarding the purchase of packaging materials for lathes;
3) the Master Supply Agreement with Shenyang Machine
Tool Holding Company Limited regarding the purchase of
vertical lathes, radial drilling lathes and casting products
for VMC series; and 4) the Master Purchase Agreement
with Shenyang Machine Tool Holding Company Limited
("Shenyang”) regarding the sale of parts for VMC series
to the counterparty on an ongoing basis respectively.
The term of the agreements was effective from the
date approved at the general meeting to 31 December
2016 (the Framework Agreement signed with Shenyang
Machine Tool Holding Company Limited is also subject
to the approval at its general meeting) and the annual
caps of purchasing are set out as follows:

(Y ARBET
Unit: RMB0’000

=P HER

ERBK SRRE R nERH L
Purchase

Yunnan CY from Sale to
L UNE Related party Group Jinhui  Shenyang  Shenyang Total
B 1F2014F12A318 As at 31 December 2014 70 600 1,000 1,200 2,870
12015128318 As at 31 December 2015 70 600 1,000 1,200 2,870
#2016 128318 As at 31 December 2016 70 600 1,000 1,200 2,870
&t Total 210 1,800 3,000 3,600 8,610

ARHEARRREEE THEREZER
EEARETRTZFRARAZMEE
MHXEBEERAG(EHE: BEYE
PENERE CABIRORE)) - (R
HREER RS CHEESR) -
HE®mBEA: 10,465.96F 7 K -
HEYERAIREZELEMSE A

RE AEREERE  BHHE - £%8
ETﬁ%Péﬁ CREK ac F—FfE
989,150.00 i b E-_FH & &E
—EEW FEFEIEIE10% Bl £
FFH4E 1 1,088,065.007T ° F=F7
% :1,196,871.007C ° c * BT
i B34 B20119F1A18 £2013
F12A318

ARABR2014FE1A 1B EEFHE
MEFITHeARRE  FHoHE
B ARS537,219.607T ° i HR 8
20141 A1H R =2015F12831H
JJ:O

The Company entered into the leasing contract with
Yunnan State-owned Assets Property Management
Company Limited (“Property Management Co."”), which
is a subsidiary of the Company’s shareholder — Yunnan
Industrial Investment Holding Group Co., Ltd., to lease
the man-made cavern, originally used as the fleet
repair workshop and place of the Company. The total
leasing area is 10,465.96 square meters. The Property
Management Co. requested to adjust the rental referring
to the fair market value. After negotiation, the following
terms have been achieved: a. the rental of the first year
will be RMB989,150; b. the rental of the next year will
be increased by 10% based on that of the previous year,
i.e. the rental of the second year will be RMB1,088,065
and the rental of the third year will be RMB1,196,871;
c. the rental is effective for a period of three years from
1 January 2011 to 31 December 2013.

On 1 January 2014, the Company entered into
an agreement for rental adjustment with Property
Management Co., pursuant to which the annual rent
was adjusted to RMB537,219.60 for the period from 1
January 2014 to 31 December 2015.
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4. ARAAELEEFEE_TAEE 4. At the 26th meeting of the seventh session of the Board

RENEE-ARGEZEZBBLA and the 1st meeting of the eighth session of the Board
7] B ANy e 38 HT A Rl E20144F - of the Company, the related transaction between the
2015 F HERKERBEANKREE Company and Tos Varnsdorf (a foreign related party)
Y- EXBE HERY  RBRMHEK during years 2014 and 2015 in relation to purchase of
R BERERGHECZAEE goods, receipt of services, sales of goods and provision
b HhEEIHE FIRANT of services was approved.

B : ARNEET
Unit: RMB0’000

E AR e
EE
Kunming
Machine
Tool and Tos =
) NG| Related party Varnsdorf Total
201458t Proposed in 2014 500.00 500.00
201585t Proposed in 2015 500.00 500.00
T EXERAREBTER X. MATERIAL CONTRACTS AND THEIR PERFORMANCE
1 EE AHE HEFHE 1. Escrow agency, contracting and lease matters
O@Em N EA (JApplicable  VNot applicable
2 ERIEXR 2. Guarantee
CEA N EA [JApplicable VNot applicable
3 EMEAEAHXEZ 3. Other material contracts
i None
T— AEBEBITER Xl. PERFORMANCE OF COMMITMENTS
VER OTER VApplicable [INot applicable

Bl ¢ cesseessreERAA 205 FHEE




(=) ETAR - FRS%ULEHRE ~ R 1.

BRERBEBRZFAEREHARGHE

Commitments of the Company, shareholders
holding over 5% shares of the Company, controlling

FmEMNANEAESE shareholder and beneficial controller made or
subsisting during the reporting period
NARRRET DRERR
REBE  RAA RERE  EHBARR  EOEAE
RRER 6 69 EENE RAR EAHR  BEET  BOWERRR T-Sitd
Specify Specify further
Date of Whether  reasons steps in case
commitment Istherea  dulyand  for failurein  of failure in
Background of Type of Commitment and fulfillment  timely fulfillmentin ~ fulfillment in
commitment  commitment making party Content of commitment duration  time limit  fulfilled time time
BhyRE b BRRR(SE) ERMGL $HINERL2EXGLIARAER ¥ a3 ®
HIGR EREMLNT BEREEINRENEUETARRE LN &a
S¥ERY  RRANRLAAAREERORANS
RESEBERNTS:  REBRREARMAR %
BRRNEFERNERTA  2AXHNEE LT
IBRRELE - BNERRA(E)BRAMRAD
RITATRBEEERAR (T HEEREAN
e TATSRASEA LHARL AREEH -
Commitment in ~ Other Shenyang It would provide full support to the business No Yes
relation to Machine  development of the Company in terms of technology,
share reform Tool (Group) husiness and resources and would consolidate the
Co., Ltd.  relevant resources and markets by leveraging on its

own unique strengths based on the principles and
models favorable to accelerating the growth of the
Company within two years after the completion

of the share transfer and share reform with a

view 1o developing Kunming Machine Tool as an
important platform for technological upgrade,
husiness expansion and sector growth to provide
comprehensive support and facilitate the sustainable
and healthy development of the Company. Currently,
Shenyang Machine Tool (Group) Co., Ltd. has
introduced production management officers to the
Company in order to facilitate the enhancement of
the production management capabilities and provide
convenience for the exports of the Company in terms
of market expansion.

T OBE - BREHMEHAER

ViER OTEB VApplicable

LINot applicable

Xil. APPOINTMENT AND REMOVAL OF AUDITORS

BT - MBS EH AN ER A

AN & R2015F8 108 A F M20154F
FREHBRRASEZBHB: BFEET
MESHMEBMEREBER)BRR
2015F ER|ETED - WIRESE 2R T HBM

2N
& e

EH BRSNS ERHA

/A

Explanation on appointment and dismissal of accounting firm

The resolution of changing to appoint Ruihua Certified Public
Accountants (Special General Partnership) as the auditor of
the Company for the year 2015 and authorizing the Board to
decide its remuneration was passed at the 2nd EGM of the
Company held on 10 August 2015.

Explanation on change appointment of accounting firm during
the audit period

None
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BB ETRETAERETESRRS
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ADRETATAMRENERER 2B

2B o

RAIBRIEBAREDE) (EHFEIA RS
HEEE LEESXIANBRAMRE
BYRREESNE  TH TS aREH
RERREE - ARNZEGEELRTE
TEREEENMBEREEREMAC LT AF
REERDWENR - SRABFAERFES
BTN T AT E MG AESE - K
SRIEKFRTERS -

TR HMEREHEIH A

(- E=EHEHEX Sttt iiksE
FEBENRRANZENTNHA

@A Yr@EA

(D) ESEHEEAMPEREEINRER
FENDNHA

@A Vr@EAa

XIII. PENALTIES ON THE COMPANY, ITS DIRECTORS,

XIv.

XV.

XV

SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT OFFICERS,
SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING OVER 5% SHARES OF
THE COMPANY, BENEFICIAL CONTROLLER AND
ACQUIRER, AND RECTIFICATION ISSUES

CApplicable VNot applicable

INFORMATION OF CONVERTIBLE BONDS
OApplicable  VNot applicable

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied with the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (“Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules issued by the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited with a view to enhancing the corporate governance
standard of the Company.

The Company has complied with the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code")
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules issued by the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited as the code for securities
transactions by the directors. Having made all enquiries, all
Directors and Supervisors of the Company confirm that all
Directors and Supervisors of the Company are in compliance
with the Mode Code and its own code on the standards for
securities transactions by directors.

The Company has established the modern enterprise system,
continued to improve the corporate governance and regulate
the operation of the Company pursuant to Company Law of the
PRC, Securities Law of the PRC and other relevant regulations
issued by the CSRC and Shanghai Stock Exchange. The systems
of the Company are substantially in compliance with the
requirements under the Standard of Corporate Governance
for PRC Listed Companies jointly issued by CSRC and National
Development and Reform Commission. In the future, the
Company will continue to improve and strengthen the internal
control system in the normal course of operation with a view
to enhancing the standard of corporate governance.

.OTHER SIGNIFICANT EVENTS

Analysis and explanation of the Board on the
reasons for and impacts of the changes in
accounting policies, accounting estimates and
auditing methods

OApplicable VNot applicable
Analysis and explanation of the Board on the

reasons for and impacts of corrections of material
accounting errors of prior periods

OApplicable VNot applicable
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ARARROVIFEE - NBEHREAS
HERB T B IGMEIEERIE
REGERBEREME —PFE—BERE
AESEBEHEEAR  BERNRER
BEREIEBH M ARS : 2015524
IDHBHEMENEEETSFINER
ERBRARAEGMEBITEREE
MEPR Byt R R B 55 — HASE — B ER
ERNREEHIEREIR ZHAES
A HIREBMEREIREAL 4638
T M RIBMEEREIR B 28,6428
TIREFR

LB RELARRF2015F3 A
31THBHEM2015FE1XERERE K
FERIE -

FEIERRIT L IF

202F FEZXNBER R E NG ER
BEAREETeMRBERTHHERSE
H ' 2013F5 8158 A FHERE &y
HERBRTHE BR(THZEES
EHAE) AEBRRMBEITFHS
FoARSEBH2PBITRETBIG
AREBSEINEE  ARABES
WRREBRITENR -

AR A B R2015%67 A8H A H iR
TETERXZEBEER T B4H

==
AR °

BEBRHEAIEL

1) BEAT2013FE128128 BH
2013 FEE = R BREASE
HoE@RB: RRATOETLEE
MEIRITEFER T REES
T HEBEMATARBEER
HEREHE -

2) 2015F2AMMBARIENEE
EEFLINGETZBBUBS
EIBEHEER+PHE L OIR
THEMREKREE -

3.

Others

(1)  Construction progress of Yanglin Industrial Base

(2)

(3)

The second EGM of 2011 of the Company approved
the resolution to start up the investment proposal of
construction of heavy casting workshop of the first
stage of phase Il of Yanglin CNC precision machine
tool manufacturing and heavy casting base. Since the
adjustment of the proposal, the project has not started
up. On 10 February 2015, the adjustment proposal was
passed at the 4th Board meeting of the 8th term of board
of directors of the Company. The original proposal was
adjusted as: from original investing RMB414,630,000
for 60,000 tons production capacity decreased to invest
RMB286,420,000 for 30,000 tons production capacity.

The above adjustment proposal has been approved by
the first extraordinary general meeting of the Company
held on 31 March, 2015.

Issue of medium-term notes

At the third extraordinary general meeting of 2012, it was
approved to authorize the board of directors to handle
matters on the issue of medium-term notes. On 15 May
2013, the Company amended the proposal of the issue
of medium-term notes, based on which the Medium-term
Notes Prospectus was finalized. The Company would issue,
after announcement, 5-year notes in two tranches with
an aggregate principal amount of no more than RMB500
million for the purposes of replenishing working capital
and repaying bank loans.

On 8 July 2015, the Company has submitted a withdrawal
application to the National Association of Financial Market
Institutional Investors.

Asset-backed loans

1) At the 2013 third extraordinary general meeting of
the Company on 12 December 2013, the Company
was approved to apply bank mortgage loans secured
by assets of RMB470 million, and the Board was
authorized to determine and deal with the specific
matters at its sole discretion.

2) At the 4th meeting of the eighth session of the
Board on 11 February 2015, the Company was
approved to apply to the Export-Import Bank of
China for mortgage loan secured by its assets in
Yanglin Base.
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VI.

l.
1.

(4)

Currently, the Company has reached the intent on a
loan of RMB320 million with the Export-Import Bank of
China. The loan is proposed to be secured mainly by the
project land and plants of the Company’s CNC heavy and
precision machine tool manufacturing and casting base
in Yanglin, as well as guarantees from related parties for
the shortfall. As approved recently by Yunnan Branch
of the Export-Import Bank of China, major terms of the
project loan include: total principal amount of loans is
RMB320 million; the term of loan is 8.5 years, including
a grace period of 2 years; and a prime interest rate for
the category of project loans will be granted to the
Company. Accordingly, the Company has completed the
related procedures with the Export-Import Bank of China
for the mortgage loan secured by assets of Yanglin Base.

On 8 July 2015, based on the responsibility of promoting
the stable and healthy development of the capital market,
Yunnan Industrial Investment Holding Group Company
Limited plans to increase its shareholding in the Company
within three months after the Company’s resumption
of trading and the increase in shareholding will not less
than 10% of its cumulative reduction shareholding in
the Company in six months.

CHANGESIN SHARE CAPITALAND SHAREHOLDERS

CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL

Changes In Share Capital

(1)

(2)

Table of changes in share capital of the Company

During the reporting period, the total number of shares
and share capital structure of the Company has not
changed.

Explanation On Changes In Share Capital

During the reporting period, no changes in the number
of selling restricted shares.

Changes in selling restricted shares

OApplicable VNot applicable
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- BRER

(—)RERAH :
B RERBRAEB(F)

Il. NUMBER OF SHAREHOLDERS AND SHARI

BY THEM

1. Number of Shareholders:

Total number of shareholders as at the end of the reporting

period:

B REMRRRERENE LR RAE(F)

As at the end of the reporting period, total number of preferred

shareholders with recovery voting rights:

(D)BUERERRA+ERR - AI+ER
BRR(NEREERERR)FRER
*®

48508 (E b : AMRA%EEA48390 @ HIRAXER118)

48,508 (including 48,390 holders of A
shares and 118 holders of H shares)

0

2. As at the end of the reporting period, top ten
shareholders or top ten holders with circulating
shares (or selling unrestricted shares) and their

shareholdings
By R
Unit: share
AT ERRERER
Shares held by top ten shareholders
KAERE
RRE®(28) LY REE tBI(%) FERAEE REME
Name of shareholders Total number Proportion (%) Number of selling Nature of
of shares held restricted Shares held shareholders
HKSCC NOMINEES LIMITED 134,068,769 25.24 0 %A
HKSCC NOMINEES LIMITED Nil- Unknown
EGRK(SE)ARELAT 133,222,774 25.08 0 BHEA
Shenyang Machine Tool (Group) Co., Ltd. Nil State-owned legal
person
SHATERENREBERELDT 32,218,94 607 0 BAEA
Yunnan Industrial Investment Holding Group Co. Ltd. Nil State-owned legal
person
CHAN KWOK TAI EDDIE 3,050,000 057 0 BHERA
CHAN KWOK TAI EDDIE Nil Foreign natural
person
i 1,597,325 030 0 BEREAA
Su Xiaojian Nil Domestic natural
person
B 1,373,300 0.26 0 BABAA
Li Jian Nil Domestic natural
person
CAI QINGSHAN 1,083,806 020 0 EHAsA
CAI QINGSHAN Nil Foreign natural
person
gz 1,030,181 0.19 0 BEREAA
Zhou Wei Nil Domestic natural
person
TEEARAERAR -RENREERFZVESRELES 885,565 0.17 0 BRFAFEA
Ping An Bank Co., Ltd. - Minsheng preferred equity securities investment fund Nil Domestic
non state-owned
legal person
RAEANE-RERT-RBEAR 861,276 0.16 0 RRFEBEA
i3 hE]
Circulating of capital wealth - Minsheng Bank - circulating capital Heng Rui Nil - Domestic
no. 2 asset management plan non state-owned
legal person
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AT &RRERIERRERER

Shares held by top ten holders with selling unrestricted shares

RR&®

Name of shareholders

BRERERN
RERNEE ROER
Number of selling
unrestricted shares held  Type of shares

HKSCC NOMINEES LIMITED

HKSCC NOMINEES LIMITED

BRI (SE)EREEAT

Shenyang Machine Tool (Group) Co., Ltd.
BE4TERARREBERALAT
Yunnan Industrial Investment Holding Group Co. Ltd.
CHAN KWOK TAI EDDIE

CHAN KWOK TAI EDDIE

R

Su Xiaojian

T

Li Jian

CAI QINGSHAN

CAI QINGSHAN

P&

Zhou Wei

FLBIRHNERAF-RENBEERZHNEIHFRERS
Ping An Bank Co., Ltd. - Minsheng preferred equity securities

investment fund

BBEELYE -RERT-BBEAEH2REEET RS

Circulating of capital wealth - Minsheng Bank - circulating

capital Heng Rui no. 2 asset management plan

3 B 3R R Bk R R = — BT B Y i B

) R BRI 2 B R T T B B B
WCEBARRRHEREDE S RBEE
PAEIRTEH —HTBA -

B BB 2 T BRI R201556A
30 - REPE(REZTERZHERETT
EHIDFCORIMAFETESFNRAES
BEATEBEAERE25R(2005FE5]))
BRE EMBRRZEREI REINFER
EZEEMRBEELZ N AFERE)
FI6MMIRHRE ARBALBEZEMAL
BEEARADEITRA10%HIA L -

134,068,769 I LMINER
Overseas listed foreign shares
133,222,774  ARBEZER
RMB ordinary shares
32218944  AREEREK
RMB ordinary shares
3,050,000 SN ETIMERR
QOverseas listed foreign shares
1597325  ARBELER
RMB ordinary shares
1373300 ARBLER
RMB ordinary shares
1,083,806  HZINETINERR
Overseas listed foreign shares
1,030,181  ARBELEKR
RMB ordinary shares
885,565 ~ARKEREK
RMB ordinary shares

861276 ARMEBER
RMB ordinary shares

Explanation of the connected relationship or acting in concert
relationship among the above shareholders

The Company was not notified of any connected relationship
or acting in concert relationship regulated by “Information
Disclosure Management Procedure to Changes of Shareholding
of Listed Company” among the above shareholders.

Other than the substantial shareholders disclosed above, as
at 30 June, 2015, there were no other shareholders whose
shareholdings exceeded the amount required to be disclosed
under Article 60 of “Administration of the Issuing and Trading
of Shares Provisional Regulations” of the PRC and Issue no.2
of “The Content and Format of Disclosure of Information of
the Listed Companies” (amended in 2005); and under Section
16(1) of the Securities and Futures Ordinance under the Hong
Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited, the Company was not
notified of any interests representing 10% or more of the
issued share capital of the Company.

.
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@A VT@EA

3.

holding 5% or more of the Company’s shares. They are
HKSCC Nominees Limited(hereinafter referred to as “HKSCC
Nominees Limited”), which holds the overseas listed foreign
shares; Shenyang Machine Tool (Group) Co., Ltd., which holds
the state-owned legal person shares; and Yunnan Industrial
Investment Holding Group Co., Ltd., which holds state-owned
legal person shares. All of the shares held by these shareholders
are not pledged, frozen, mortgaged, nor designated.

Notes:

(1). HKSCC Nominees Limited holds shares on behalf of clients.
The Company did not receive any notification that any holder
of H Shares held more than 10% in total share capital of the
Company.

(2). Save as disclosed above, the Directors were not notified by any
person (who is not a Director or a chief executive officer) who
owns the interest or short position in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company and shall be disclosed to the Company
in compliance with the requirements contained in Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of Securities and Future Ordinance (“SFO"),
or the interest or short position that shall be included in the
prescribed register in accordance with section 336 of SFO.

(3). Asat30June 2015, none of the Directors and the Supervisors
had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and/or debentures (as the case may be) of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which have been notified to the Company
and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to Division 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO, including interests or short positions
which the Directors or the Supervisors are taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO, or which are required
to be and are recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.

This issue was announced in accordance with the regulation
— Notice of Supervising the Shareholders of Listed Companies
Implementing the Rules on Lessening Terminated Selling
Restricted Shareholding issued by Shanghai Stock Exchange.

Strategic Investors or General Legal Persons Became
Top Ten Shareholders By Placing of New Shares

OApplicable  VNot applicable

SHAREHOLDERS AND BENEFICIAL CONTROLLERS
OApplicable  VNot applicable
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ZCREEE -EE SHAEBEAESH 1.
&

VEA OTEH

DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS, AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT OFFICERS

MOVEMENT IN SHAREHOLDING

Movement in shareholding of existing and resigned
directors, supervisors and senior management
officers during the reporting period

CApplicable  VNot applicable
Equity incentives granted to directors, supervisors

and senior management officers of the Company
during the reporting period

OApplicable VNot applicable
CHANGE OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR

MANAGEMENT OFFICERS DURING THE REPORTING
PERIOD

VApplicable [ONot applicable

it EENBY SEBEL SEERERE
Name Position Change Reasons for change
= AR FHRITES BE{E IERRA
Gao Minghui Non-executive director Resignation Job transfer
]2 B MBeE BB{E
Jin Xiaofeng Director, CFO Appointment
sRENE 548 BE{E
Zhang Zeshun CFO resignation
= HitbFi e Il. OTHER EXPLANATIONS
i None

-
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N> B SR VII.LFINANCIAL STATEMENTS

— BHHRE I. AUDITORS’' REPORT
ER VhEs OApplicable  VNot applicable
= BI®RE II. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M EEERER(RKEL) Consolidated Balance Sheet - Unaudited
20156 A30H At 30 June 2015
TEEN ARET
Unit: RMB
Wiz 201556 H30R 2014%12A31H
HE Item Note 30 June 2015 31 December 2014
REEE ! Current assets:
ERES Cash at bank and on hand AV 134,132,549.71 163,027,997.62
EZEE Bills receivable a-Vv-2 28,790,188.10 65,234,659.97
FEUBR X Accounts receivable A V3 677,584,720.42 573,067,324.65
BN RIE Prepayments a V-4 43,837,065.31 35,318,463.55
H b fE IR Other receivables AV-5 19,794,189.57 18,029,993.23
FE Inventories a-V-6 912,857,582.08 896,675,761.84
HEMREEE Other current assets A V7 23,000,000.00 1,724,042.72
FEBEES Total current assets 1,839,996,295.19  1,753,078,243.58
FRBEE : Non-current assets:
A ESHEE Available-for-sale financial assets AV-8 1,145,000.00 1,145,000.00
RERERE Long-term equity investments A~V-9 13,496,926.92 14,384,564.38
BTEEE Fixed assets AV 10 521,152,724.83 549,614,786.49
EEIR Construction in progress AV 310,326,841.12 268,623,936.12
B EE Intangible assets AVe12 137,344,058.78 140,625,241.11
EES Goodwill a V.13 7,296,277.00 7,296,277.00
REGHER Long-term deferred expenses AV 14 726,545.28 915,696.54
BILEFEHEE Deferred tax assets A V15 38,236,961.52 34,856,402.41
HMFERSDEE Other non-current assets A V16 46,402,205.82 44,581,366.28
EREBEESE Total non-current assets 1,076,127,541.27 1,062,043,270.33
BEEAGT Total assets 2,916,123,836.46  2,815,121,513.91
REAE ! Current liabilities:
SEGLEEA Short-term loans Z V17  338,000,000.00 284,500,000.00
PES Bills payable a V.18 87,508,582.27 75,048,188.00
FERT R Accounts payable A V19 519,059,949.95 503,704,466.15
TEU A Advances from customers AV 20 183,948,914.78 229,755,546.36
JRE<F B8 T %5 B Employee benefits payable A V21 10,840,078.54 12,709,724.16
ER & Taxes payable mA V22 19,316,975.28 6,877,214.09
JE SRS F Dividends payable a-Vv-23 135,898.49 135,898.49
HAERR Other payables A V24 121,155,099.67 144,228,412.53
—FERNEHRERB AR Non-current liabilities due
within one year a v 25 220,403,988.44 19,747,105.78
FEBEESE Total current liabilities 1,500,369,487.42  1,276,706,555.56
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AHEERER(RESEM) (&

Consolidated Balance Sheet - Unaudited (continued)

201596 A30H At 30 June 2015
TEE  ARMT
Unit: RMB
HiaE 20156 H30H 20145128318
EH Item Note 30 June 2015 31 December 2014
FRBEE : Non-current liabilities:
REIER Long-term loan a- V26 124,724,136.15 200,000,000.00
REBERR Long-term payables AH V27 1,172,650.05 11,445,098.47
= HAFE 1~ B T 5 B Long-term employee benefits payable a-Vv-28 3,298,716.35 5,110,774.06
ESEN NN Special payables AV 29 20,947,539.29 20,947,539.29
R AR Provisions A V30 7,715,678.19 8,811,020.12
EIE W Deferred income AV 31 111,799,503.95 121,303,008.63
ERBEBSET Total non-current liabilities 269,658,223.98 367,617,440.57
AL Total liabilities 1,770,027,711.40  1,644,323,996.13
R - Shareholders’ equity:
Fg A< Share capital AV 32 531,081,103.00 531,081,103.00
BEARRE Capital reserve A V33 19,765,031.17 19,765,031.17
BAHBRNTE Surplus reserve A V34 117,077,019.33 117,077,019.33
ROBFE Retained earnings A V35 398,253,839.76 417,634,420.32

BEREARBIRED A
LEBRER
BRREHER

BENRREZAS

TIENFEASEEFE 155 ANMBIRRM T R

BmRHARE D -

LR EIB SR E B N 2015FE8 A27 A EE =it

JfE °

EEREA B
TESHIFREA: 2RE
BEHBRAA FHUE

Total equity attributable to
shareholders of the Company
Minority interests

Total shareholders’ equity

Total liabilities and
shareholders’ equity

1,066,176,993.26
79,919,131.80

1,085,557,573.82
85,239,943.96

1,146,096,125.06

1,170,797,517.78

2,916,123,836.46

2,815,121,513.91

the Company on 27 August 2015.

(RAEE)

Legal representative of the Company:
The person in charge of accounting affairs: Jin Xiaofeng
The head of the accounting department:

Notes to financial statements set out on pages 45 to 155 form part
of these financial statements.

The financial statement was approved by the Board of Directors of

Wang Xing

Li Hongning

(Seal of the Company)

I -
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BEERER(KRERET)

Balance Sheet — Unaudited

201596 A30H As at 30 June 2015
BB ARKTT
Unit: RMB
Hist 20156 H30H 2014%F12H31H
HH Item Note 30 June 2015 31 December 2014
REEE : Current assets:
E¥Ee Cash at bank and on hand 116,037,011.17 121,630,513.96
MR Bills receivable 11,329,715.22 34,238,097.87
JE U BR 2N Accounts receivable +E XV 1 592,516,038.95 480,258,094.00
HEHIE Prepayments 32,721,616.77 27,403,859.44
R U5 B ) Dividends receivables 11,000,000.00 11,000,000.00
Hofth FE R Other receivables +E XV 2 24,911,731.19 24,243,433.72
7E Inventories 722,872,561.76 694,522,222.73
RBEEST Total current assets 1,511,388,675.06  1,393,296,221.72
FRBEE ! Non-current assets:
AtEESREE Available-for-sale financial assets
REORERE Long-term equity investments +#H XV-3 81,623,163.78 82,510,801.24
BEEE Fixed assets 482,798,278.45 508,007,021.93
TEITR Construction in progress 307,431,151.26 265,728,246.26
EREE Intangible assets 124,336,030.67 126,922,443.86
REFEER Long-term deferred expenses 704,886.28 884,035.54
EIEMEREE Deferred tax assets 26,755,652.90 23,655,654.95
HitbIERBEE Other non-current assets 46,402,205.82 44,581,366.28
kRBEESF Total non-current assets 1,070,051,369.16  1,052,289,570.06
BESG Total assets 2,581,440,044.22  2,445,585,791.78
TEBAE: Current liabilities:
SECIEEA Short-term loans 312,000,000.00 263,500,000.00
AES Bills payable 80,089,309.94 63,000,000.00
FERTER Accounts payable 395,601,868.87 387,551,083.95
8 Y hE Advances from customers 108,923,195.21 124,342,908.17
JE (ST BY T 3 BN Employee benefits payable 7,468,487.37 9,294,491.58
EXHRE Taxes payable 16,048,540.53 3,314,136.98
HABER R Other payables 123,350,374.79 144,934,488.09

—FRHHNERDRE

REBEEAT

Non-current liabilities due
within one year

Total current liabilities

220,403,988.44

19,747,105.78

1,263,885,765.15

1,015,684,214.55
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BEERER(CREHET) (&)

Balance Sheet — Unaudited (continued)

201596 A30H As at 30 June 2015
TEE  ARMT
Unit: RMB
20156 A30H 2014%12H31H
HH Item 30 June 2015 31 December 2014
FRBEE Non-current liabilities:
REIER Long-term loan 124,724,136.15 200,000,000.00
RHFEMNT Long-term payables 1,172,650.05 11,445,098.47
RGBT B Long-term employee benefits payable 3,298,716.35 5,110,774.06
ESEYINEN Special payables 20,947,539.29 20,947,539.29
EAEE Provisions 4,876,520.09 5,728,400.42
BTz Deferred income 111,559,503.95 121,063,008.63
kREBEESE Total non-current liabilities 266,579,065.88 364,294,820.87
EE&s Total liabilities 1,530,464,831.03 1,379,979,035.42
R - Shareholders’ equity:
f&% 7 Share capital 531,081,103.00 531,081,103.00
YN Capital reserve 27,303,321.72 27,303,321.72
BN Surplus reserve 117,077,019.33 117,077,019.33

RAEME

RREZSR

Retained earnings

Total shareholders’ equity

375,513,769.14

390,145,312.31

1,050,975,213.19

1,065,606,756.36

BEMRRESALT Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 2,581,440,044.22  2,445,585,791.78

TIE N EASEEF 155 MM GHMAWiT AZRE  Notes to financial statements set out on pages 45 to 155 form part
& HAKE S o of these financial statements.

BB ESREDN2015F8 27 EEE28  The financial statement was approved by the Board of Directors of

/E o the Company on 27 August 2015.

EEREA F ® Legal representative of the Company: Wang Xing
TEeHTIEFEEA: SHEE The person in charge of accounting affairs: Jin Xiaofeng
BERBAREA 418 The head of the accounting department:  Li Hongning

D
pal]
i
fo

(Seal of the Company)

- B eI




BHHFBER(KREE)
20154 1-6 A

Consolidated Income Statement - Unaudite%

For the six months ended 30 June 2015

A .8 '- !

EHEEN : ARET

Unit: RMB
16 A30R L6/ AHE
For the six months ended 30 June

~.

ﬁIEMH

N

>

—,

155 B M) B 5 SRR BT i R AN B

U M SR EER2015F8 27 HRES S 1]

>
ol

18 R

a
fo

i

Legal representative of the Company:
The person in charge of accounting affairs: Jin Xiaofeng
The head of the accounting department:

R Item Note 2015 2014
- BEWA I Operating income BV36 481,448,407.49 388,434,348.75
-1 I Less: Operating costs a3 376,714,645.16 300,539,892.92
K Business taxes and surcharges a3 4.187,655.39 3,995,822.29
HED Selling and distribution expenses V38 37,405,477.84 41,313,163.85
EEE General and administrative expenses fV39 69,530,648.60 85,796,304.50
aBE Financial expenses ZV40 16,637,206.98 5,837,229.79
ZE) Impairment losses ("-" for reversal) aV-41 20,347,564.55 9,644,810.68
TRE Add: Investment income (“-" for losses) Ay -887,637.46 8,489,809.24
A Including: income (*-" for losses) from investment
in associates and jointly controlled entities -887,637.46 951,518.69
IIl. - Operating profit (*-" for losses) -44,262,428.49 -50,203,066.04
Add: Non-operating income 43 18,696,586.29 874,873.96
Including: Gains from disposal of non-current assets 288,389.93 =
Less: Non-operating expenses i 962,146.61 257,515.19
Including: Losses from disposal of non-current assets 27,526.42 213,990.98
V. Profit before income tax (*-" for total losses) -26,527,988.81 -49,585,707.27
Less: Income tax expenses ("-" for credit)
AYS) -3,411,534.52 -10,048,530.87
FRBOFERN - HE3) V. Netprofit (" for losses) for the period 2311645429 39,537,176.40
Attributable to:
Shareholders of the Company ("-" for net losses) -19,380,580.56 -38,537,064.21
Minority interests -3,735,873.73 -1,000,112.19
VI.  Other comprehensive income, net of tax - -
Attributable to:
Shareholders of the Company - -
Other comprehensive income item that will not be
reclassified to profit or loss - -
HEEBENEMEANE Other comprehensive income item that may be
\ reclassified to profit or loss S S
B Attributable to:
Efoi Non-controlling interests - -
SAWFBE(FEEN-BEF) VI Total comprehensive income for the period
(" for losses) -23,116,454.29 -39,537,176.40
Attributable to shareholders of the Company
(*-" for total comprehensive losses) -19,380,580.56 -38,537,064.21
Attributable to minority interests
("-" for total comprehensive losses) -3,735,873.73 -1,000,112.19
(SREEN - 1HE3): VIIl. Earnings per share: (*-" for losses per share)
Wi Basic ("-" for losses per share)
(BRERI - 15 85]) AoV -0.0365 0.0726
Wi Diluted ("-" for losses per share)
SiREEM - JFEF) AV -0.0365 0.0726

Notes to financial statements set out on pages 45 to 155 form part
of these financial statements.

The financial statement was approved by the Board of Directors of
the Company on 27 August 2015.

Wang Xing

Li Hongning
(Seal of the Company)

Interim Report 2015 Shenji Group Kunming Machine Tool Company Limited




FE R (REFET)

Income Statement — Unaudited

20154F1-6 A For the six months ended 30 June 2015
TEEN  ARET
Unit: RMB
BIL6A30A 1L6fE A B
For the six months ended 30 June
i3 PN LH%ER
R Items Note 2015 2014
- BEUA 1. Operating income FE XV 4 410,647,378.51 320,628,187.18
B ERRA Less: Operating costs FE X/ 4 318,109,402.91 254,921,106.36
EERS RN Business taxes and surcharges 3,452,827.06 3,292,092.18
HEER Selling and distribution expenses 33,195,501.74 37,451,195.29
BEER General and administrative expenses 56,527,752.13 66,807,111.64
BHER Financial expenses 16,043,707.82 5,130,327 40
EEHERL Impairment losses ("-" for reversal)
(BEAl- J5EE51) 19,490,132.94 10,335,401.36
n:%EkE Add: Investment income FEXV5 697,30097 951,518.69
Hb o HBE0ENAE Including: Income from investment
PERNRENE in associates and jointly controlled entities -887,637.46 951,518.69
Z BETB(SEN-JRED) 2. Operating profit ("-" for losses) -35,474,645.12 -56,357,528.36
IEE-31V N Add: non-operating income 18,696,026.29 804,873.9%
Hb o FRBAERENR Including: income from disposal of
non-current assets 288,389.93 -
B AENTH Less: non-operating expenses 952,922.29 91,382.15
He FRBEERERK Including: losses from disposal of
non-current assets 18,302.10 47857.94
S FReR(BRAEN- KE) 3. Profit before income tax (" for total loss) 17,731,541.12 -55,644,036.55
W FEHER Less: income tax expenses ("-" for tax credit)
(Bl - [ 7)) -3,099,997.95 -10,130,889.63
I FRECFERM - HET) 4. Net profit ("" for net loss) -14,631,543.17 -45,513,146.92
I EfGebENsTFE 5. Other comprehensive income ; _
MEENREBRNEREA NS Other comprehensive income item that will
not be reclassified to profit or loss - -
RENEERRNEE A NE Other comprehensive income item that
may be reclassified to profit or loss - -
RN GRBESE 6. Total comprehensive income
(BABEAEN- 15 (" for total compressive losses) -14,631,543.17 -45,513,146.92

FIE AN E4SHE S E 1558 M B R EK T A28 Notes to financial statements set out on pages 45 to 155 form part

BRRHERED -

of these financial statements.

A ERBA AR IR A B 20158 27 HEEE et The financial statement was approved by the Board of Directors of

JE

EERKA

FEEHIEATA:

BEIHBRAA

the Company on 27 August 2015.

x Legal representative of the Company: Wang Xing

S The person in charge of accounting affairs: Jin Xiaofeng

4R The head of the accounting department:  Li Hongning
(NEE=E) (Seal of the Company)

-
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BHREREBR(REET)

Consolidated Cash Flow S N
For the six months ended 30 June 201-

2015 1-6 A
2HEL
HZ6A300 L6AAHE
For the six months ended 30 June
ki3 KHRER rEREE
HE Items Note 2015 2014
- REEBELNBRENE: 1. Cash flows from operating activities:
WEHM  RESHRIMR S Cash received from sale of goods and rendering
of services 340,913,625.50 437,012,796.57
WHEnRLEEREENRS Other cash received relating to operating activities 7 + V- 48(1) 7,708,069.91 6,454,039.14
BEEHREMANG Sub-total of cash inflows from operating activities 348,621,695.41 493,466,835.71
BEREG BXEBEINNRE Cash paid for goods and services 247,386,414.90 285,997,038.48
XARBINRARIXNNERE Cash paid to and for employees 136,217,098.31 140,498,816.54
YRR ERE Cash paid for all types of taxes 34,195,479.29 51,754,115.98
IREMESEEDEBENRS Other cash paid relating to operating activities AV 4802) 32,581,589.36 23,984,757.03
BETHE ST LNt Sub-total of cash outflows from operating activities 450,380,581.86 502,234,728.03
BERDELNRENETE Net cash flows from operating activities A V490) -101,758,886.45 -8,767,892.32
T REEBELNERERE: 2. Cash flows from investing activities:
WEREWREINER S Cash received from withdrawal of investment 77,000,000.00 =
BERERSKIINRS Cash received from return on investments 119,441.03 =
REETEE  BFEEAN Net cash received from disposal of fixed assets,

EMEHEERRAREEE intangible assets and other long-term assets 101,120.00 59,430.36
BEFARKIINESFE Net cash received from acquisition of a subsidiary - 22,569,575.21
WERELED Cash received from security deposits 33,614,456.40 43,990,747.60
RETBRE TN Sub-total of cash inflows from investing activities 110,835,017.43 66,619,753.17

BRETEE BVEEN

A RHAE AR
REXMMRE
XRMRERER

REFGRERI N

REFDELNREREIR

Cash paid for acquisition of fixed assets,
Intangible assets and other long-term assets

Cash paid for investment

Cash paid for security deposits

Sub-total of cash outflows from investing activities

Net cash flows from investing activities

51,920,534.86 26,707,905.91
100,000,000.00 -
48,692,404.61 66,884,556.29
200,612,939.47 93,592,462.20
-89,777,922.04 -26,972,709.03

Interim Report 2015 Shenji Group Kunming Machine Tool Company Limited
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EHEERER(KEE) (&) Consolidated Cash Flow Statement - Unaudited (continued)

20154 1-6 A For the six months ended 30 June 2015
DEEE c ARKT
Unit: RMB
HZ6A30A L6fHAHM
For the six months ended 30 June

it AHBEE FHREE

EH Items Note 2015 2014
= BETHEANTERE: 3. Cash flows from financing activities:

REEFUINRE Cash received from borrowings 325,224,136.15 259,520,000.00

ELEHRETANG Sub-total of cash inflows from financing activities 325,224,136.15 259,520,000.00

BEEBYANES Cash repayments of borrowings 156,508,961.21 109,050,000.00
AEIRF - FIESENFE Cash paid for distribution of dividends,

YHEES profit or repayment of interest 21,089,514.66 12,504,856.47
XRANEMESEEBEENR S Other cash paid relating to financing activities A V-480) - 47,230,000.00
EETHRS TN Sub-total of cash outflows from financing activities 177,598,475.87 168,784,856.47
LEIHEANELHE RS Net cash flows from financing activities 147,625,660.28 90,735,143.53

 EXBURERRES 4. Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on

Bty e cash and cash equivalents -572,247.91 -106,713.43

I RERFEEENFENE 5. Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
(BROU-15EEF) ("-" for net decrease) I V491) -44,483,396.12 54,887,828.75
m: BRE RREZENHRE Add: Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning
of the period 124,210,047.71 139,391,654.25
A BARERRSSENHE 6. Cash and cash equivalents at the end
of the period A V493) 79,726,651.59 194,279,483.00

FENFEASHEEF 1558 MV BREN AR Notes to financial statements set out on pages 45 to 155 form part
MR EOAKEL D - of these financial statements.

A EAB AR IR A B 20158 27 B EE 2 The financial statement was approved by the Board of Directors of

AE o the Company on 27 August 2015.

EERRERA B Legal representative of the Company: Wang Xing

FEEFIEEEREA: 2RE The person in charge of accounting affairs: Jin Xiaofeng

SIEEAEA T4 The head of the accounting department:  Li Hongning
(RRIEE) (Seal of the Company)

Il 0 susmesssnesRan 2005 FHEs




201541-6 8

BZ6A30H L6/ AHE

For the six months ended 30 June
Wit FEREER LBREE
HH Items note 2015 2014
- BEEHELNRERE: 1. Cash flows from operating activities:
HEAm  RESKNIMES Cash received from sale of goods and rendering
of services 276,334,538.18 416,542,742 .40
K EREEREHBRNR L Other cash received relating to operating activities 7,667,552.00 5,618,413.12
BETHRSTANG Sub-total of cash inflows from operating activities 284,002,090.18 422,161,155.52
BERD ET4EIANES Cash paid for goods and services 212,211,397.86 235,060,955.98
TRRBINRABIZAOERS Cash paid to and for employees 121,086,281.00 127,648,248.67
INNEERE Cash paid for all types of taxes 24.673,071.49 44,302,079.79
TREMEGREDEBNES Other cash paid relating to operating activities 24,270,566.30 16,404,866.62
BETHRE RNt Sub-total of cash outflows from operating activities 382,241,316.65 423,416,151.06
BEEPELNRENETE Net cash flows from operating activities +E XV 6(1) -08,239,226.47 -1,254,995.54
- REEBELNELNE: 2. Cash flows from investing activities:
RERBRRNEINES Cash received from return on investments = 2,000,000.00
REETEE BVEEN Net cash received from disposal of fixed assets,

EMRAEERONESEE intangible assets and other long-term assets 100,000.00 59,430.36
WERESFH Cash received from security deposits 30,000,000.00 31,168,295.80
REBHRERANG Sub-total of cash inflows from investing activities 30,100,000.00 33,227,726.16
BRETEE EWEEN Cash paid for acquisition of fixed assets,

HERAEEIANES intangible assets and other long-term assets 51,893,781.70 26,523,832.57
TRNRESER Cash paid for security deposits 45,838,323.98 52,250,014.15
REEGRERL G Sub-total of cash outflows from investing activities 97,732,105.68 78,773,846.72
REEDEENBRETEFE Net cash flows from investing activities -67,632,105.68 -45,546,120.56
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BERBER(KREES) (E) Cash Flow Statement - Unaudited (continued)
20154F1-6 A For the six months ended 30 June 2015
TEE  ARMT
Unit: RMB
HZ6A30H L6fEASH
For the six months ended 30 June
Wit THBAER LRREE
HH Items note 2015 2014
= BEEHELNRERE: 3. Cash flows from financing activities:

REEFARINRE Cash received from borrowings 320,224,136.15 255,000,000.00
EXTHRLTANG Sub-total of cash inflows from financing activities 320,224,136.15 255,000,000.00
EREBNNRS Cash repayments of borrowings 156,508,961.21 109,050,000.00
AEERH - MEREFFNSLEM Cash paid for distribution of dividends,

Be profit or repayment of interest 18,711,154.15 10,028,464.47
IAMERREREHEENRS Other cash paid relating to financing activities = 47,230,000.00
EXTHRLT Nt Sub-total of cash outflows from financing activities 175,220,115.36 166,308,464.47
ERTHELANBEERERE Net cash flows from financing activities 145,004,020.79 88,691,535.53

m. EXEHURERREEENNGE 4. Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on
cash and cash equivalents -564,515.41 -105,278.40
I RERRLSENTENE 5. Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
(BRI -J3EE50) ("-" for net decrease) +H XV 6(1) -21,431,826.77 41,785,141.03

m: BNRERALEENHE

~|
P

TENFEASEEFE 155 ANMBIRRM T R

BmREARE D -

MR R E DN 2015F8 27 EEE <t

BRRERREERNEGR 6.

Add: Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning
of the period

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of
the period

91,613,342.33

131,6601,936.74

TE XV 60) 70,181,515.56

173,447,071.77

of these financial statements.

Notes to financial statements set out on pages 45 to 155 form part

The financial statement was approved by the Board of Directors of

e the Company on 27 August 2015.
EEREKA T Legal representative of the Company: Wang Xing
FTESHFIEEEA: TER The person in charge of accounting affairs: Jin Xiaofeng
SERBEEA = The head of the accounting department:  Li Hongning
(RAIEE) (Seal of the Company)

I <2
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18 |
Forthesix months ended 30 June 2015 For the six months ended 30 June 2014
BENSATRRRE o ERYELEL ]
Attrbutableto th shareholders o the Company Attributable to the shareholders of the Company
i il 0% S BRI FENR JNERER  ERBEAR i 0% BHIR FEHE NEREE  BREEM
Other Totel Other Total
Share Gapital~ comprehensive: Surplus Retained Minorty ~ shareholders Share Capital ~~ comprehensive Surplus Retained Minorty ~ shareholders
L Items Nt Gpitel resene income Tesene eaings inteests equity aptd resene income resene eamings interests equity
- LEBfHE 1. Balance atthe end of
[ast year 531,081,103.00 1976503147 - Mo deskAn G0043% 11079751178 531,081,103.00 1383017 - mene3s e0sen 4111898649 13791570656
- HBEREREE Add: comedionsof
prior period errors o S S S S S o o S o - BN - BN
o KERDRE 1. Balance at the beginning
of the period 531,081,10300 1976503117 E 11710 R 15 PR H23998% 1079751798 531,081,030 nm\n - MR 15768 A178%649 13436615739
= REAREELE(M) 3. Changes in equity for the
W ) period (" for decrease) o S o - 1938058056 532081206 2470139272 - 15829055 S - RS0 488 364405
[-Jaehass (1) Total comprehensie
income S S o - 1930580% 31581 BI6SN S = e - RSN 0011219 953717640
(ZlRAR (2) Appropriation ofprofts /35 - - - - S e s - - - - - - -
et Distrbutio foshareholdes - - - - S MmE U - - - - - - -
(2 3) Others - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
HETRTE Inpacof eting contol
bl ora bsday o
e Norv<ontoling neress - - - - - - - - 153829055 - - - B0 35,89468045
- AEEF4E 4, Balance at the end of
the period 531,081,103.00 19,765,017 - TR 39825383076 199193180 104609612506 531,081,103.00 1976503117 - N3 56318866264 B6M530 13007236614

Interim Report 2015 Shenji Group Kunming Machine Tool Company Limited
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BRREZEHR(REER)
2015 1-6 A

Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity - Unaudited
For the six months ended 30 June 2015

THEN  AR¥T

Unit: RMB
18 L8
For the six months ended 30 June 2015 For the six months ended 30 June 2014

g & R ssaE BRI AARAE  BREESH & 00 U B8R FARAE  BRERSH

Other Total Other Total

Share Capital ~ comprehensive Surplus Retained  shareholders' Share Capital ~ comprehensive Surplus Retained ~ shareholders’

L] Item Note Gapital Teserve income Teserve eamings equity Gpital Teserve income Teserve eamings equity

- LEERGE 1. Balance at the end of last year 53108110300 2130331112 - 10701933 3904531231 106560675636 53108110300 2130332172 - M0T01933 62662669430 130208813835

- e 2EEE Add: corrections of prior period errors - - - s S s 5 - BS540 85495907

SOREEISE 2. Balance at the beginning of the period 53108110300 27303311.12 - 10701933 3904531231 106560675636 53108110300 2130331172 - 0701933 S9BOTIAAS03  1.273,536,589.08
= FEERRDLE 3. Changes in equity for the period

(RO B (" for decrease) - - - RO 1K) 1511 - - - - ABSBMESY 455131469

(-JAkins (1) Total comprehensive income 46315317 146315317 - - - - ASS13169 4551314692

B ASEREE 4. Balance at the end of the period 53108110300 27303311.72 - 10701933 31551376904 1,050,97521319 53108110300 2130331172 - 001933 5525639911 1,228,025,442.16

FIEH N EASBEEFIS5HMMEMERWMTE ARG Notes to financial statements set out on pages 45 to 155 form part

SRR AR AR D

of these financial statements.

IR EAR #5452 A201548 527 HEE S 2t The financial statement was approved by the Board of Directors of

E o

EERERA F

TEEHIEREA: SBEE

TRIHEBAERA T4 E
(RAE1E

fo

the Company on 27 August 2015.

Legal representative of the Company: Wang Xing
The person in charge of accounting affairs: Jin Xiaofeng
The head of the accounting department:  Li Hongning
(Seal of the Company)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
expressed in RMB unless otherwise specified)

(1).

e ke

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Shenji Group Kunming Machine Tool Company Limited (the
“Company"”) was established in the People’s Republic of China
(“the PRC") with limited liability on 19th October 1993. The
place of registration of the Company is 23 Ciba Road, Kunming
City, Yunnan Province, the PRC.

The Company is a stock company limited by restructuring from
Kunming Machine Tool Plant approved by [1993] no. 173 Ti
Gai Sheng issued by the State Economic Reform Commission.
The name at establishment was Kunming Machine Tool
Company Limited (“Kunji”). Kunming Machine Tool Plant
used its assets and liabilities at 30th June 1993 to invest in
the Company. The above assets and liabilities were assessed
by Shanghai Accounting Firm. The assessed net assets were
RMB179,258,700. The assessment was approved by [1993] no.
420 Guo Zi Ping issued by the National State-owned assets
Administration Commission. According to [1993] no. 114
Guo Zi Qi Han Fa issued by the National State-owned assets
Administration Commission, the assessed state-owned land
use rights included in the above net assets should be reduced
by RMB34,217,100, meanwhile, 82.74% of the adjusted net
assets (assessment value was RMB145,041,600) was discounted
to 120,007,400 shares with par value RMB1.00 per share. The
original investors of Kunming Machine Tool Plant, Yunnan
Provincial People’s Government and Kunming Jinghua Company
Ltd., held 102,397,700 and 17,609,700 shares respectively.

Approved by [1993] no. 50 Zheng Wei Fa issued by the
Security Commission of the State Council, Kunji issued and
listed 65,000,000 H shares with par value RMB1.00 per share
in the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in December
1993. Then, it issued and listed 60,000,000 A shares with
par value RMB1.00 per share in Shanghai Stock Exchange in
January 1994.
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On 25th December 2000, Xi'an Jiaotong University Industrial
(Group) Incorporation (“Jiaotong Group”) entered into Shares
Transfer Agreement of Jiaoda Kunji High-Tech Company Limited
with the People’s Government of Yunnan Province (“Yunnan
Government”) whereby Yunnan Government would transfer
71,052,146 state-owned shares of the Company to Jiaotong
Group. The transaction was approved by [2001] no. 283 Cai Qi
— the Approval of State-owned Shares Transfer of Jiaoda Kunji
High-tech Company Limited issued by the Ministry of Finance
of the PRC. Upon completion of share transfer procedure on
5th June 2001, Jiaotong Group became the largest shareholder
of the Company.

With effective from 29th March 2002, the Company used the
name “Jiaoda Kunji High Tech Company Limited” (“Jiaoda
Kunji”) jointly approved by the State Administration for Industry
and Commerce of the PRC and the Ministry of Foreign Trade
and Economic Cooperation of the PRC after completing the
business registration for change of company name in Yunnan
Commercial and Industrial Administration Bureau.

On 15th September 2005, Jiaotong Group and Shenyang
Machine Tool (Group) Co., Ltd. (“Shenji Group”) entered into
a Share Transfer Agreement. Shenji Group agreed to purchase
71,052,146 shares of Jiaoda Kunji held by Jiaotong Group.
The share transfer was approved pursuant to the “Written
Reply Regarding the Transfer of State-owned Shares of Jiaoda
Kunji High-tech Co., Ltd.” (Guo Zi Chan Quan [2006] No. 628)
issued by State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Committee of the State Council and the Opinion on Information
Disclosure of the Acquisition of Jiaoda Kunji High-tech Co., Ltd.
by Shenyang Machine Tool (Group) Co., Ltd. (Zheng Jian Gong
Si [2006] No. 255) by China Securities Regulation Committee.
On 1st December 2006, the register of equity transfer was
completed and Shenji Group became the largest shareholder
of the Company.

On 4th April 2006, pursuant to “Written Reply of the People’s
Government of Yunnan Province Regarding the Transfer of Title
of Jiaoda Kunji High-Tech Co., Ltd.” issued by the People’s
Government of Yunnan Province and the “Written Reply of
Yunnan State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Committee regarding the Grant of Authorization to Yunnan
State-owned Assets Operation Co., Ltd. to Exercise the
Shareholders’ Right of Jiaoda Kunji High-tech Co., Ltd."” issued
by Yunnan State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Committee, 31,345,554 state-owned shares held by the
People’s Government of Yunnan were transferred to Yunnan
State-owned Assets Operation Co., Ltd. (“Yunnan State-owned
Assets Operation Co., Ltd.”) at nil consideration on 31st
December 2005. The share transfer was approved by the State-
owned Assets Supervision and Administration Committee of
the State Council pursuant to the “Written Reply regarding
the Transfer of Part of the State-owned Shares of Jiaoda Kunji
High-Tech Co., Ltd.” (Guo Zi Chan Quan [2006] No. 1412).
The transfer was completed on 19th January 2007.

___EE
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On 25th January 2007, the “Written Reply ré‘g’a":
Transfer of Shares and Increase in Share of Jiaoda
High-Tech Co., Ltd.” (Shang Zi Pi [2007] No. 133) was issued
by the Ministry of Commerce of the PRC to approve the
share reform proposal of the Company, pursuant to which a
total of 38,235,855 shares (as to 28,091,955 A Shares and
10,143,900 H Shares respectively) were transferred from the
capital reserve to all the shareholders whose names appeared
on the Company’s register of members on 26th February
2007 on the basis of 1.5606 shares for every 10 shares held.
On 5th March 2007, the holders of non-circulating shares of
the Company made the payment with a total of 18,728,355
shares held as consideration to the holders of circulating A
Shares on the basis of 2.7 shares for every 10 shares held. The
new A Shares were listed on 7th March 2007. Of 18,728,355
shares, Shenji Group, Yunnan State-owned Assets Operation
Co., Ltd. and Jinghua Company contributed as to 11,088,398
shares, 4,891,787 shares and 2,748,170 shares respectively.
After implementation of the consideration arrangement, non-
circulating shares held by the holders of non-circulating shares
of the Company became tradable and listed.

On 23rd March 2007, approved by the shareholders’ meeting
of Jiaoda Kunji, Jiaoda Kunji High-Tech Company changed its
name to Shenji Group Kunming Machine Tool Company Limited.

Approved by the annual general meeting of the Company held
on 29th June 2007, based on total share capital of 283,243,255
shares of the Company, increased shares on the basis of 5
shares for every 10 shares held to all the shareholders by
capitalization of capital reserve, totally increased 141,621,628
shares. After share increase, total issued shares of the Company
was 424,864,883 shares, and total registered capital of the
Company was RMB424,864,883. The resolution was approved
by the “Written Reply Regarding the Change of Name and
Increase in Share Capital of Jiaoda Kunji High-Tech Co.,
Ltd.” (Shang Zi Pi [2007] No. 1390) issued by the Ministry of
Commerce of the PRC.

Pursuant to the “Written Reply on the Change in Shareholders
of the Six Listed Companies including Yunnan Salt & Chemical
Industry Co., Ltd.” (Guo Zi Chan Quan [2009] No. 1182) issued
by the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission of the State Council on 22nd October 2009,
47,018,331 shares of the Company held by Yunnan State
Owned Assets Operation Co. Ltd. were transferred to Yunnan
Industrial Investment Holding Group Co., Ltd. (“Yunnan
Industrial Investment”) to perform the obligations as the
contributor of state-owned assets.
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(1)

Approved by the shareholders’ meetings held on 23rd June
2010, based on total share capital of 424,864,883 shares of
the Company, increased shares on the basis of 2.5 shares for
every 10 shares held to all the shareholders by capitalization
of capital reserve, totally increased 106,216,220 shares. After
share increase, total issued shares of the Company would
be 531,081,103 shares, and total registered capital of the
Company would be RMB531,081,103. The resolution was
approved by the “Written Reply from the Department of
Commerce of Yunnan Province Concerning its Consent to
the Increase in Share Capital by Capitalization of the Capital
Reserve by Shenji Group Kunming Machine Tool Company
Limited” (Yun Shang Zi [2010] No. 130).

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”)
mainly engage in development, design, production and sales of
machine tool series products and accessories, sensor and turbo
tables and turbo machine and sintering fans series products
and accessories. The term of operation of the Company will
expire on 31 October 2050.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared
on a going concern basis.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES OF THE
COMPANY AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The accounting policies on recognition and measurement
of provision for bad debts in receivables, measurement of
inventories, depreciation of fixed assets, amortization of
intangible assets, qualifying R&D expenses for capitalization
and recognition and measurement of revenue are adopted
according to the Group’s business characteristics, details of
which are set out in the relevant notes.

Statement of compliance with the corporate
accounting standards

The Company’s interim financial report is prepared in accordance
with the requirements of Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises No. 32 — Interim Financial Report issued by the
P.R.C Ministry of Finance. The interim financial report has
been prepared in accordance with the same accounting policies
adopted in the 2014 annual financial statements.

Accounting period

The accounting period commences on 1st January and ends
on 31st December each year.

Operating cycle

The Company and its subsidiaries take the period from the
acquisition of assets for processing to the realization of cash
or cash equivalents as a normal operating cycle. The operating
cycles of the Company’s principal businesses are usually shorter
than 12 months.
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Functional currency

The functional currency of the Company is Renminbi (“RMB_”F)T-‘_.

The Company presents the financial statements in RMB. The
functional currency is determined by the Company and its
subsidiaries on the basis of the currency in which major income
and costs are denominated and settled.

Accounting treatment for business combination
involving enterprises under common control and
not under common control

(1) Business combinations involving enterprises under
common control

A business combination involving enterprises under
common control is a business combination in which all
of the combining enterprises are ultimately controlled
by the same party or parties both before and after the
business combination, and that control is not transitory.
The assets acquired and liabilities assumed are measured
based on their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements of the ultimate controlling party
at the combination date. The difference between the
carrying amount of the net assets acquired and the
consideration paid for the combination (or the total
par value of shares issued) is adjusted against share
premium in the capital reserve, with any excess adjusted
against retained earnings. Any costs directly attributable
to the combination are recognised in profit or loss when
incurred. The combination date is the date on which one
combining enterprise obtains control of other combining
enterprises.
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Business combinations involving enterprises not under
common control

A business combination involving enterprises not under
common control is a business combination in which all of
the combining enterprises are not ultimately controlled
by the same party or parties both before and after
the business combination. Where (1) the aggregate
of the acquisition-date fair value of assets transferred
(including the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree), liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity
securities issued by the acquirer, in exchange for control
of the acquiree, exceeds (2) the acquirer’s interest in the
acquisition-date fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets, the difference is recognised as goodwill (see
Note II1.17). If (1) is less than (2), the difference is
recognised in profit or loss for the current period. The
costs of issuing equity or debt securities as a part of
the consideration for the acquisition are included in
the carrying amounts of these equity or debt securities
upon initial recognition. Other acquisition-related costs
are expensed when incurred. Any difference between
the fair value and the carrying amount of the assets
transferred as consideration is recognised in profit or
loss. The acquiree’s identifiable asset, liabilities and
contingent liabilities, if the recognition criteria are met,
are recognised by the Group at their acquisition-date
fair value. The acquisition date is the date on which the
acquirer obtains control of the acquiree.

For a business combination involving enterprises not
under common control and achieved in stages, the
Group remeasures its previously-held equity interest
in the acquiree to its acquisition-date fair value and
recognises any resulting difference between the fair value
and the carrying amount as investment income for the
current period. In addition, any amount recognised in
other comprehensive income that may be reclassified to
profit or loss, in prior reporting periods relating to the
previously-held equity interest, and any other changes
in the owners’ equity under equity accounting, are
transferred to investment income in the period in which
the acquisition occurs (see Note I11.12(2)(b)).

.
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6.

Preparation of consolidated financial staten

(1)

General principles

The scope of consolidated financial statements is based
on control and the consolidated financial statements
comprise the Company and its subsidiaries. Control exists
when the investor has all of following: power over
the investee; exposure, or rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee. When assessing whether the Group has power,
only substantive rights (held by the Group and other
parties) are considered. The financial position, financial
performance and cash flows of subsidiaries are included
in the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control ceases.

Non-controlling interests are presented separately in
the consolidated balance sheet within shareholders’
equity. Net profit or loss attributable to non-controlling
shareholders is presented separately in the consolidated
income statement below the net profit line item. Total
comprehensive income attributable to non-controlling
shareholders is presented separately in the consolidated
income statement below the total comprehensive income
line item.

When the amount of loss for the current period attributable
to the non-controlling shareholders of a subsidiary exceeds
the non-controlling shareholders’ portion of the opening
balance of owners’ equity of the subsidiary, the excess is
allocated against the non-controlling interests.

When the accounting period or accounting policies of a
subsidiary are different from those of the Company, the
Company makes necessary adjustments to the financial
statements of the subsidiary based on the Company’s
own accounting period or accounting policies. Intra-group
balances and transactions, and any unrealised profit or
loss arising from intra-group transactions, are eliminated
when preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, unless
they represent impairment losses that are recognised in
the financial statements.
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3)

Subsidiaries acquired through a business combination

Where a subsidiary was acquired during the reporting
period, through a business combination involving
enterprises under common control, the financial statements
of the subsidiary are included in the consolidated financial
statements as if the combination had occurred at the
date that the ultimate controlling party first obtained
control. The opening balances and the comparative
figures of the consolidated financial statements are also
restated. In the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements, the subsidiary’s assets and liabilities based on
their carrying amounts in the financial statements of the
ultimate controlling party are included in the consolidated
balance sheet, and financial performance is included in
the consolidated income statement, respectively, from the
date that the ultimate parent company of the Company
obtains the control of the subsidiary to be consolidated.

Where a subsidiary was acquired during the reporting
period, through a business combination involving
enterprises not under common control, the identifiable
assets and liabilities of the acquired subsidiaries are
included in the scope of consolidation from the date
that control commences, based on the fair value of those
identifiable assets and liabilities at the acquisition date.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the Group
derecognizes assets, liabilities, non-controlling interests
and other related items in shareholders’ equity in relation
to that subsidiary. The remaining equity investment is
remeasured at its fair value at the date when control
is lost. Any resulting gains or losses are recognized as
investment income of the current period when control
is lost.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary in multiple
transactions in which it disposes of its long-term equity
investment in the subsidiary in stages, the following
are considered to determine whether the Group should
account for the multiple transactions as a bundled
transaction:

arrangements are entered into at the same time or
in contemplation of each other;

- arrangements work together to achieve an overall
commercial effect;

- the occurrence of one arrangement is dependent on
the occurrence of at least one other arrangement;
and

- one arrangement considered on its own is not
economically justified, but it is economically justified
when considered together with other arrangements.

-
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a bundled transaction, the transactions conducted before

the loss of control of the subsidiary are accounted for
in accordance with the accounting policies for partial
disposal of equity investment in subsidiaries where control
is retained (see Note Ill. 6(4)).

If each of the multiple transactions forms part of a
bundled transaction which eventually results in the loss of
control in the subsidiary, these multiple transactions are
accounted for as a single transaction. In the consolidated
financial statements, the difference between the
consideration received and the corresponding proportion
of the subsidiary’s net assets (subsequently measured
since the acquisition date) in each transaction prior to
the loss of control is recognized in other comprehensive
income and transferred to profit or loss when the parent
eventually loses control of the subsidiary.

Change in non-controlling interests

Where the Company acquires a non-controlling interest
from a subsidiary’s non-controlling shareholders or
disposes of a portion of an interest in a subsidiary
without a change in control, the difference between
the investment cost of newly acquired long-term equity
investment and the Company’s share of its subsidiary’s
identifiable net assets and the difference between the
consideration received for disposal of long-term equity
investment and the Company’s share of subsidiary’s
identifiable net assets are adjusted to the capital reserve
(share premium) in the consolidated balance sheet. If
the credit balance of capital reserve (share premium) is
insufficient, any excess is adjusted to retained earnings.

Determination of cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, demand
deposits, and short-term, highly liquid investments, which are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and are subject
to an insignificant risk of change in value.

Foreign currency transactions

When the Group receives capital in foreign currencies from
investors, the capital is translated to Renminbi at the spot
exchange rate at the date of the receipt. Other foreign currency
transactions are, on initial recognition, translated to Renminbi
at the spot exchange rates on the dates of the transactions.
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Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are translated
to Renminbi at the spot exchange rate at the balance sheet date.
The resulting exchange differences are recognized in profit or
loss, except those arising from the principals and interests on
foreign currency borrowings specifically for the purpose of
acquisition, construction of qualifying assets for capitalization
(see Note lll. 15). Non-monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies that are measured at historical cost are translated
using the foreign exchange rate resulting from transactions.
Non-monetary items denominated in foreign currencies that
are measured at fair value are translated using the foreign
exchange rate at the date the fair value is determined; the
resulting exchange differences are recognized in profit or loss.

Financial instruments

Financial instruments of the Group comprise cash at bank
and on hand, equity investment except for long-term equity
investment (see Note lll. 12), receivables, payables, loans, and
share capital, etc.

(1) Recognition and measurement of financial assets and
financial liabilities

A financial asset or financial liability is recognized in the
balance sheet when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of a financial instrument.

The Group classifies financial assets and liabilities into
different categories at initial recognition, based on the
purpose of acquiring assets or assuming liabilities: loans,
receivables, available-for-sale financial assets and other
financial liabilities.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are measured
initially at fair value and any attributable transaction costs
are included in their initial costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition financial assets and liabilities are measured
as follows:

- Receivables

Receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market.

Subsequent to initial recognition, receivables are
stated at amortized cost using the effective interest
method.

I
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(2)

- Available-for-sale financial assets

Non-derivative financial assets designated as
available-for-sale at initial recognition and financial
assets not classified in other categories are classified
as available-for-sale financial assets by the Group.

Available-for-sale investments in equity instruments
whose fair value cannot be measured reliably are
measured at cost subsequent to initial recognition.
Cash dividends from available-for-sale investments
in equity instruments are recognized in profit or
loss for the period when the investee announces
distribution of dividends.

- Other financial liabilities

Financial liabilities other than the financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are classified as
other financial liabilities.

Subsequent to initial recognition, other financial
liabilities are stated at amortized cost using the
effective interest method.

Presentation of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are presented
separately in the balance sheet and shall not be offset.
However, a financial asset and a financial liability shall
be offset and the net amount presented in the balance
sheet when both of the following conditions are satisfied:

- the Group has a legal right to offset the recognized
amounts and the legal right is currently enforceable;

- the Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realize the financial asset and settle the financial
liability simultaneously.
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Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities

A financial asset is derecognized if the Group’s contractual
rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire
or if the Group transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset to another

party.

Where a transfer of a financial asset in its entirety meets
the criteria of the derecognition, the difference between
the two amounts below is recognized in profit or loss:

- carrying amount of the financial asset transferred;

- the sum of the consideration received from the
transfer and any cumulative gains or loss that has
been recognized directly in equity.

The Group derecognizes a financial liability (or part of
it) only when the underlying present obligation (or part
of it) is discharged.

Impairment of financial assets

The carrying amounts of financial assets are reviewed at
each balance sheet date to determine whether there is
objective evidence of impairment. If any such evidence
exists, impairment loss is provided. Objective evidence
that a financial asset is impaired includes, but is not
limited to the following:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
borrower;

(b) a breach of contract by the borrower, such as
a default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

(c) strong probability that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or go through another type of financial
reorganisation;

For the measurement of impairment of receivables, refer
to Note Ill. 10.

Equity instrument investment not quoted in an active
market or its fair value not be reliably measured will
not be reversed.
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(5

Equity instruments

The consideration received from the issuance of equi y-

instruments net of transaction costs is recognized in
shareholders’ equity.

Impairment of receivables

Receivables are assessed for impairment both on an individual
basis and on a collective group basis.

Where impairment is assessed on an individual basis, an
impairment loss in respect of a receivable is calculated as the
excess of its carrying amount over the present value of the
estimated future cash flows (exclusive of future credit losses
that have not been incurred) discounted at the original effective
interest rate. The Group discounts the carrying amount of the
receivables to its present value and the discounted amount is
recognized as impairment loss of asset, all impairment losses
are recognized in profit or loss.

The assessment is made collectively where receivables share
similar credit risk characteristics (including those having
not been individually assessed as impaired), based on their
historical loss experiences, and adjusted by the observable
figures reflecting present economic conditions.

If, after an impairment loss has been recognized on receivables,
there is objective evidence of a recovery in value of the financial
asset which can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss will not result in the asset’s carrying
amount exceeding that which would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognized in prior years.
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Significant single accounts receivable which being made
single bad debt provision:

Judgment basis or criteria for receivables that are
individually significant

1 type of trade receivable (trade receivables): criteria:
RMB7,000,000 for single accounts receivable;

2 type of other receivable (other receivables): criteria:
RMB3,500,000 for single accounts receivable;

3 type of personal accounts receivable (other
receivables): criteria: RMB100,000 for single
accounts receivable.

Method of provision for bad and doubtful debts for
receivables that are individually significant and assessed
individually

The bad debt provision made for individually significant
accounts receivable adopted both on individual basis
and on collective combination basis. First by individual
impairment test, if the present value of estimated future
cash flows (exclusive of future credit losses that have
not been incurred) discounted at the original effective
interest rate is less than its carrying value, the difference
should be recognized as impairment loss and should make
provision. If the impairment not being incurred after the
individual test, should the credit risk characteristics are
consistent with other receivables, the accounts receivable
should combine with other receivables to provide bad debt
provision by credit risk characteristic combination (see (c)
below). If the impairment not being incurred after the
individual test, should the credit risk characteristics are
not consistent with other receivables, then no additional
impairment test will be carried out.

-
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Insignificant single receivables which are proy
bad and doubtful debts:

Reasons for and method of provision for bad and doubtful
debts for receivables that are individually insignificant

Individual impairment test will be conducted to insignificant
single receivables if there is any objective evidence which
shows that such receivables incur impairment or there
is any change in their credit risk characteristics which
makes them different from those of other receivables
in the same group, and provision for bad and doubtful
debts will be made according to the difference between
the present value of future cash flow and the book value.

Bad debt provision for accounts receivable by combination
with credit risk characters

For accounts receivable not impaired after individual test
which stated in (a) and (b) above, the Group will include
it in the accounts receivable combination with credit risk
characters to do the test again.

Bad debt provision for accounts receivable by
combination with credit risk characters

Receivables from third parties
Receivables from related parties

Ageing analysis
Individual assessment

In group of receivables from third parties, provision for
bad debts made by ageing analysis:

Percentage of
provision for
accounts

Percentage of
provision for
other

Aging receivable (%) receivables (%)
Within 1 year (including 1 year) 5% 5%
1-2 years (including 2 years) 30% 50%
2-3 years (including 3 years) 60% 100%
Over 3 years 95% 100%

In group of receivables from related parties, individual
impairment test will be conducted to accounts receivable
of related parties at the end of the year. Should objective
evidence shows that it incurred impairment, according
to the difference between the present value of future
estimated cash flow and the book value, assets impairment
should be recognized. Should no objective evidence show
that it has impairment, no bad debt provision should
be made.
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11.

Inventories

(1)

(2)

3)

4)

Classification and cost

Inventories include raw material, work in process, semi-
finished goods, finished goods and reusable materials.
Reusable materials include low-value consumables,
packaging materials and other materials, which can be
used repeatedly but do not meet the definition of fixed
assets.

Inventories are initially measured at cost. Cost of
inventories comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other expenses that to help deliver the
inventories to the current location and situation. In
addition to the purchasing cost of raw materials, work in
progress and finished goods include direct labour costs
and an appropriate allocation of production overheads.

Determination of cost of inventories

The actual cost of inventories is calculated using the
weighted average method.

Consumables including low-value consumables and
packaging materials are amortized in full when received
for use. The amounts of the amortization are included in
the cost of the related assets or profit or loss.

The underlying factors in the determination of net
realizable value of inventories and the basis of provision
for diminution in value of inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net
realizable value at the balance sheet date.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the
normal course of business less the estimated costs to
completion and the estimated expenses and the related
taxes necessary to make the sale. The net realizable value
of materials held for use in the production of inventories
is measured based on the net realizable value of the
finished goods in which they will be incorporated. The
net realizable value of the quantity of inventory held to
satisfy sales or service contracts is based on the contract
price. If the quantities of inventories specified in sales
contracts are less than the quantities held by the Group,
the net realizable value of the excess portion of inventories
shall be based on general selling prices.

Any excess of the cost over the net realizable value of
each item of inventories is recognized as a provision for
diminution in the value of inventories and charged to
profit or loss.

Inventory system

The Group maintains a perpetual inventory system for
raw material and finished goods and a periodic inventory
system for semi-finished goods.

.
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12 RERERE 12. Long-term equity investments
(1) REABREREREKAETE (1) Investment cost of long-term equity investments
(@) BBEFESHEANRIARE (a) Long-term equity investments acquired through a

®E business combination

— HRE—EZEHTHEES The initial cost of a long-term equity investment
Cigidpd:0F s NGl 0B=3 1 acquired through a business combination
RIERE - ARARBE involving enterprises under common control
RGN EaHAME is the Company’s share of the carrying amount
ERRERKIES RSO of the subsidiary’s equity in the consolidated
MHBmEkTPTHEEEE financial statements of the ultimate controlling
NHBEERRIAKRERSE party at the combination date. The difference
BRI EKA - REIR between the initial investment cost and the
ERENBREK AR carrying amount of the consideration given is
NEEREEECHNE adjusted to the share premium in the capital
B ABRERNRBEPHR reserve, with any excess adjusted against
KB BEARAREF AR retained earnings.
KpBETEHRE - AR
Bl o

- HRER—EHTESE For a long-term equity investment obtained
CiiApd:0F s a NG 0R=3 through a business combination not involving
RERE - RARIIZRE enterprises under common control, the initial
EERGHERBE E cost comprises the aggregate of the fair value
FIEMNSHMEE « B4E of assets transferred, liabilities incurred or
HAEN BB R EITH assumed, and equity securities issued by the
BREFEFNANEER " Company, in exchange for control of the
ERZIBREMBIREK acquiree. For a long-term equity investment
ZANEI GRS E St e : VN obtained through a business combination not
RN L BRI IER —1F involving enterprises under common control
BITRESHEARNEF and achieved through multiple transactions in
RENRHAKERE  H stages which do not form a bundled transaction,
TR ERA RN A A the initial cost comprises the carrying amount
BERZAHIFFHEE T8 of the previously-held equity investment in the
IRERE R REEE AR acquiree immediately before the acquisition
B RMEIREKARZH - date, and the additional investment cost at

the acquisition date.
(b)y HaFXEEHRARERE (b) Long-term equity investments acquired other than

through a business combination
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A long-term equity investment acquired other
than through a business combination is initially
recognised at the amount of cash paid if the
Group acquires the investment by cash, or at
the fair value of the equity securities issued
if an investment is acquired by issuing equity
securities.
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(2) Subsequent measurement and recognition of profit and
loss of long-term equity investment

(a)

Investments in subsidiaries

In the Company’s separate financial statements,
long-term equity investments in subsidiaries are
accounted for using the cost method for subsequent
measurement. Except for cash dividends or profit
distributions declared but not yet distributed that
have been included in the price or consideration
paid in obtaining the investments, the Company
recognises its share of the cash dividends or profit
distributions declared by the investee as investment
income in the current period.

The investments in subsidiaries are stated in the
balance sheet at cost less accumulated impairment
losses.

For the impairment of the investments in subsidiaries,
refer to Note I11.19.

In the Group’s consolidated financial statements,
long-term equity investments in subsidiaries are
accounted for in accordance with the policies
described in Note IlI.6.

Investment in joint ventures and associates

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the
Group and other parties have joint control (see
Note I11.12(3)) and rights to the net assets of the
arrangement.

An associate is an enterprise over which the Group
has significant influence (see Note I11.12(3)).

An investment in a joint venture or an associate
is accounted for using the equity method for
subsequent measurement.

T

MEEEEARKROERLE 2015 FHHE




ZINES

BERBEREZERH

ARETRERSE

HRRERERENT SR
BERRARNRIREREE
BHWIREBMAIHRFE
ERALBEMEDN - A
EERRHREREHNK
N HRREREREDN
MR IRE KR/ NRIRE R
EEB IR E BLLA] PR
FEEALEBEMNEN
NEEERRIAKRERE
BB AN - REARERE
PR BRI IR IR B K AR =
%ED+AEHHTE/\ °

BEHAELEMBED
ERER®R  AEBRRE
FRERENENRREE
B IR A5 Eﬁﬁﬂlﬁm,*
BlREONE - 2RI ER
REBDZMEMER K E
AR ERENE
HEE: RREKEEM
EEDIRONELE S
M ERD GO - 48
J& R Eﬂﬂﬂxﬁé&ﬁmﬁﬁ
Ef‘i@ “HeebELH
ﬁ%ﬁ%/ﬂ@/\ - H AR
& Y as M 2 B LA SN PR
BEERamEBEEH(N
T?ﬂﬁafﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%%m
""""" 2] rEERRER
BRROENDEF AR
RigEm YRKHFHERRS
BERERREEE -

The Group makes the foIIowmggc
treatments when using the equity method:

Where the initial cost of a long-term equity
investment exceeds the Group's interest in
the fair value of the investee's identifiable
net assets at the date of acquisition, the
investment is initially recognised at cost.
Where the initial investment cost is less than
the Group’s interest in the fair value of the
investee’s identifiable net assets at the date
of acquisition, the investment is initially
recognised at the investor’s share of the fair
value of the investee’s identifiable net assets,
and the difference is recognised in profit or
loss.

After the acquisition of the investment, the
Group recognises its share of the investee’s
profit or loss and other comprehensive income
as investment income or losses and other
comprehensive income respectively, and
adjusts the carrying amount of the investment
accordingly. Once the investee declares any
cash dividends or profit distributions, the
carrying amount of the investment is reduced
by that amount attributable to the Group.
Changes in the Group’s share of the investee’s
owners’ equity, other than those arising
from the investee’s net profit or loss, other
comprehensive income or profit distribution
("other changes in owners’ equity”), is
recognised directly in the Group’s equity,
and the carrying amount of the investment is
adjusted accordingly.
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In calculating its share of the investee’s
net profits or losses, other comprehensive
income and other changes in owners’ equity,
the Group recognises investment income
and other comprehensive income after
making appropriate adjustments to align the
accounting policies or accounting periods with
those of the Group based on the fair value of
the investee’s identifiable net assets at the
date of acquisition. Unrealised profits and
losses resulting from transactions between
the Group and its associates or joint ventures
are eliminated to the extent of the Group's
interest in the associates or joint ventures.
Unrealised losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates or joint
ventures are eliminated in the same way as
unrealised gains but only to the extent that
there is no impairment.

The Group discontinues recognising its share of
further losses of the investee after the carrying
amount of the long-term equity investment
and any long-term interest that in substance
forms part of the Group’s net investment in the
joint venture or associate is reduced to zero,
except to the extent that the Group has an
obligation to assume additional losses. If the
joint venture or associate subsequently reports
net profits, the Group resumes recognising
its share of those profits only after its share
of the profits equals the share of losses not
recognised.

For the impairment of the investments in joint
ventures and associates, refer to Note I11.19.
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Criteria for determining the existence of joint co
significant influence over an investee

Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities (activities with significant
impact on the returns of the arrangement) require the
unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The following factors are usually considered when
assessing whether the Group can exercise joint control
over an investee:

- Whether no single participant party is in a position to
control the investee’s related activities unilaterally;

- Whether strategic decisions relating to the investee’s
related activities require the unanimous consent of
all participant parties that sharing of control.

Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of an investee but
does not have control or joint control over those policies.

13. Fixed assets

(1)

Recognition criteria for fixed assets

Fixed assets represent the tangible assets held by the
Group for use in the production of goods, rendering of
services or for operation and administrative purposes
with useful lives over one accounting year.

The initial cost of a purchased fixed asset comprises the
purchase price, related taxes, and any directly attributable
expenditure for bringing the asset to working condition
for its intended use. The initial cost of self-constructed
assets is measured in accordance with the policy set out
in Note lll.14.

Where parts of an item of fixed asset have different
useful lives or provide benefits to the Group in different
patterns thus necessitating use of different depreciation
rates or methods, each part is recognized as a separate
fixed asset.

The subsequent costs including the cost of replacing
part of an item of fixed assets are recognized in the
carrying amount of the item if the recognition criteria are
satisfied, and the carrying amount of the replaced part
is derecognized. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of
fixed assets are recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

Fixed assets are stated in the balance sheet at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
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(4)
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Depreciation method for fixed assets

Fixed assets are depreciated using the straight-line method
over their estimated useful lives on the basis of cost less
estimated net residual value and accumulated impairment
loss.

The depreciation period, residual value rate and annual
depreciation rate of each type of fixed assets are as
follows:

Annual

Residual ~ depreciation

Useful life  value rate rate

Type (year) (%) (%)
Buildings and structures 40 5 2.38
Machinery equipment 5-20 5 4.75 - 19.00
Transportation equipment 5-14 5 6.79 - 19.00
Electronic equipment 5-14 5 6.79 - 19.00

Useful lives, estimated residual values and depreciation
methods are reviewed at least each year-end.

For the method of impairment testing and provision for
impairment, refer to Note 111.19.

For the recognition, measurement and depreciation of
fixed assets acquired under finance leases, refer to the
accounting policy set out in Note Ill. 26(2).

Disposal of fixed assets

The carrying amount of a fixed asset shall be derecognized:

- on disposal; or

- when no future economic benefits are expected to
be generated from its use or disposal.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of fixed asset are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item, and are recognized in profit or loss
on the date of retirement or disposal.

-
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14.

15.

Construction in progress

=
The cost of self-constructed fixed assets includes the cost of

materials, direct labour, borrowing costs that meet the criteria
for capitalization (see Note I11.15), and any other costs directly
attributable to bringing the asset to working condition for its
intended use.

A self-constructed fixed asset is included in construction in
progress before it is transferred to fixed assets when it is
ready for its intended use. No depreciation is provided against
construction in progress.

Construction in progress is stated in the balance sheet at cost
less provision for impairment (see Note I11.19).

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction of a qualifying asset are capitalized as part of
the cost of the asset.

Except for the above, other borrowing costs are recognized
as financial expenses in the income statement when incurred.

During the capitalization period, the amount of interest
(including amortization of any discount or premium on
borrowing) to be capitalized in each accounting period is
determined as follows:

—  Where funds are borrowed specifically for the acquisition,
construction of a qualifying asset, the amount of interest
to be capitalized is the interest expense calculated using
effective interest rates during the period less any interest
income earned from depositing the borrowed funds or
any investment income on the temporary investment of
those funds before being used on the asset.

—  Where funds are borrowed generally and used for
the acquisition, construction of a qualifying asset, the
amount of interest to be capitalized on such borrowings
is determined by applying a capitalization rate to the
weighted average of the excess amounts of cumulative
expenditures on the asset over the above amounts
of specific borrowings. The capitalization rate is the
weighted average of the interest rates applicable to the
general-purpose borrowings.
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16.

The effective interest rate is determined as the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash flow through the expected life
of the borrowing or, when appropriate, a shorter period to
the initially recognized amount of the borrowings.

During the capitalization period, exchange differences related
to the principal and interest on a specific purpose borrowing
denominated in foreign currency are capitalized as part of the
cost of the qualifying asset. The exchange differences related
to the principal and interest on foreign currency borrowings
other than a specific-purpose borrowing are recognized as
a financial expense in profit and loss in the period they are
incurred.

The capitalization period is the period from the date of
commencement of capitalization of borrowing costs to the date
of cessation of capitalization, excluding any period over which
capitalization is suspended. Capitalization of borrowing costs
commences when expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities of acquisition
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use are
in progress, and ceases when the assets become ready for their
intended use. Capitalization of borrowing costs is suspended
when the acquisition, construction activities are interrupted
abnormally and the interruption lasts for over three months.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated in the balance sheet at cost less
accumulated amortization (limited to intangible assets with
finite useful life) and impairment losses (see Note I11.19). For
intangible assets with finite useful life, intangible asset’s cost
less estimated net residual value and accumulated impairment
losses is amortized on the straight-line method over its
estimated useful life.

The respective amortization periods for such intangible assets
are as follows:

Item Amortization period
Land use rights 50 years
Various software 3 - 10 years
Others 5 - 10 years

An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite useful
life and is not amortised when there is no foreseeable limit
to the period over which the asset is expected to generate
economic benefits for the Group. As at the balance sheet date,
the Group did not have any intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives.

-
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17.

18.

19.

Expenditures on an internal research and develop

project are classified into expenditures on the research pase——-

and expenditures on the development phase. Expenditures
on research phase are recognized in profit or loss when
incurred. Expenditures on development phase are capitalized
if development costs can be measured reliably, the product
or process is technically and commercially feasible, and the
Group intends to and has sufficient resources to complete
development. Capitalized development costs are stated at cost
less impairment losses in the balance sheet (see Note I11.19).
Other development expenditures are recognized as expenses
in the period in which they are incurred.

Goodwill

The initial cost of Goodwill caused by business combination
not under common control is the excess of combination cost
and the fair value of obtained identifiable net assets obtained
from the acquiree.

Goodwill is not amortized. Goodwill is stated at cost less
accumulated impairment losses in the balance sheet (see
Note 111.19). Goodwill is transferred when its related assets
or assets group is disposed, and recognized in profit or loss
for the period.

Long-term deferred expenses

Long-term deferred expenses are amortized in equal installments
over the period that it enjoys benefits. Amortization periods
for expenditures are:

Item Amortization period

Decoration 5 years

Impairment of assets other than inventories and
financial assets

The carrying amounts of the following assets are reviewed at
each balance sheet date based on the internal and external
sources of information to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment:

—  Fixed assets

— Construction in progress

— Intangible assets

— Long-term equity investment

—  Long-term deferred expenses

—  Goodwill etc.
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If any indication exists that an asset may be impaired, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated. In addition,
whether impairment evidence exists, the Group assesses the
recoverable amount of goodwill at the end of each year. The
Group amortizes the book value of goodwill based on benefits
from the synergies of the business combination on its related
asset or combination of assets, and on this basis conducts
impairment test for goodwill annually.

The recoverable amount of an asset, asset group or set of asset
groups is the higher of its fair value (see Note 111.20) less costs
to sell and its present value of expected future cash flows.

An asset group is the smallest identifiable group of assets
that generates cash inflows that are largely independent
of the cash inflows from other assets or asset groups. An
asset group is composed of assets directly relating to cash-
generation. Identification of an asset group is based on whether
major cash inflows generated by the asset group are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or asset
groups. In identifying an asset group, the Group also considers
how management monitors the Group’s operations and how
management makes decisions about using or disposing of the
Group’s assets.

The present value of expected future cash flows of an asset
is determined by discounting the future cash flows, estimated
to be derived from continuing use of the asset and from
its ultimate disposal, to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate.

If the result of the recoverable amount estimation indicates the
recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. That reduction is recognized as an impairment loss
and charged to profit or loss for the current period. A provision
for impairment loss of the asset is recognized accordingly.
For impairment losses related to an asset group or a set of
asset groups, first reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the asset group or set of asset groups, and then
reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the asset
group or set of asset groups on a pro rata basis. However,
the carrying amount of an impaired asset will not be reduced
below the highest of its individual fair value less costs to sell
(if determinable), the present value of expected future cash
flows (if determinable) and zero.

Once an impairment loss is recognized, it is not reversed in
a subsequent period.

R
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20.

21.

Fair value measurement

Unless otherwise stated, the Group measures the fair value

according to the following principles:

Fair value is the price which the market participants can receive
from sale of an asset or shall pay for the transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction occurring on the measurement date.

When estimating fair value, the Group considers the
characteristics (including status and location of assets,
restrictions on the sale or use of assets, etc.) considered by
market participants when they determine the price of relevant
assets or liabilities on the measurement date, and adopts
valuation techniques which are applicable in the current
situation and supported by sufficient available data and other
information. The valuation techniques mainly include market
approach, income approach and cost approach.

Provisions

A provision is recognized for an obligation related to a
contingency if the Group has a present obligation that can
be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.

A provision is initially measured at the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the related present obligation.
Where the effect of time value of money is material, provisions
are determined by discounting the expected future cash
flows. Factors pertaining to a contingency such as the risks,
uncertainties and time value of money are taken into account
as a whole in reaching the best estimate. Where there is a
continuous range of possible outcomes for the expenditure
required, and each possible outcome in that range is as likely
as any other, the best estimate is the mid-point of that range.
Otherwise, the best estimate is determined based on the
following circumstances:

—  Where the contingency involves a single item, the best
estimate is the most likely outcome.

—  Where the contingency involves multiple items, the best
estimate is determined by weighting all possible outcomes
by their associated probabilities.

The Group reviewed the carrying amount of a provision at the
balance sheet date and adjusted the carrying amount to the
current best estimate.
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22.

Revenue

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits arising in the
course of the Group’s ordinary activities when the inflows result
in increase in shareholder’s equity, other than increase relating
to contributions from shareholders. Revenue is recognized in
profit or loss when it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group, the revenue and costs can be measured
reliably and the following respective conditions are met.

(1) Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when all of
the general conditions stated above and the following
conditions are satisfied:

—  The significant risks and rewards of ownership of
goods have been transferred to the buyers;

— The Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvements to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold.

Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fair
value of the considerations received or receivable under
the sales contract or agreement.

(2) Rendering of services

Revenue from rendering of services is measured at the
fair value of the considerations received or receivable
under the contract or agreement.

At the balance sheet date, where the outcome of a
transaction involving the rendering of services can be
estimated reliably, revenue from the rendering of services
is recognized in the income statement by reference to
the stage of completion of the transaction based on the
progress of work performed or the ratio of cost happened
to the proportion of total estimated cost.

Where the outcome of rendering of services cannot be
estimated reliably, if the costs incurred are expected to be
recoverable, revenues are recognized to the extent that
the costs incurred that are expected to be recoverable,
and an equivalent amount is charged to profit or loss as
service cost; if the costs incurred are not expected to be
recoverable, the costs incurred are recognized in profit
or loss and no service revenue is recognized.

(3) Interest income

Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis
with reference to the principle and the applicable effective
interest rate.

(4) Royalty income of intangible assets

Royalty income of intangible assets is calculated based
on the agreed charging time and method in the relevant
contract or agreement.
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23. Employee benefits

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

Short-term employee benefits

Employee wages or salaries, bonuses, social security
contributions such as medical insurance, work injury
insurance, maternity insurance and housing fund,
measured at the amount incurred or at the applicable
benchmarks and rates, are recognised as a liability as
the employee provides services, with a corresponding
charge to profit or loss or included in the cost of assets
where appropriate.

Post-employment benefits — defined contribution plans

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations of the
People’s Republic of China, the Group participated in
a defined contribution basic pension insurance in the
social insurance system established and managed by
government organisations. The Group makes contributions
to basic pension insurance plans based on the applicable
benchmarks and rates stipulated by the government. Basic
pension insurance contributions are recognised as part
of the cost of assets or charged to profit or loss as the
related services are rendered by the employees.

Termination benefits

When the Group terminates the employment with
employees before the employment contracts expire, or
provides compensation under an offer to encourage
employees to accept voluntary redundancy, a provision
is recognised with a corresponding expense in profit or
loss at the earlier of the following dates:

—  When the Group cannot unilaterally withdraw the
offer of termination benefits because of an employee
termination plan or a curtailment proposal.

—  When the Group has a formal detailed restructuring
plan involving the payment of termination benefits
and has raised a valid expectation in those affected
that it will carry out the restructuring by starting to
implement that plan or announcing its main features
to those affected by it.

Early retirement benefits

The early retirement benefits are recognized only when
the Group has clear commitment to provide benefits to
the staff who initially retire early and the commitment
cannot be withdrawn unilaterally. If the related payment is
over one year and the amount is significant, the amounts
should be measured at discounted value.
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25.

Government grants

Government grants are transfers of monetary assets or non-
monetary assets from the government to the Group at no
consideration except for the capital contribution from the
government as an investor in the Group. Special funds such
as investment grants allocated by the government, if clearly
defined in official documents as part of “capital reserve”
are dealt with as capital contributions, and not regarded as
government grants.

A government grant is recognized when there is reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and that the Group
will comply with the conditions attaching to the grant.

If a government grant is in the form of a transfer of a
monetary asset, it is measured at the amount that is received
or receivable. If a government grant is in the form of a transfer
of a non-monetary asset, it is measured at its fair value.

A government grant obtained by the Group for acquisition or
construction or in the form of long-term asset is deemed to
be related to an asset. A government grant obtained by the
Group other than asset-related government grants is deemed
to be related to income. A government grant related to an
asset is recognized initially as deferred income and equally
amortized to profit or loss in the same period over the useful
life of the asset. A government grant related to income that
compensates the Group for expenses or losses to be incurred
in the subsequent periods is recognized initially as deferred
income and recognized in profit or loss in the same period
in which the expenses are recognized. A government grant
that compensates the Group for expenses or losses incurred
is recognized in profit or loss immediately.

Income tax

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they relate to business combinations or items
recognised directly in equity (including other comprehensive
income).

Current tax is the expected income tax payable calculated at
the applicable tax rate on taxable income for the year, plus any
adjustment to income tax payable in respect of previous years.

At the balance sheet date, current tax assets and liabilities
are offset if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set
them off and also intends either to settle on a net basis or
to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

I
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductib

taxable temporary differences respectively, being the differences

between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and their
tax bases, which include the deductible losses and tax credits
carried forward to subsequent years. Deferred tax assets are
recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilized.

Deferred tax is not recognized for the temporary differences
arising from the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a
transaction that is not a business combination and that affects
neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (or deductible
loss). Deferred tax is not recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising from the initial recognition of goodwill.

At the balance sheet date, the carrying amount of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are measured based on the expected
manner of recovery or settlement of the carrying amount of
the assets and liabilities, using tax rates that are expected to
be applied in the period when the asset is recovered or the
liability is settled in accordance with tax laws.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
each balance sheet date. The carrying amount of a deferred
tax asset is reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the
benefits of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

At the balance sheet date, deferred tax assets and liabilities
are offset if all the following conditions are met:

— the taxable entity has the legal rights to settle the income
tax assets and income tax liabilities for the current period
by net amount;

—  theyrelate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority
on either the taxable entity has a legally enforceable
right or set off current income tax assets against current
income tax liabilities, and different taxable entities which
either intend to settle the current income tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis, or to realize the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or recovered.
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26. Operating and finance leases

A lease is classified as either a finance lease or an operating
lease. A finance lease is a lease that transfers substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of a leased
asset to the lessee, irrespective of whether the legal title to
the asset is eventually transferred or not. An operating lease
is a lease other than a finance lease.

(1)

(2)

Operating lease charges

Rental payments under operating leases are recognized
as costs or expenses on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

Assets acquired under finance leases

When the Group acquires an asset under a finance lease,
the asset is measured at an amount equal to the lower
of its fair values and the present value of the minimum
lease payments, each determined at the inception of
the lease. The minimum lease payments are recorded as
long-term payables. The difference between the value
of the leased assets and the minimum lease payments is
recognized as unrecognized finance charges. Initial direct
costs that are attributable to a finance lease incurred
by the Group are added to the amounts recognized for
the leased asset. Depreciation and impairment losses are
accounted for in accordance with the accounting policies
described in Notes I11.13(2) and 1l1.19, respectively.

If there is a reasonable certainty that the Group will obtain
ownership of a leased asset at the end of the lease term,
the leased asset is depreciated over its estimated useful
life. Otherwise, the leased asset is depreciated over the
shorter of the lease term and its estimated useful life.

Unrecognized finance charge under finance lease is
amortized using an effective Interest method over the lease
term. The amortization is accounted for in accordance
with policies of borrowing costs (see Note Ill.15).

At the balance sheet date, long-term payables arising from
finance leases, net of the unrecognized finance charges,
are presented into long-term liabilities and long-term
liabilities due within one year.

-
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27.

Sale and leaseback

(3)

Sale and leaseback refers to the arrangement where
the seller (being the lessee) of a self-developed or
externally-acquired asset leases back the same asset
from the purchaser (being the lesser). Where a leaseback
transaction is determined to be accounted for under a
finance lease, the difference between the sale price and
the carrying amount of the involving asset is deferred
and amortised over the useful lives of the leased asset
as an adjustment to the depreciation expenses. Where
a leaseback transaction is determined to be accounted
for under an operating lease and there is conclusive
evidence that the leaseback transaction is established at
fair value, the difference between the sale price and the
carrying amount of the involving asset shall be included
in profit or loss. Where a leaseback transaction is not
established at fair value, relevant profit or losses shall be
recognized in the current period. However, where relevant
losses will be offset by future lease payment which is less
than the market price, such losses shall be deferred and
amortised over the expected useful lives of the involving
asset using the same method as applied in recognizing
rental expenses. Where the sale price is higher than the
fair value, such excess shall be deferred and amortised
over the expected useful lives of the asset.

Assets held for sale

The non-current assets (or disposal group, same below) which
meet both of the following conditions, are classified as held
for sale. A disposal group is a group of assets that are handled
collectively through disposals or other approaches in a single
transaction, and liabilities directly associated with those assets
that will be transferred in the transaction.

— Such assets in their current condition may be sold
immediately only in accordance with the usual terms of
sales of such assets;

—  The Group has resolved on the disposal of such assets;

— The Company has signed the Irrevocable transfer
agreement with the transferee, and the transfer will be
completed within one year.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale (excluding financial
assets (refer to Note Ill. 9) and deferred tax assets (refer to
Note Ill. 25)) are measured at carrying amount or fair value
(refer to Note Ill. 20) less disposal cost, whichever is lower.
The excess of their carrying amount over their fair value (refer
to Note Ill. 20) less disposal cost are recognized as impairment
loss on assets.

No provisions for depreciation are made in respect of fixed
assets classified as held for sale.
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28. Profit distributions to shareholders

29.

Dividends or distributions of profits proposed in the profit
appropriation plan which will be considered and approved
after the balance sheet date, are not recognized as a liability
at the balance sheet date but disclosed in the notes separately.

Related parties

If a party has the power to control, jointly control or exercise
significant influence over another party, or where two or

more parties are sub ect to common control,

joint control or

significant influence from another party, they are considered
to be related parties. Related parties may be individuals or
enterprises. Enterprises which is under common control only
from the State and that have no other related party relationships
are not regarded as related parties of the Group. Related parties
of the Group and Company include, but are not limited to:

the Company’s parent;

the Company’s subsidiaries;

enterprises that are controlled by the Company’s parent;
investors that have joint control or exercise significant
influence over the Group;

enterprises or individuals under control or joint control
with the Group;

joint ventures of the Group,
joint ventures;

including subsidiaries of

associates of the Group,
associates;

including subsidiaries of

principal individual investors and close family members
of the Group;

key management personnel of the Group and close family
members of such individuals;

key management personnel of the Company’s parent;

close family members of key management personnel of
the Company’s parent; and

other enterprises that are controlled or jointly controlled
by principal individual investors, key management
personnel of the Group, and close family members of
such individuals.
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Besides the related parties stated above, deter

accordance with the requirements of CAS, the following

enterprises and individuals are considered as (but not restricted
to) relate parties of the Group or Company based on the
requirements of Administrative Procedures on the Information
Disclosures of Listed Companies issued by the CSRC:

(m) enterprises or persons that act in concert that hold 5%
or more of the Company’s shares;

individuals and close family members of such individuals
who directly or indirectly hold 5% or more of the
Company’s shares, supervisors for listed companies and
their close family members;

enterprises that satisfy any of the aforesaid conditions in
(a), (c) and (m) during the past 12 months or will satisfy
them within the next 12 months pursuant to a relevant
agreement;

individuals who satisfy any of the aforesaid conditions in
(i), (j) and (n) during the past 12 months or will satisfy
them within the next 12 months pursuant to a relevant
agreement; and

enterprises, other than the Company and subsidiaries
controlled by the Company, which are controlled directly
or indirectly by an individual defined in (i), (j), (n) or (p),
or in which such an individual assumes the position of
a director or senior executive.

Segment reporting

The Group determines the operating segments on the basis
of internal structure, management requirements and internal
reporting system, and determines reporting segments based on
the operating segments. An operating segment is a component
of the Group that meets the following criteria:

— that may earn revenue and incur expenses in daily business
activities;

— whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the
Group’s management to allocate its resources and assess
its performance;

—  for which discrete financial information on financial
positions, financial performance and cash flow is available
to the Group.
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31.

Two or more operating segments can be aggregated into one
operating segment if the segments have similar economic
characteristics and the segments are similar in each of the
following respects:

— the nature of each product and service;
— the nature of production process;

— the type or class of customers for their products and
services;

—  the methods used to distribute their products or provide
their services;

— the influence brought by law, administrative regulations
on production of products and provision of services.

Inter-segment revenues are measured on the basis of actual
transaction price for such transactions for segment reporting,
and segment accounting policies are consistent with those
used for the preparation of financial statements of the Group.

Significant accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the application
of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ
from these estimates. Key assumptions and judgments on
uncertainties related to estimates are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in
the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future
periods affected.

Apart from the information of risk factors and fair value
assumption of the impairment of goodwill, termination benefits
and financial instruments contained in Notes V. 13 and Note
IX, other key sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(a)

Impairment of receivables

As described in Note Il1.10, receivables that are measured
at amortization cost are reviewed at each balance sheet
date to determine whether there is objective evidence of
impairment. If any such evidence exists, impairment loss
is provided. Objective evidence of impairment includes
observable data that comes to the attention of the
Group about loss events such as a significant decline in
the estimated future cash flow of an individual debtor
or the portfolio of debtors, and significant changes in
the financial condition that have an adverse effect on
the debtor. If there is an indication that the receivables
has recovered to its value and is related to the events
occurred after the recognition of the loss, the impairment
loss recognized in prior years is reversed.

-
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(b)

(c)

Provision for diminution of inventory cost

As stated in Note Ill. 11, the Group estimates the net

realisable value of inventories periodically and recognize
the excess of inventory cost over its net realizable value
as diminution of inventory cost. When making estimation
of the realizable value of inventories, the Group considers
the purpose of holding the inventory based on available
information including its market price and previous
operation costs of the Group. The actual selling price,
production costs and sales expenses and taxes may
vary with sales status, production technologies or the
actual usage of the inventories and the provision for
diminution of inventory cost may change accordingly. The
adjustments to the provision for diminution of inventory
cost will have effects upon the profit and loss for the
period of change in estimation.

Impairment of other assets excluding inventories and
financial assets

As described in Note [l1.19, other assets excluding
inventories and financial assets are reviewed at each
balance sheet date to determine whether the carrying
amount exceeds the recoverable amount of the assets.
If there are indications that the carrying amount of the
long-term asset cannot be recovered, the asset is impaired
and impairment loss is provided.

The recoverable amount of an asset (asset group) is
the greater of its fair value net of selling price and its
present value of expected future cash flows. Since the
market price of the asset (the asset group) cannot be
obtained reliably, and the fair value of the asset cannot
be estimated reliably. Therefore, the present value of
the estimated future cash flows will be as recoverable
amount. In assessing the present value of expected future
cash flows, significant judgments are exercised over the
asset’s production volume, selling price, related operating
expenses and discounting rate to calculate the present
value. All relevant materials which can be obtained are
used for estimation of the recoverable amount, including
the estimation of the production volume, selling price
and related operating expenses based on reasonable and
supportable assumption.
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(d) BIEEE BEEEFEENIT

(e)

()

Ef# sy

WHTFE= 13~ 16FM18FT i » AN &
EHETEE  BFEERRHGS
BREEETEZEREEER  EFH
S ANFHEREMEE - KEE T H
EMEBEENERS® @ LWATH
AT A ERE A ITEREHE P E
B AEFRSEMRAEEREYRA
HEENNEERIT &S BN
WETMET c MRUAAHGETRESE

HEMETHE -

En B B IRAE

AP EER - 30PTI - AKREE R
HIMERGELR  ROERKRT
EmRRHEERENERDIESE
AT RE - BRI EE
R ARREREBEEEM
MEEER AEEEEERRER
BEHERMATERER - EHER
R EfISE DNER - BRI RE R E R 2R
FEHIRE ©

BEEFFFHEE

(AT R K HIR BE S ER 1S 2 59 0 FE 48
DS EMANBENEREER
By - NSRBI AR AT BEEVS BRI I A]
BEMERUEZENEARASER
PR - 3F AR A UL 121 5% B 2 B A 2
PG R R ER T E YRR
EFSHEE - AEEFRERHE
PR Af A R AR ER 15 & 4R B AT 15 28 1 B
MEFE - WRER TR MBR RE
At 18 B8 B SR Y R SR B A P 1S A AR
EITR AR HE - DORE e
RHBEEMFHREENEHE - LRR
KHRERE S B REMER
KEERERAESHMEAETEEN
MAFEEZER  ZEEBHETHME
MEENSHEELTE -

(d)

(e)

()

Depreciation and amortization of fixed assets and
intangible assets

As described in Notes II1.13, 16 and 18, fixed assets and
intangible assets are depreciated and amortized using the
straight-line method over their useful lives after taking
into account residual value. The estimated useful lives
are regularly reviewed to determine the depreciation and
amortization costs charged in each reporting period. The
useful lives are determined based on historical experience
of similar assets and estimated technical changes. If there
is an indication that there has been a change in the factors
used to determine the depreciation or amortization, the
amount of depreciation or amortization is revised.

Product quality warranty

As described in Note V. 30, according to recent
maintenance experience, the Group has made provisions
for providing after-sales quality maintenance to its
customers on the sales of machine tool products. Since
the recent maintenance experience might not reflect the
maintenance information for sold products in the future,
the management needs to apply more judgments to
estimate the provisions. The increase or decrease of the
provisions will affect the profit or loss in the future year.

Deferred tax assets

When assessing whether there will be sufficient future
taxable profits available against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilised, the Group recognises
deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences can be utilised, using
tax rates that would apply in the period when the asset
would be utilised. In determining the amount of deferred
tax assets, the Group makes reasonable judgements and
estimates about the timing and amount of taxable profits
to be utilised in the following periods, and of the tax
rates applicable in the future according to the existing
tax policies and other relevant regulations. If the actual
timing and amount of future taxable profits or the actual
applicable tax rates differ from the estimates made
by management, the differences affect the amount of
deferred tax assets.

.
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» BIE (IV) TAXATION

1> EEBERBE 1. Major types of tax and tax rates
BE BB
Types Tax basis Tax rate
BEHR BEERETENHESMAMEN S BERARERTE 17%
HIADURE - RS HAFENNERREER - 25
D RERIEER
Value added tax In accordance with Tax Law, tax on sales of goods 17 %
or taxable service income for the period after
deducting the current allowed deduction of
tax, the balance should be the taxable VAT in
accordance with the policies
EED RIET & F WA 3% - 5%
Business tax In accordance with taxable operating income 3% - 5%
SR T A R ER REBR BN S E T R ERIBER A 1% - 7%
City construction tax In accordance with actual business tax paid and VAT 1% — 7%
payable
B BN REBR BN EED R ERIGEM R 3%
Education fee surcharges In accordance with actual business tax paid and VAT 3%
payable
75 20 A Mt N REBR BN EED R EIGEM R 2%
Local education surcharges In accordance with actual business tax paid and VAT 2%
payable
REMISH 1R & WA P 1S R AT X it
Enterprise income tax In accordance with income tax payable Note

T

ARRAF - ARFHNFRARRPABHHEAS
RARI(TEAEN])  AZERRREXE
REERAANAZEBDEELER
FEFRBREBRARNELER ) AHE
BHFBHMEA15% (20145F1-6 7 -
15%) o RNRQ A E AT R E)EB TS
HEA25% (20145 1-6 3 : 25%) ©

Bt B R # 3
(1) ARAIFHUER

RARR2012F9813B AR EAS
Mm% BREAIE - RiEF
EEBEEAERBEE - NQFE2012
FEULFEZXZ GBI EMSF
RER - BIEAMEHRRZAAER -
ARREBASTRMSEESE
BESIE2015FE E2017TF EZ SR
MEEMRBHER - Bt ARAREAR
HERMATE R EB15% (20144
1-68 : 15%)

Note: The applicable rate of income tax for the current period of

the Company and the Company’s subsidiaries Kunming TOS,
Xi'an Ser, and Changsha Ser is 15% (for the six months ended
30 June 2014: 15%) and the applicable rate of income tax of
other subsidiaries is 25% (for the six months ended 30 June
2014: 25%).

2. Preferential tax policies and approvals

(1)

Preferential tax policies of the Company

On 13 September 2012, the Company was recognised as
a high and new technology enterprise (“HNTE") with a
valid period of three years. In accordance with China’s
relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, the Company
is entitled to the preferential tax rate for HNTE from
2012 to 2014. As at the date of the financial statements
approval, the Company has passed the review of HNTE
and will enjoy the preferential tax rate for HNTE from
2015 to 2017. Therefore, the Company is subject to 15%
corporate income tax rate for the six months ended 30
June 2015 (for the six months ended 30 June 2014: 15%).
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2)

FRAFHKER

ARABNFARERENHRELSS
FEMEE  ESHBeEEEDN
R H A201648 A27H © RIEH
HEEREREE  7£2013F £2015
FEXRMBMEEMEHER - B
HEMEABERNMEHHEA
15% (2014%51-68 : 15%) °

RIECRA R R A B i 70 30 K 5 3% 8 RE
FHACEMSBHREBEN RS )AEEE
TE v PR 8 A B RN 7 R i s B B 48
EXEH)PRENBBEEEED
¥ -BRREFMERATRRELEDRE
R EFER20145 2 15% ) B K 840
ERSH - 201548298 » % &
BESEHAMBEAREEHIE - 2014
FHEARER15% °

EWBH20154 R LR IGH - &
2 E R LB SRR T RSB
B 58 23 7 14201 54 {8 FI 8 7B B 2K
A - BRI IR 15% KB 5B b 2 A
B8 -

AARKNTRARALZEBN20145F
MANMBEREAR I EMEE
ERBAIF - BREFRBEBEER
HE ALEBAE2014FE2016%F
ZEZETEMCEMSHRER - At
AL BEBREABEANEREERA
15%(201451-68 : 15%) °

BREHEEAS BN EREEIEE
BNE WA 20145103158 48 8
FCER A TRAEE2014F 5 —dt#
RESTEMEEREMNEAN) K
DEREBEERATEBSEMEE -
BIEFEAREERRE  ROEB
E2014F E2016F =X m M
X¥MEHRERE - AEDEBEAL
HiE AT B EB15% (20144
1-68 : 15%)

(2)

Preferential tax policies of the subsidiaries

Kunming TOS was recognised as an HNTE with the high-
tech enterprise certificate expiring on 27 August 2016.
In accordance with relevant laws and regulations in the
PRC, Kunming TOS is entitled to the preferential tax rate
for HNTE from 2013 to 2015. Kunming TOS is subject to
15% corporate income tax rate for the current period
(for the six months ended 30 June 2014: 15%).

According to the Notice Issues on Tax Policies for the
Implementation of the Strategy Further Exploration
and Development of the Western Region, Kunming
TOS qualifies as an enterprise engaging in encouraged
industries as listed in the Encouraged Industries Catalog
in the Western Region. Kunming TOS has submitted an
application to Kunming State Taxation bureau for applying
a preferential income tax rate of 15% for the year 2014,
and such application was approved by Kunming State
Taxation Bureau on 29 April 2015. Hence Kunming TOS
was subject to 15% corporate income tax rate for 2014.

Kunming TOS satisfied the above the conditions in 2015
and the management anticipated that Kunming TOS could
have the approval from Kunming State Taxation Bureau
for using preferential income tax rate for the year 2015.
Therefore, Kunming TOS is subject to 15% corporate
income tax rate for 2015.

Xi'an Ser was recognised as HNTE in 11 November 2014
with a valid period of three years. In accordance with
China’s relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, the
Company is entitled to the preferential tax rate for HNTE
from 2014 to 2016. The Company is subject to 15%
corporate income tax rate for the year 2015 (for the six
months ended 30 June 2014: 15%).

According to the Notice of publicity of Hunan Province the
second batch proposed recognised high-tech enterprises
list in 2014 issued by the office of Hunan Province High-
tech Enterprise Management Leading Group in 15 October
2014 Changsha Ser continued to be recognised as HNTE.
In accordance with China’s relevant laws and regulations
in the PRC, the Company is entitled to the preferential
tax rate for HNTE from 2014 to 2016. The Company is
subject to 15% corporate income tax rate for the year
2015 (for the six months ended 30 June 2014: 15%).

I -
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KRR EETRE (V) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FIN

STATEMENTS
ExsEe 1. Cash at bank and on hand

THEEN  ARKETT
Unit: RMB
20156 H30H 2014128318
IHH Item 30 June 2015 31 December 2014
EFR4 Cash on hand 651,986.71 644,101.93
IRITIF Cash at banks 79,074,631.42 123,565,945.78
HEmEkEs Other monetary funds 54,405,931.58 38,817,949.91
&5t Total 134,132,549.71 163,027,997.62
M2015F6A30H  AEE AR As at 30 June 2015, the Group’'s security deposits with

54,405,898.127C(20144E12 A31H : AR
38,817,949.91 L) MRBEFHKAEARE
B IMNE FIREBE R R HIRE & MIBITE
HIEZRES -

BUEE
(1) BREETHE

carrying amount of RMB54,405,898.12 (31 December 2014:
RMB38,817,949.91) were used as deposits for foreign exchange
payment, issuing letters of guarantee and bank acceptance bills.

Bills receivable

(1) Classification of bills receivable

THEENMN  ARET
Unit: RMB

2015456 A30H 20145128318
BE Type 30 June 2015 31 December 2014
RITEHES Bank acceptance notes 25,122,778.10 49,153,485.97
HE SN Commercial acceptance notes 3,667,410.00 16,081,174.00
BET Total 28,790,188.10 65,234,659.97

FREREEAR—FREH -

(2) BREEEIMRAGEEEABRA
HARZ e B R

The above bills receivable are due within one year.

(2) Bills receivable endorsed or discounted at the end of the
period and undue at the balance sheet date:

TRRENMN  ARET

Unit: RMB
BRZKILBRASE BARRKRILERSE
Amount Amount not

derecognized at the derecognized at the

BE Type end of the period end of the period
RITERNEZ Bank acceptance notes 127,550,088.58 -
AN ES Commercial acceptance notes = 2,139,410.00
BEF Total 127,550,088.58 2,139,410.00

(3) HIRAEEEALZEARBHOMASHE
HBREREFNRR -

(3) As at the end of the period, no bills receivable transferred
to accounts receivable due to non-compliance of any bill
drawer.
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(1) BREZZREFBEFNIWET

(2)

3. Accounts receivable

(1) Analysis of accounts receivable by the type of customers:

THENMN - ARKT

Unit: RMB

201566 A30H 2014128314

Ll Type of customers 30 June 2015 31 December 2014
F=h Third party 925,741,387.46 808,171,448.96
)iy Related party 1,374,658.33 1,396,094.95

Subtotal
Less: provision for bad and
doubtful debts

927,116,045.79

249,531,325.37

809,567,543.91

236,500,219.26

677,584,720.42

573,067,324.65

201546 H30H
30 June 2015

The ageing analysis of accounts receivable is as follows:

THENMN ARKET

Unit: RMB
2014%12A31H

31 December 2014

=18 Total
JEWBR R IZRR B TR0 T - 2)

IR Ageing

1FEAR(E1F) Within 1 year (including 1 year)
1 Z24(£2%) 1 and 2 years (including 2 years)
29 FE3%(&3%) 2 and 3 years (including 3 years)
3T E Over 3 years

NEE Sub-total

W SRR

R B IEUURRAERR B BRI 26T E ©

Less: provision for bad and
doubtful debts

Total

521,641,456.66
172,664,176.02

68,220,000.29
164,590,412.82

382,709,235.37
165,949,537.84

68,439,039.19
192,469,731.51

927,116,045.79

249,531,325.37

809,567,543.91

236,500,219.26

677,584,720.42

573,067,324.65

from the date of recognition.

The ageing of accounts receivable is calculated starting

-
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ISR WUENENE
30 June 2015 31 December 2014

EEag BEER KEsE HEEE
Carrying amount Provision for bad and doubtful debts Carrying amount Provision for bad and doubtful debts
i i (%) £ | (%) BEEE ¢ (%) k1] $8i(%) EREE
| Type Note Amount  Proportion (%) Amount  Proportion (%) Book value Amount  Proportion (%) Amount  Proportion (%) Book value

EESEEATEEHE Idvidually significant accounts
FEEBNENER receivable with individual bad
debt provision @ 357117676 3504 14,804,685.70 4
REREREHBAE Bad debt provision for accounts
FEEEORUES recevable by combination with

oo

6 31092649106 255,983,20356 3162 1246529579 481 W01

credit risk characters
ey Receivable due from the third party (b  599,970,210.70 6471 234,686,639.67 3902 365283571.03 54273890276 67.04 2316557347 012 31957339.9
EhERAE Receivable due from the related

party ] 1,374,658.33 0.15 - - 1,374,658.33 1,396,094.95 01 - & 1,396,094.95
BAs Sub-total 601,344,869.03 6486 234,686,639.67 3903 366,658,229.36  544,134997.71 6721 2316557341 101 32096942424

SESEREREEE  Indhvidually not significant accounts
TRERERD receivable but with indvidual

EhER bad bt provson - - : : VLR EVRE ¥ 0 0 85T
& Tot 27,11606579 1000 H951,3053 B9 IR G865 000 2650021926 DU TIEIIUS
(a) HRBESESAWEFIIE (a) Individually significant accounts receivable with

TIEREENEYIRR individual bad debt provision as at the end of the
period:
2HEEN  ARKT
Unit: RMB
RESE BREE FHRIA  GHRER
Provision for
Carrying bad and Reasons for
£nEn Type amount  doubtful debts Proportion  making provision
BREBAHPHEZA Single accounts receivable over  284,382,789.76 = - EBRENRR
RERBI0ETE)  RMB7,000,000 in machine FERERE
YR tools business Impairment occurred

under individual
assessment method

Es B O BREHER Single accounts receivable over  41,388,387.00 14,844,685.70 35.87% ERMERAA
NHmEEARE  RMB7,000,000 in turbo T REERE
BB700Z LA machines business Impairment occurred
R under individual

assessment method

= Total 325,771,176.76 14,844,685.70 456% -
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Mad  BIRZEE DA
RIBRERNE =T RIARXK

(b) Provisions for accounts receivable due from the third
party in groups using ageing analysis method:

THEMN  ARKT

Unit: RMB
AREERER BERER R LB
Provision for
Carrying bad and

AR Ee Ageing amount doubtful debts Proportion
1E A Within one year 261,823,682.24 13,091,184.11 5%
1826 1-2 years 129,388,135.12 38,816,440.54 30%
2E3F 2-3 years 44,404,167.59 26,642,500.55 60%
3FLE Over 3 years 164,354,225.75 156,136,514.47 95%
CEl Total 599,970,210.70 234,686,639.67 -

JiE U B B 5 SRR (c) Accounts receivable due from related parties
BEEE : ARKT
Unit: RMB
1 FE W BR X
HER LB
Wit EAKEREE Ex-] (%)
Percentage of
Relationship total accounts
with the receivable
BNEB Name Note Group Amount (%)
AR AR  Shenyang Machine Tool 4 -6 RS 1,123,219.99 0.12

NE([EFHER ) Co., Ltd. (“Shenyang X.6  Related party
Machine Tool")
EEEHAREE  Shiess GmbH, Germany  + -6 BB 251,438.34 0.03
NEI([ERAE])  (“Shiess”) X.6  Related party

NG Total 1,374,658.33 0.15
M2015%F6H30H + & % As at 30 June 2015, the Group conducted individual

& e Y A B 7 R R E 1T (@ Bl RY
i RBEFTIRERES -

assessment on accounts receivables due from related
parties and considered that there was no need to
make provisions for bad and doubtful debts.

I -
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4)

(5)

(6)

AEIEHE « IS 8 B S B  (1E
W

4)

The provision, recovery and reversal of bad%#b
the period:

THE : ARBTT
Unit: RMB

it 201556 H30H 2014%12H31H
HH Item Note 30 June 2015 31 December 2014
HAE Opening balance 236,500,219.26 203,708,438.99
AHIEHR Provision for the period 19,513,712.30 27,760,486.06
ZRHAUG [B] o 85 el Recovery or reversal during the
period (a) - -424,543.95
RHAZ 8 Write-off during the period (b) -6,482,606.19 -186,000.00
JER—IZHI TESPHEM  Increase in number of business
combinations not under
common control - 5,641,838.16

IR

(a) AEEAHESBEARARE
7008 JT RV R AR 2 U (2 X 88 [

B -

(b) AEEAHESEANARE
7008 JT Y R MR FRAZ BH 1B 0L ©

RN 7 52 B R 68 B AT 1
H JE RSN 18

AEEHABBR ALHOEKERE
H AR#163,347,658.077%  {HEU
BRNEIRR AT EM17.62% + 18
EEHIRMIBIREBIHRBELSTAR
#13,936,654.207T °

1Z R

AEENEEEREEAETERY
MERARERE - REBERETF S
MIHEAR BRE—BREMETER
B—FIH - BRTERESI - FEK
R ERIHE SR RERE AT -
AEERBEF UENNREEMR
HERFRERTOERAY > — 8RR —
=={A -

Closing balance

(5)

(6)

249,531,325.37 236,500,219.26

(a) During the reporting period, no provision for bad
debts for the Group of more than RMB7 million
was reversed or collected.

(b) During the reporting period, there was no written-
off for the Group’s accounts receivable of more
than RMB7 million.

Top five accounts receivable by debtor as at the end of
the period

The Group's top five balances of accounts receivable as
at the end of the period totaled RMB163,347,658.07,
accounting for 17.62% of the Group’s total balance of
accounts receivable as at the end of the period, and
the aggregate provision for bad debts made accordingly
amounted to RMB13,936,654.20.

Credit policy

The account receivables of the Group were mainly in the
form of payment for goods with granted credit period
and deposit for warranty, which generally would due after
one year of installation of the products according to the
sales contracts entered into with customers. Except for
deposit for warranty, all payments are payable by the
end of the negotiated credit term. The Group would
grant credit term of one to three months in general
to customers according to their payment records and
transaction performance.
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4 FEMNFIER 4.

(1) FANZKIBEZIES R0 T

Prepayments

(1)

Prepayments by category

THE : ARKTT
Unit: RMB

20156 H30H 2014%12H31H
HE Item 30 June 2015 31 December 2014
FER MR Prepayment for materials 39,014,121.07 31,744,907.32
He Others 4,822,944.24 3,573,556.23
A&t Total 43,837,065.31 35,318,463.55
(2) FEIEIEIZERES 5 (2) Ageing analysis of prepayments
TEE  ARET
Unit: RMB
201566 H30H 2014%12A318
30 June 2015 31 December 2014
¢ £ Bil(%) ¢ £ 6il(%)
R Ageing Amount Proportion (%) Amount Proportion (%)
TEAA(E14E)  Within 1 year
(including 1 year) 39,958,589.92 91.15  14,030,835.51 39.73
1224 (&2%)  1-2 years (including 2 years) 1,709,121.55 3.90 19,143,210.60 54.20
2E3E(E35F)  2-3 years (including 3 years) 519,362.88 1.19 1,402,086.27 3.97
3FE Over 3 years 1,649,990.96 3.76 742,331.17 2.10
At Total 43,837,065.31 100.00  35,318,463.55 100.00

R B TR BUARER A BB E ©

(3) KENYHREFA R KEFREH L
&N HBIEH

ANEEHRBBERIALHENTES
5+18,113,176.537C » 15 T8 F 7} 1B HA
RHREEFTHAL41.32% °

3)

The ageing of prepayments is calculated starting from
the date of recognition.

Top five balances of prepayments by prepaid item as at
the end of the period

The Group’s top five balances of prepayments as at the
end of the period totaled RMB18,113,176.53 accounting
for 41.32% of the Group'’s total balance of prepayments
as at the end of the period.

R

MEEEEARKROERLE 2015 FHHE




2)

-

T EER AT

e Cpllia

s R T A -
- (1) Analysis of other receivables by

2014512 A31H

20156 H30H

EFEER Type of customers 30 June 2015 31 December 2014
E= Third party 24,223,166.65 21,624,670.38
B7):pa) Related party _ 447 .68
NEF Sub-total 24,223,166.65 21,625,118.06
W AR Less: provision for bad

and doubtful debts 4,428,977.08 3,595,124.83
= Total 19,794,189.57 18,029,993.23

H A RUCGRIRRREE D AT a0 T

(2) Ageing analysis of other receivables:

LB ARBT
Unit: RMB

20156 H30H 2014%12A831H
BRiR Ageing 30 June 2015 31 December 2014
TFRA(E1F) Within 1 year

(including 1 year) 18,837,356.83 15,804,143.92

1FEE2F(52F) 1-2 years (including 2 years) 2,687,717.92 3,286,963.13

2FEEIF(E3F) 2-3 years (including 3 years) 199,809.97 135,392.40

3F E Over 3 years 2,498,281.93 2,398,618.61

N Sub-total 24,223,166.65 21,625,118.06
B AR Less: provision for bad

and doubtful debts 4,428,977.08 3,595,124.83

A&t Total 19,794,189.57 18,029,993.23

RicEHEMEKRER B LGS

& o

from the date of recognition.

The ageing of other receivables is calculated starting

Interim Report 2015 Shenji Group Kunming Machine Tool Company Limited

1 I




(3) EMERATERKE

(3) Analysis of other receivables by category:

EHEMN  ARETT

Unit: RMB
W15E68308 WHENA3NA
30 June 3015 31 December 2014
FEbE BRER BEnE SRER
Carrying amount Provision for bad and doubtful debts Carrying amount Provision for bad and doubtful debts
# 48 (%) Ei ] Eef(%) EREE i Hf(%) 48 (%) KEEE
o] Item Note Amount  Proportion (%) Amount  Proportion (%) Book value Amount  Proportion (%) Amount  Proportion (%) Book Value
FREEATER  induidually significant other
HRERERD receivables with individually bag
debt provision ] - - -
Bad debt provision for other
receivables by combination with
credit risk characters
L EEEY Receivables due from third party ~ (B)  22,02234.91 091 397150141 1803 1805082350 19259, 221.12 89.06 359512483 1867 15,664,09%.89
ENERAE Receivables due from related party - 44768 - - 4768
g8t Sub-total 20223491 091 3971,501.41 1803 1805082350  19,259,669.40 89.06 359512483 1867 15,664544.57
SESERERAEE  Indvidually not significant other
HRERERN receivables but with individuall
L DE bad debt provision 2,200841.74 09 ATATSET 079 1336607 236544856 10.94 - 2.365,448.66
aif Total 24.223,166.65 10000 4428977.08 1828 1979418957 21,625,186 10000 3,595,124.83 1662 18029993.3
(a) HIRAEBEFEHESHEEAL (a) No other receivables was individually significant and
BERETEREFENEME assessed individually for bad and doubtful debts at
WK o the end of reporting period.
(b)y #HeEd - BHRZEEERD AR (b) Other receivables due from the third party in groups

REREBNFE =T EMEW

with provision for bad and doubtful debts using

K ageing analysis method:

wEEEN - ARKET
Unit: RMB
MR EAEE BRER R B

Provision for

bad and
RE Ageing Carrying amount doubtful debts Proportion (%)
1EAR Within 1 year 17,606,879.96 678,818.67 3.86%
1225 1-2 years 2,245,524.43 1,122,762.22 50.00%
2E35F 2-3 years 199,809.97 199,809.97 100.00%
3ERF Over 3 years 1,970,110.55 1,970,110.55 100.00%

SH Total 22,022,324.91 3,971,501.41

-
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(5)

the year:

2015%F6H30H

4

HH Item Note 30 June 2015

ERY e Opening balance 3,595,124.83 2,944,569.21

AHIEH R Provision for the period 833,852.25 639,252.01

ANERUY O] 5 EE ] Recovery or reversal during the period (a) = -43,891.10

NERZ 8 Write-off during the period (b) = =

JEE—ZHI T E AP Increase in number of business

bl combinations not under common control - 55,194.71

HIRAEE Closing balance 4,428,977.08 3,595,124.83

(a) AHAEERZFELATEMNEM (a) During the reporting period, no significant bad
FEM R RN hag [ - debt provision for other receivables was reversed

or collected.

(b) ZANHA AR £ (B Kk 3% A4 H 4ib fE IR (b) During the reporting period, there was no significant
TZ4H o writing-off for other receivables.

A WK IE 5 E 1 E 75 2R 18 (5) Other receivables by nature

THEN  ARBT
Unit: RMB

201546 A30R 20145128318
HIEME Nature 30 June 2015 31 December 2014
e Deposit 5,986,913.40 10,032,288.40
wHRS Petty cash 6,062,734.10 2,847,914.45
Hb Others 12,173,519.15 8,744,915.21
NEF Sub-total 24,223,166.65 21,625,118.06
i EEBEE(E Less: provision for bad debts 4,428,977.08 3,595,124.83

Total 19,794,189.57

18,029,993.23

31 December 014 g
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(6) BRI EZFEHI IR EREEAI B

(6) Top five other receivables by debtor as at the end of the

B E il JEW K 1E period
wEEEN  AR¥T
Unit: RMB
HEAEK
HHRRE
HIEW CHE L] BRER
#E BRAE Ki E (%) HAREBE
Percentage
of total
balance Balance of
of other provision
receivables for bad
at the end debts at
Closing of the the end of
BUER Name of company Nature balance Ageing period (%) the period
RRABRREERAA Far Eastern International RESR 3,888,888.00 14 LAA 16.05 194,444 40
Leasing Co., Ltd. Deposit Within one
year
PEFEEEEAERNER China Kangfu International ~ RE2 1,787,240.00 1A 7.38 89,362.00
NG Leasing Co., Ltd. Deposit Within one
year
ERHARSETIRAMBARF Kunming Qu Chuang R 1,090,000.00 1ELAR 4.50 54,500.00
Construction Co., Ltd. Fund Within one
transfer year
BINKE BT Lanzhou Pump Factory RES 749,600.00 2FLRA 3.09 307,480.00
Deposit Within two
years
Ex Liu Yun ik 583,938.00 14ELAM 2.4 29,196.90
Petty cash Within one
year
&t Total 8,099,666.00 33.43 674,983.30
6 G5 Inventories
(1) FEZHE (1) Inventories by category
RREE  ARKT
Unit: RMB
201556A308 20145128318
30 June 2015 31 December 2014
RESE HERR KaEE RESE HEER KEERE
Provision for Provision for
diminution diminution
Inventories by in value of in value of
FEME category Carrying amount inventories Book value  Carrying amount inventories Book value
FRbtH Raw materials 139,858,208.18 3435,619.64  136,422,58854  131,327,077.75 3435,619.64  127,891,458.11
REH Consumables 4,486,498.53 82,781.00 4,403,717.53 4,599,897.80 82,781.00 4517,116.80
fEm Work in progress 635,095,550.89 16,848,131.97 61824741892  648,085,763.42 16,848,131.97  631,237,631.45
EhER Finished goods 161,281,230.17 8,274,992.42 153,006,237.75  140,689,133.17 8,274992.42  132,414140.75
REENInE Commissioned
processing materials 777,619.34 - 777,619.34 615,414.73 - 615,414.73
At Total 941,499,107.11 2864152503 912,857,582.08  925,317,286.87 28,641,52503  896,675,761.84

AEEGFEMRGETISEREN

BRE2H -

AEBHPRLEARERNGEE
(2014%12H318 : &) -

The Group's inventories’ closing balance did not include
borrowing costs capitalized amount.

As at the end of the period, no inventory was pledged
by the Group (2014: nil).

I -
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2) FEXHEZERLTHT

(2) Analysis of the movements of inventories for%é

o

period
BB ARKT
Unit: RMB
201561A1H 2015%6H30H
BE A B M EHROE ®E
Balance at Increase during Decrease during Balance at
BEEE Inventories by category 1 Jan 2015 the period the period 30 June 2015
EoE] Raw materials 131,327,077.75  222,779,125.39  214,247,994.96  139,858,208.18
FE Consumables 4,599,897.80 3,518,464.49 3,631,863.76 4,486,498.53
EER Work in progress 648,085,763.42  387,127,131.13  400,117,343.66  635,095,550.89
EFEm Finished goods 140,689,133.17  298,167,472.34  277,575,375.34  161,281,230.17

ZEAMINE Commissioned processing

materials 615,414.73 1,057,666.72 895,462.11 777,619.34
Nt Sub-total 925,317,286.87  912,649,860.07  896,468,039.83  941,499,107.11

B FERERR

&5 Total

(3) FREKEERF

Less: Provision for diminution in
value of inventories

28,641,525.03 =

= 28,641,525.03

896,675,761.84  912,649,860.07

896,468,039.83

912,857,582.08

(3) Provision for diminution in value of inventories

TEHE  ARKT
Unit: RMB
20151818 K
20156 A30 A /%8

Balance at 1 Jan 2015

BYERASASERANTEIAR
TTEITHREAEDEAISRBIMARK
32 B EE dn R P B R TT BT E R SRR AR
B - ARBRBFABCEMEmR ° Z
FHRMEMB RRAF B

<
P!
257 o

FEES Inventories by category and 30 June 2015

B Raw materials 3,435,619.64

[EsE Ak Consumables 82,781.00

EES Work in progress 16,848,131.97

EFE 5 Finished goods 8,274,992.42

&5t Total 28,641,525.03

HttRe&EE 7. Other Current assets

B n# EEDE (1) Other current assets by category

TEEMN ARET

Unit: RMB

20156 H30H 2014%12A31H

IH H Item 30 June 2015 31 December 2014

TE &0 18 (E R Prepaid value-added tax - 1,724,042.72

R ERITIE B 2 Guaranteed capital type bank
financial products 23,000,000.00 -
&5t Total 23,000,000.00 1,724,042.72

The financial products were the Group held guaranteed
capital type legal person 35 days stable profit RMB
financial product issued by ICBC and BOC guaranteed
capital financial product — regular open RMB financial
product issued by Bank of China. Both financial products

are guaranteed capital floating income type.
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THEEEREE

(1)

(2)

(3)

4)

8. Available-for-Sale Financial Assets

AR EL@EEIRI (1) Information of available-for-sale financial assets:
EHEENM - ARKT
Unit: RMB
201556830 20145125318
30 June 2015 31 December 2014
REHE HEER FEEE i AEER HEEE
Carrying Provision for Carrying Provision for
A Item amount diminution Book value amount diminution Book value
ARnERATE- Available-for-sale
ARG 8 equity instrument
- measured by cost 3,145,000.00 2,000,000.00 1,145,000.00 3,145,000.00 2,000,000.00 1,145,000.00
HREZEKAGFENAHLESRE (2) Available-for-sale financial assets measured by cost at
-3 the end of the period:
EREEN - ARKT
Unit: RMB
FEng HEEE
Carrying amount Provision for diminution
EHRE
0158 05 058 05§ Efikh L
151858 L BER)  GRNEHE 151848 L BER)  GRNEHE tAi() BA{H
Proportion of
shares held in
Balanceat Increaseduring  Decrease during  Balance at 30 Balanceat Increase during  Decrease during Balance at the invested ~ Cash dividend
el Invested company 1Jan 2015 the period the period June 2015 1Jan 2015 the period theperiod  30June2015  company (%) for the period
ESRTINE Yunnan Cheng Jiang Copper
Products Plant 200000000 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 0%
TMERRERETRARAT  Hangahou Se Gas Engineerng Co,
L1d {*Hangzhou Ser’) 1,145,00000 1,145,000.00 1145%
ait Total 3,145,000.00 3,145,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00
of & ot B E G E 157 (3) Impairment loss on available-for-sale financial assets

EFETIRMME BRIFEL L4
B RRQTEA19994 $ 32 1B IR &
PHEIRET RERBEERELEE -
BIEARRD T R2009F BHNENE
BEFELRSENRE  AQAA
YRR EHITEE - B E2015
F6H30R EMETIRMRBEL
{EIETE#TTH -

MR201566 8308 A K2014F12A
31 AEBETFETHNEERT
BERAAEBERE TR IEERME
TEERETIRBREEENBR

Full provision for impairment loss on available-for-sale
financial assets of Yunnan Cheng Jiang Copper Products
Plant was made in 1999 because the plant has lost
the ability of sustainable operation. According to the
resolution passed at the 7th meeting of the 6th board
of directors of the Company held in 2009, the Company
began to liquidate this investment project. As at 30 June
2015, the liquidation of Yunnan Chengjiang copper plant
is still in progress.
(4) As at 30 June 2015 and 31 December 2014, the Group
did not have available-for-sale equity instruments which
recorded a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value at the end of the period but no provision was made
for impairment.

-
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2)

EMBREESENT :

(1) Long-term equity investments

2015465308 2014412 ¢

30 June 2015 31 December 2014

EHE ltem
HWHEZ D ERIRE Investments in associates 13,496,926.92 14,384,564.38

RHERERERBEHBER DI

(2) Movements of long-term equity investments during the

™ period:
EREEL  ARKT
Unit: RMB
L
Changes in equity for the period
il L4k L mE HEER
1BE8E  ENRE  MORR BREME  AMSRME EMEERE  BAOAR MEwERE B oRNAME  BRRE
Investment
income Impaiment (losing
recognized Other Declared cash  provision made halance of
Balenceat  Additional Decease  underthe comprehensive  Movementof  dividends during Balanceat  impaiment
HhEEY Invested company 1ln20f5  investment  investment  equity method income ~ otherequity  orprofits  the period Others 30 June 2015 provision
Beds Kssocite
ERRAMERATRAE  Nan Rute Laser Pototyoing
EROAUEZRED  Mawdacuing & Engreeing
Research Co, Ltd. ("an Rute’) 1438456438 163746 = = e e - 13456369

Please refer to Note VII for the related information of
the associate of the Company.
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10 -BEEEE

10. Fixed assets

(1) BIELEIBR (1) Details of fixed assets
B ARKT
Unit: RMB
EEREEN BERE BaRfk ETRE At
Building and ~ Machinery and  Transportation Electronic
EH Item structures equipment equipment equipment Total
R Cost
20151318 Opening balance
i 365,240,384.32  594,372,642.52 32,034,892.90 17,286,953.98 1,008,934,873.72
AKEEM Addition during the period  -42,740,889.44 36,444,125.64 - 1,327,836.06 -4,968,927.74
-BE - Acquisition - 101,709.41 - 122,545.43 224,254 84
—BEHH - Adjustment of assets’
EERE estimated value -42,740,889.44  36,342,416.23 - 1,205290.63  -5,193,182.58
REREHB/E Disposal or scrapped
during the period - -1,212,912.96 - -124,025.08 -1,336,938.04

2015463308 Closing balance

B
RiiE Accumulated depreciation
201551818  Opening balance
Exd
TRERSE Addition during the period

N - Charge for the period
REREDHE  Disposal or scrapped during

the period
2015%6 4308  Closing balance
BB
HEER Impairment provision
20151718  Opening and
20155 closing balance
6A30B 8%
EHEE Carrying amounts

201546308 At 30 June 2015
201561418 At1Jan 2015

322,499,494.88

107,892,503.03
5,651,657.66
5,651,657.66

113,544,160.69

208,955,334.19
257,347,881.29

629,603,855.20 32,034,892.90 18,490,764.96  1,002,629,007.94

316,509,879.96 19,268,525.00 12,820,620.80  456,491,528.79

15,801,637.64 1,276,967.75 683,358.15 23,413,621.20
15,801,637.64 1,276,967.75 683,358.15 23,413,621.20
-1,139,904.56 = -117,520.76 -1,257,425.32

331,171,613.04 20,545,492.75 13,386,458.19  478,647,724.67

2,787,192.51 S 41,365.93 2,828,558.44

295,645,049.65 11,489,400.15 5,062,940.84  521,152,724.83
275,075,570.05 12,766,367.90 4,424967.25  549,614,786.49

MR201566A308  AEEBEFEE
E R FEA AR 995855452
7T(2014%F12A318: A R ¥
10,429,037 .4470) M EE MEEY A
ERITEBERNERR - (2R
SR 17(1))

M2015F6 4308 » KEEEF &
ERFEESARY3,718,689.287T
(20144128318 : ARMOTT)NE
B MZREYAERTREE O IF
m oo (2EMEER - 26(1))

M2015F6H308 » KREEE F &
EHFEA AR 50,461,116.62
t(2014%12/831H: A R ¥
52,874,987.5470) MK S RERIER
HEMZR - BB ERNERR - (&
BHEER - 27(2))

As at 30 June 2015, building and structures of the
Group with net book value of RMB9,958,554.52 were
pledged to banks for short-term loans (31 December
2014: RMB10,429,037.44) (see note V.17(1)).

As at 30 June 2015, building and structures of the Group
with net book value of RMB13,718,689.28 were pledged
to banks for long-term loans (31 December 2014: nil)
(see note V.26(1)).

As at 30 June 2015, machinery and equipment of the
Group with net book value of RMB50,461,116.62 were
used as mortgage collateral for long-term payables. (31
December 2014: 52,874,987.54) (see note V.27(2)).

R
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(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

EHEHERBEEZEERT

(2)

Temporarily idle fixed assets ~a
wHEN  ARE

T

Unit: RMB

BRERE Retin s AEEE REEE

Accumulated  Impairment Carrying

1HH Item Cost depreciation provision amount
HERR Machinery and equipment 4,255,460.31 3,036,219.85 862,160.35 357,080.11

BBERHEE -BEHEHAR
EIE EEBX

(3)

Fixed assets acquired under financial leases-sale and
leaseback

THREN  ARKT

Unit: RMB

RRERE RetirE HEEE REEE

Accumulated Impairment Carrying

HE Item Cost depreciation provision amount
EENZEEY Buildings and structures 2,592,597.82 2,488,893.91 = 103,703.91

720156 A30H M2014F12 A318 -
AEERBAREMNERANBETAE
EREEHRTNE °

201556 A30H k20145124318 -
AEBEAREAETAEENEE
BE -

AREZEREENEEELERRT

R2015%46 A30H K & & & 8t # )
KM ER  AEBEEAISE
ERELEYPBEEEFE  NWEE
T 35 & A 5 R BUR BA 4R B8 BT 3R P
HEH R FF-2015F6H308 & %
EMEEAESENEEEEAAR
#£39,344,951.5270 (2014412 A 31
B : AR#%39,931,706.867T) °

ARREERRAKELENGEH
EREETGFELMOIFEREE
e S B (-

(4)

(5)

At 30 June 2015 and 31 December 2014, fixed assets
acquired under financial leases were fully depreciated.

As at 30 June 2015 and 31 December 2014, no fixed
assets were leased by way of operating lease.

Fixed assets with pending certificates of ownership

As at 30 June 2015 and the date of approval of this
statement, the Group is applying for property certificates
for some buildings and structures. The time of obtaining
property certificates is depending upon the consideration
and approval procedures of the relevant government
authorities. At 30 June 2015, the carrying amount of the
above mentioned fixed assets was RMB39,344,951.52
(31 December 2014: RMB39,931,706.86).

Directors of the Company are of the opinion that pending
the grant of property certificates will not affect the usage
and operation of the buildings and structures.
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1M FEEIR 11. Construction in progress

(1) HEZITEELR (1) Information of construction in progress
BEREN : ARKTT
Unit: RMB
201556830 20145125318
30 June 2015 31 December 2014
FEGE HEER FEEE RESE HEERE FEEE
Impairment Carrying Impairment Carrying
A Item Book value provision amount Book value provision amount
ERRERN Heavy casting base ~ 236,522,679.13 - 13652267913 196,835,870.09 - 196,835,870.09
BRAHVMGEER VMG6 machine tool
made by Schiess,
Germany 39,084,812.42 - 39,084,812.42 39,084,812.42 - 39,084,812.42
AfIEE Other items 36,776,280.94 2,056,931.37 3471934957 34,760,184.98 2,056,931.37  32,703,253.61
=H Total 312,383,772.49 2,056,931.37  310,326,841.12  270,680,867.49 2,056,931.37  268,623,936.12
(2) BAXEZITIEIEHNBEEEN (2)  Movements of major construction projects in progress

during the period

EHEEN - ARET

Unit: RMB
IRERA Bh o REAE
i3 KBEL  REEL nBE EEERH HeEat  AEAR  EA(E
BRE  (PBME ABMh  EREE EPEE  oRRRE () IREE  EieE  EMAE (% EEKE
Of which,
amount of
Transferto ~ Transfer to Investment Accurulated interest ~ Inerest
Additions  fived assets  intangible percentage to amount  capitalized  capitalzaton
Opening during ~ during the  assets during Closing ~totalbudget ~ Project ~ ofinterest  duingthe  raeofthe  Sourceof
i Item Budget balnce ~ theperiod  period  the period halance (%) progress capitalized period perod  the fund
EEEEEY  Hagostngbae 7956000000 19683581009 3968680004 - - DBSENN3 a7 % BT 50mERN 660 8 EE
Bailhan
HERRE
Bank lgrs,
sefHfnancng
and budgetary
nvestment
of entrl
qovemment
E | WMGH machine ol 3908481240 3908481242 - - -oBwsae BRSO 0 - - - BEEf
VMGHT e by Scies, fo be st Sefiinancig

Gemany

- NIl re I R




)

mERERER

~12. Intangible a:

. -

(1) Information of in'téhgibfe .'j _
T AE EEHRH aE
Land Various
EHH Item use rights software Others Total
RHERE Cost
2015F 11 B#E Opening balance 125,147,316.50  20,874,699.85 19,918,530.81 165,940,547.16
~-BEEHEEHAE - Adjustment of
assets’ estimated value -700.00 - - -700.00
2015 6H30H%%  Closing balance 125,146,616.50  20,874,699.85 19,918,530.81 165,939,847.16
ZET R Accumulated amortization
20151 A1 A% Opening balance 7,975,568.92 13,834,826.22 3,504,910.91 25,315,306.05
—KEEHR - Charge for the period 1,328,502.07 699,373.07  1,252,607.19  3,280,482.33
20156 A30H#%  Closing balance 9,304,070.99  14,534,199.29 4,757,518.10  28,595,788.38
EREE Carrying amounts
2015F6 7300 At 30 June 2015 115,842,545.51 6,340,500.56  15,161,012.71 137,344,058.78
2015 1H1H At 1 Jan 2015 17,171,747.58 7,039,873.63 16,413,619.90 140,625,241.11

20156 A30H ' AEBEBEMEE
B ANER#¥6,237,960.587T(2014412
A31H : AR%6,317,425.0370) &)
+ 40 FAAE A ESR 1702 B8 SRV 3K 7
m2RWER ~17(1)) °

20156 A30H ' AEBEFEEER
A AN R #95,700,384.787t (20144
128318 : ARMOT) W L1 F A
ERERTEHERNERR(ZA
BsER ~ 26(1)) °

As at 30 June 2015, the Group’s land use rights with
the carrying amounts of RMB6,237,960.58 was pledged
to banks for short-term loans (31 December 2014:
RMB6,317,425.03) (see note V.17(1)).

As at 30 June 2015, the Group’s land use rights with the
carrying amounts of RMB95,700,384.78 was pledged to
banks for long-term loans (31 December 2014: nil) (see
note V.26(1)).
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(2) FPHEEZEZHLHIEFER
D
R2015%6 4308 &2014F12H31H -
AEBEARANLZEEFEEN T HER
BN ©

(3) AEBERESERAENH LB ELR D

(2) Land use rights with pending certificates of ownership

As at 30 June 2015 and 31 December 2014, the Group
had no land use rights without property certificates.

(3) The lands of all land use rights acquired by the Group

Bl KRE - THbfF AEFRIAB504F - are located in China mainland. The life of the land use

rights will be 50 years.

13 -EHE 13. Goodwill

TEEN - ARMT
Unit: RMB
20151818 K&
201556 A30H &R &R
Balance at 1 Jan 2015
AREH Xi‘an Ser and 30 June 2015
R RE Carrying amount 7,296,277.00

AEER2001FREALEBRR - &6
AR BIRLEOIESNALTER I HR
E -BEAAEBEMNZEZR BRAHEAZR
ERAAENEE -

BLZEBOATKRDO S EEATB RRIBEER
EREMHEET A5EREEEEN
B BT R RSF B 5 TE B AN 10% 51 AT 47
BRI ZEEANKKRBESHRERE -
Ho B¢ ENESART S EERER
MEBKX - BREAZEEARKRBESRE
WEMKBENERBRTESEERE
EEHERANRERBRRELEEETED
Bt g B AR RINRAEERBRBET
Ug o] & %8 -

HREZEABHARES R ERENHE
R T AL R AR 2 T 2 H A0 E
RRBEWANEREABRER - B2
BREEEHA Y AN E SRR

=R
XX ©

When the Group acquired Xi‘an Ser in 2001, the cost of merger
was higher than the fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of Xi'an Ser corresponding to the interests acquired,
and the difference was recognized as goodwill related to
Xi‘an Ser.

The recoverable amount of Xi‘an Ser is determined based on
the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The Group
prepared cash flow forecasts for this asset based on the recent
5 years financial budgets approved by the management and a
10% discount rate before tax. The forecast result imposed no
impairment loss to the recoverable amounts. However, the key
assumptions on which the discount estimated cash flows were
based may vary. The management considered that if negative
change occurred to the key assumptions, the book value of
the Company may exceed its recoverable amount.

The key assumptions for the calculation of the present value
of estimated future cash flows for Xi‘an Ser were the gross
profit margin and the growth rate of operating income of the
turbo machine segment. The management determined these
key assumptions based on the historical information prior to
the estimated period.
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14 - REFEER

14.

Long-term deferred expenses

i

LB ARET

Unit: RMB
2015 20154
118 &% RER B %R KE#EEE  6A30HERE
Increase Amortization
Balance at 1 during during Balance at 30
HHE Item Jan 2015 the period the period June 2015
BB Decoration 915,696.54 - 189,151.26 726,545.28
15 - BEEFMBSHEE 15. Deferred tax assets
(1) BEIEFEHEE (1) Deferred tax assets
DHEE - ARKT
Unit: RMB
2015466 H30H 2014%12A31R
30 June 2015 31 December 2014
GE:#IEY 0k AENRE /B
FRMER EEMBHEE/ ORMER EEFRSHEE/
(EMBEREEE BE(RE (EARERMER BE(RE
AT - 157 851) U - 57 3850) WU J573851) WU - I573851)
Deductible Deductible
or taxable or taxable
temporary Deferred temporary Deferred
difference ("-" tax assets/  difference ("-" tax assets/
for taxable liabilities for taxable liabilities
temporary ("-" for temporary ("-" for
EH Item difference) liabilities) difference) liabilities)
EEFBHEE: Deferred tax assets:
EREE Provision for bad and
doubtful debts 234,292,120.97 35,143,818.14  213,944,556.41 32,091,683.48
FENREBER Provision for diminution
in value of inventories 11,281,283.60 1,692,192.54 11,281,283.49 1,692,192.53
HEHEE Provisions 4,015,678.19 602,351.73 3,082,619.70 462,392.95
ABRHRERFH Unrealized internal profits 646,282.93 96,942 .44 1,493,932.60 224,089.89
EMNER Deductible tax losses 4,677,711.12 701,656.67 2,573,623.77 386,043.56
SH Total 254,913,076.81 38,236,961.52  232,376,015.97 34,856,402.41

(2)

KRB T {315 B EE A

(2) Breakdown of unrecognized deferred tax assets

THREMN - ARKT

Unit: RMB

20156 H30H 2014%12A31H
EH Item 30 June 2015 31 December 2014
AR ER Deductible temporary difference 197,397,201.78 212,834,451.30
AEEE Deductible tax losses 265,343,853.02 238,688,417.41
&5t Total 462,741,054.80 451,522,868.71

Interim Report 2015 Shenji Group Kunming Machine Tool Company Limited |03 -




(3) RIERIEALFTi5 10 & 2 1y AT ] (3) Expiration of deductible tax losses for unrecognized

E B E B g8 deferred tax assets
ZEE  ARKT
Unit: RMB
201556 A30H 2014512831H
F 5 Year 30 June 2015 31 December 2014
20164 2016 3,310,512.88 3,240,529.50
20174 2017 74,349,516.50 74,349,516.50
20184 2018 7,263,796.92 7,263,796.92
20194 2019 153,834,574.49 153,834,574.49
20204 2020 26,585,452.23 -
&%t Total 265,343,853.02 238,688,417.41

EIRfERAE LA AT B R B HY B
Al - AR X BRI KA 5 E FE A
BUFTS R T AT A0 Bt rT K408 18 -
Hit REREENRERSERHEE -

As the management anticipated that relevant taxpayers
would not have sufficient taxable profit to deduct the
aforesaid deductible tax losses before their expiration,
the relevant deferred tax assets were not recognized.

16 HtERBEE 16. Other non-current assets
TREEN  ARKT
Unit: RMB
20156 HA30H 2014%F12AH31H
HH Item 30 June 2015 31 December 2014

TE TR Project prepayments 808,350.00 808,350.00
AR+ E TR Prepayments for land use rights 4,116,091.08 4,116,091.08
A RN & Prepayments for contracted

technology licensing fee 41,477,764.74 39,656,925.20
T Total 46,402,205.82 44,581,366.28
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7 BHIER
(7) ;E_A‘ggaiyﬁ \

17. Short-term loans

(1) Types of short-term loans:

TR,

To
=

LHEN - ARET

Unit: RMB

20156 H30H 2014%12H31H

EH Item 30 June 2015 31 December 2014
EHER(ET) Secured loans (note 1) 21,000,000.00 21,000,000.00
REBER(E2) Guarantee loans (note 2) 117,000,000.00 82,000,000.00
ERER Credit loans 200,000,000.00 181,500,000.00
A&t Total 338,000,000.00 284,500,000.00
31 R2015%68308  AEBRETEE Note 1:  Asat30June 2015, buildings and structures of the

EHRFEAARIKIISE 55452
7t(2014%12A8318 :
10,429,037.447‘1)9@%@&@5&%
ﬁj{’ﬁiﬂﬁﬁ,ﬂm MEFER(2ER V.10(1)).
MR~ 1001

20156 A30H » AREBEBIKRMmE
EA AR ¥6,237,960.587C(2014
F12A318 : AR¥6,317,425.03
JL)H b A B ERTT R B R
FEIFR(RAMER 1

K2 HAfE R ©

AR B

2(1)) °

V.12(1)).

loans due but outstanding.

Group with net book value of RMB9,958,554.52
were pledged to banks for short-term loans (31
December 2014: RMB10,429,037.44) (see note

As at 30 June 2015, buildings and structures of the
Group with net book value of RMB6,237,960.58
were pledged to banks for short-term loans (31
December 2014: RMB6,317,425.03) (see note

Ho o hHMEBAANAT RSP REL DR Note 2: Shenyang (Group) provided guarantee for the
THEFHMERAETIRMEER &b Company'’s financing facilities at a total amount of
201 5¢6)5] 3S0ERMEREEATEA A RMB300 million as at 30 June 2015 (31 December
R #3187t (20145%12H318H © A 2014: RMB300 million) secured from the Export-
EMM L) o AR FIR2015%E6 A Import Bank of China. As at 30 June 2015, balance
S0EENEMEHERGEASARK of short-term loan was RMB32 million (31 December
0.321 (2014128318 : AR 2014: RMB82 million) (see note X.5 (5)).
¥0.8218 L) (2 RMFE+ - 5(5)

I EB AARNN R (MELEITHSE Shenyang (Group) provided guarantee for the
MR EEERMEEMSR - & 1L2015 Company'’s financing facilities at a total amount of
FOAHRMEEEHEFAARE RMB100 million as at 30 June 2015 (31 December
118 0 (2014%F 128318 : AR 2014: nil) secured from the Evergrowing Bank. As
07T) ° NN AIR2015%F6 A30H B at 30 June 2015, balance of short-term loan was
EHEHERBE A ARK)SE RMB80 million (31 December 2014: nil) (see note
JL(2014F 128318 « AR¥O0T) X.5 (5)).
(2R M+ 5(5)

EN i ER TR EERER Changsha economic technology development zone

NFBESEBRASRIETESN investment guarantee company limited provided
@Eﬁ%ij*k HER(ALER BX guarantee for Changsha Ser for financing facilities
BERIZEGELSEERER) ik from Bank of Communications (Xi'an Ser provided
2015fﬁ6ﬁ]30E| BEEEBE A A counter guarantee with joint and several liability
B #5008 (20146128318 for the guarantee). As at 30 June 2015, the total
ARBOT) o AAFIR2015F6 A amount of the financing facilities was RMB5 million
S0OHRSMEHERBEAARE (31 December 2014: nil). As at 30 June 2015,
5008 ﬁ(2014$12ﬂ31 H: AR balance of short-term loan was RMB5 million (31
o) e December 2014: nil).

(2) THK AEEBTGFESINHRESR (2) As at the end of the period, the Group had no short-term
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18 B EE 18. Bills payable
2HEE c ARKT

Unit: RMB
20156 A30H 2014%12AH31H
B8 Type 30 June 2015 31 December 2014
WITELEEZ Bank acceptance bills 82,508,582.27 75,048,188.00
BEAHIEEZ Commercial acceptance notes 5,000,000.00 -
TV Total 87,508,582.27 75,048,188.00
FiiexE A —FRND B ENEE - The above amount of bills payable will be due within one year.
AR AEBEC BRI MHENZ At the end of the period, the Group had no bills payable due
#® o but outstanding.
19 - ENERR 19. Accounts payable
(1) JENBRFIERLIT - (1) Types of accounts payable are as follows:
TRRE  ARKT
Unit: RMB
201556 A30H 2014%12A31H
HAB Item 30 June 2015 31 December 2014
JE 1~ BA B 2 =) Accounts payable to
related company 2,971,321.87 2,100,388.42
FEfH L IERS Accounts payable to suppliers 516,088,628.08 501,604,077.73
A&t Total 519,059,949.95 503,704,466.15
(2) JETERFIZERES 2 HT40F - (2) The ageing analysis of accounts payable is as follows:
DHEE N ARKT
Unit: RMB
20156 A30H 2014%12A31H
BR B2 Ageing 30 June 2015 31 December 2014
TFAR(E1F) Within 1 year (inclusive) 382,283,023.30 355,949,961.33
1EE2FE(E2F) 1 and 2 years (inclusive) 83,489,921.41 85,184,799.92
2EFEIF(E3IF) 2 and 3 years (inclusive) 25,769,321.18 31,251,884.12
3FM E Over 3 years 27,517,684.06 31,317,820.78
Sl Total 519,059,949.95 503,704,466.15
R B ENRRER ARFARGE - The ageing of accounts payable is calculated starting

from the date of recognition.
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(3) 20156 H30H » K%EEFEE (3) As at 30 June 2015, the Group’s accounts payable v
BB 1 F B ETREN F ZEBM IR an ageing of over one year were mainly for materia
FE o BRECEE B 1 F A48 —117fE procurement. Breakdown of accounts payable with an
B HIEN 2 BEARARK 7008 ageing over one year and an amount to single supplier
TTHIETRE K BB AL T - of more than RMB7 million are as follows:

SHEENM  ARKT
Unit: RMB
20156 A30H&RE REENFRE
Balance at
EHH Item 30 June 2015 Unpaid reason
JE S A1 R 3R Accounts payable for material 26,941,555.35 ERE&EREAE

Warranty unexpired

20 ~ AU FR1E 20. Advances from customers

(1) FEUERFLIE LT (1) Information of advances from customers
TEEMN - ARET
Unit: RMB
20156 830H 2014%12H831H
HHE Item 30 June 2015 31 December 2014
T8 U B e 2~ =) Advances from related party 945,640.00 9,640.00
ERE= Advances from the third party 183,003,274.78 229,745,906.36
G Total 183,948,914.78 229,755,546.36
(2) HR2015F6H30H » NEEFFRE (2) As at 30 June 2015, breakdown of the advances from
EBIFAHE—FF RN EEE customers of the Group with an ageing over one year
ARAEB 7002 7T 1978 Y AR 5 and an amount from single customer more than RMB7

BEAAZO T - million are as follows:

BN ARKTT
Unit: RMB
20156 A30H &R E KREBHWERE
Balance at Reason for not
EH Item 30 June 2015 settled
FEULSY & = TE Advance sales payment 43,079,000.66 T EAREE
No delivery temporarily

21 - FEATER T S 21. Employee benefits payable
(1) JEMNBTEHN TR (1) Employee benefits payable are as follows:
wHEEN - ARKT
Unit: RMB
215§ 2015F
i3 1R1R&E KHEM AHES  6A30BHE
Accrued Paid
Balance at during during Balance at
ER [tem Note 1 Jan 2015 the period the period 30 June 2015
Sht Short-term employee benefits 1016936373  132,810,844.51 13396167677  9,018,531.47
BRERT Post-employment benefits 9,489.36  13,845,606.60  13,845,606.60 9,489.36
-REREE - Defined contribution plan
LR Termination benefits 290,324.68  3,769,697.80  4,060,022.48 -
KRBT Long-term employee
-—ERZFNHH benefits payable
- payment within one year V28 2,240,546.39 1,812,057.71 2,240,546.39 1,812,057.71
At Total 12,709,724.16  152,238,206.62  154,107,852.24  10,840,078.54
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(2) REIFE B

(2) Short-term employee benefits

LHEENMN  ARKET

Unit: RMB
20155 20155
1R 1888 KEEM AHRY  6A30HHE
Accrued
Balance at during the Paid during Balance at
HE Item 1 Jan 2015 period the period 30 June 2015
T4 %% 2N Salary, bonus, subsidy and grants 895,274.15 112,400,630.94 112,443,710.55 852,194.54
BIRHE Staff welfare - 4,341,466.03  3,793,434.93 548,031.10
teRRE Social insurance 2,020.80  7,184,122.09  7,184,122.09 2,020.80
BEBERRE Medical insurance 2,020.80  6,287,853.41 6,287,853.41 2,020.80
TEREE Work injury = 341,051.65 341,051.65 =
EERBRE Maternity insurance = 555,217.03 555,217.03 =
FEAES Housing fund 1,755,713.32  7,224,829.00  7,313,787.00  1,666,755.32
TeRENBRIHELE Union expenses and
employees education expenses 7,516,355.46  1,659,796.45  3,226,622.20  5,949,529.71
S Total 10,169,363.73 132,810,844.51 133,961,676.77  9,018,531.47
(3) BEREIEHN —RTEIEFq 2l (3)  Post-employment benefits — Defined contribution plan
TREEN  ARKT
Unit: RMB
20155 20155
1R1A%E KHEmM AERY  6A30AKE
Accrued
Balance at during the  Paid during Balance at
HH Item 1 Jan 2015 period the period 30 June 2015
EREZRBE Basic retirement
insurance premiums 9,336.96 12,612,233.70 12,612,233.70 9,336.96
KRERRE Unemployment insurance 15240  1,233,372.90  1,233,372.90 152.40
G Total 9,489.36 13,845,606.60 13,845,606.60 9,489.36
22 - EXBE 22. Taxes payable
THEN  ARKT
Unit: RMB
20156 H30H 2014%12A31H
IHH Item 30 June 2015 31 December 2014
18 T Value added tax 15,684,280.01 5,222,899.91
R Business tax 228.00 29,205.00
EMER Corporate income tax 24,944.27 153,959.15
Efth Others 3,607,523.00 1,471,150.03
&a&t Total 19,316,975.28 6,877,214.09
23 BRI 23. Dividends payable
THEEN  ARKT
Unit: RMB
201546 H30H 2014%12A31H
IHHB Item 30 June 2015 31 December 2014
= m AR AR A Common share dividend 135,898.49 135,898.49

MEEEEARKROERLE 2015 FHHE




24 - HAEMNRK o
(1) ZHBEESREMEN

Other payables

(1) Other payables by nature of payments are as follows:

THE - AR
Unit: RMB

201566 A30H 2014%12831H
EH Item 30 June 2015 31 December 2014
JEA T2 Payable for projects 75,116,627.84 100,127,398.62
IRRERES Secured deposits for projects 6,000,000.00 1,292,600.00
e Leasing expenses 7,875,000.00 5,516,413.56
EIE Auditor’s fee 2,216,698.12 2,940,283.02
BehkFzBERE Commissions and
business promotion fees 5,431,800.00 9,994,000.00
Hib Others 24,514,973.71 24,357,717.33
=X Total 121,155,099.67 144,228,412.53
(2) P20156HA30H  AEEERA R (2) As at 30 June 2015, the Group had no single other

BIFESBEEARKIS0E T £
RBEIERBEEMER R -

25 —FRIHMHFERBDER

payables with an ageing over one year and amount more

than RMB3.5 million.

25. Non-current liabilities due within one year

THEENMN  ARET
Unit: RMB

ff i 2015F6H308 2014%12831H
1HH Item Note 30 June 2015 31 December 2014
—FRIENRERGR Guaranteed loans due
within one year f V.26 200,000,000.00 =
—ERE R ER Obligation under finance
BAHEER lease due within one year 7 - V.27 213,209.00 213,209.00
—FREIEBNER Sale and leaseback due
Gi=AEIE S within one year V.31 205,300.00 205,300.00
—EREHRE R ER Secured loans due
within one year h V.27 19,985,479.44 19,328,596.78

BEr Total
26 - REIER
(1) REIE N7 E (1)

220,403,988.44

19,747,105.78

26. Long-term borrowings

Classification of Long-term borrowings

THEN  ARET
Unit: RMB

20156 H30H 20145128311
HH Item 30 June 2015 31 December 2014
EARE R (aFT) Secured loans (note 1) 74,724,136.15 =
IREBER(FE2) Guarantee loans (note 2) 250,000,000.00 200,000,000.00
NE Sub-total 324,724,136.15 200,000,000.00

Less: Guaranteed loans
due within one year

B — B H RO R 5K
200,000,000.00 -

Total 124,724,136.15 200,000,000.00
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1 R2015%6A30R - AKEEEE Note 7:  As at 30 June 2015, the Group’s building

ERFEAARK13,718,689.28 and structure with the carrying amounts of
(201412 A318 : AR¥O0T) RMB13,718,689.28 was pledged to banks for long-
NEENREEYMAERITRBER term loans (31 December 2014: nil) (see note V.10
WER@(2RKMEER - 10(1)) ° (1).

20156 H308 * A& E ¥ R | As at 30 June 2015, the Group's land use rights
& @8 B A R #95,700,384.78 7T with the carrying amounts of RMB95,700,384.78
(2014%12A318 : AR¥0IT)H was pledged to banks for long-term loans (31
+ #h{F R ERITR G R E December 2014: nil) (see note V.12(1)).

AR (2RWFTER - 12(1) -

22 LR E AR R E M EE AR Note 2:  Shenyang (Group) provided guarantee for the
THRFNREEERHEER  BE Company’s financing facilities at a total amount of
HERBEAAREIEIT(2014F RMB300 million as at 30 June 2015 (31 December
12A318 : ARM3{ET) - XA 2014: RMB300 million) secured from the Export-
20156 A308 B3 R EAERH Import Bank of China. As at 30 June 2015,
#EE A ARME2518 (2014512 balance of long-term loan was RMB250 million
A31H : ARB2{ET) (2R (31 December 2014: RMB200 million) (see note
+ 2 5(5)) ° X.5 (5)).

(2) 20156 H30H - REIEF 150 (2) Asat30June 2015, long-term borrowings are as follows:
wnr

2REEl - ARKT

Unit: RMB

201566 H30H8

BRERA  BRALR BE FRIE(%) AEEE

Interest Amount in

Date of Date of rate RMB at

BERE[ Loan bank beginning termination  Currency (%) 30 June 2015

EHOST Export-Import Bank of China 2014.04.28  2016.04.28 ARERMB 5.775% 39,000,000.00

EHOST Export-Import Bank of China 2014.05.26  2016.04.28 AR¥RMB 5.775% 21,000,000.00

#EHORT Export-Import Bank of China 2014.05.30  2016.05.30 AR¥RMB 5.775% 50,000,000.00

EHORT Export-Import Bank of China 2014.06.26  2016.06.26 ARERMB 5.775% 90,000,000.00

EH OB Export-Import Bank of China 2015.03.26  2017.03.25 ARERMB 5.51% 50,000,000.00

EHOST Export-Import Bank of China 2015.02.15  2018.08.15 ARMRMB 5.40% 57,515,230.78

EHOST Export-Import Bank of China 2015.06.18  2018.08.15 ARXRMB 5.40% 17,208,905.37

At Total 324,724,136.15

(3) M2015%6A300 » XREBTEFED (3) As at 30 June 2015, the Group had no long-term loans

FBMAREENRPER - due but outstanding.
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27 - REERR

27. Long-term payables

. M|

TR,

Unit: RMB
it 201556 A30H 20145128318
EHE Item Note 30 June 2015 31 December 2014
ENREREN Obligation under finance lease (1) 1,385,859.05 1,492,463.90
JERTHIRE Secured loan payables ) 19,985,479.44 29,494,440.35
NEt Sub-total 21,371,338.49 30,986,904.25
B —ERIBNRE Less: long-term payables
AR due within one year
Hep - —FRI B ER Of which: obligation under
BEHER finance lease
due within one
year 213,209.00 213,209.00
—EREEREF KR secured loan
B payables due
within one
year 19,985,479.44 19,328,596.78
NEt Sub-total 20,198,688.44 19,541,805.78
aat Total 1,172,650.05 11,445,098.47
(1) REIENAFEENFBEHEN (1)  Breakdown of Obligation under finance lease under long-

B4

AREFNR2015F6 308 U E X
MREMERSNZENT :

term payables

The minimum finance lease payment of the Group payable
after 30 June 2015 as follows:

THEEN - ARET
Unit: RMB

201556 A30H 20145128318
RIEAESR Minimum lease payments 30 June 2015 31 December 2014
TFLAR(E1F) Within 1 year

(including 1 year) 342,168.88 342,168.88

1FEE2FEAA(E29F) 1-2 years (including 2 years) 342,168.88 342,168.88

2FAE3FUA(E3IF) 2-3 years (including 3 years) 342,168.88 342,168.88

3FE Over 3 years 1,197,592.11 1,368,676.62

INEt Sub-total 2,224,098.75 2,395,183.26
W RERRBEER Less: unrecognised

finance charges 838,239.70 902,719.36

silh Total 1,385,859.05 1,492,463.90

ENREHERRBENZERRAR Obligation under finance lease reflected the present value

2001 F &SRO EH ER MK EF
RHREHENZENRE - ZHE
BRBEHRE  MEHAE20F -

R2015%F6A30H © & A B Kk R
BEE AT A ARKS38,239.70
(20145128318 : A R &
902,719.367T) °

bt —F B HA A A B S A E S
BABRREERENFECENT
o 25 HEE o

of minimum lease payments caused by the Company’s
lease of some workshops and factory buildings after sale
in 2001. The lease constituted finance lease and the term
of lease was 20 years.

As at 30 June 2015, the balance of unrecognised finance
expenses of the Company was RMB838,239.70 (31
December 2014: RMB902,719.36).

The above amount of finance lease payment due within
one year after deducting unrecognized finance charges
was disclosed in Note V. 25.
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(2) REENFF BN BIFETH

i

(2) Breakdown of secured loans repayable included in long-
term payables

BN ARET

Unit: RMB
201546 A30H 2014%12H31H
FEHKHER Secured loans repayable 30 June 2015 31 December 2014
1EAA(E1E) Within 1 year
(including 1 year) 19,985,479.44 19,328,596.78
TFLAE2FLAR(E29F) 1-2 years
(including 2 years) - 10,165,843.57
/NEt Sub-total 19,985,479.44 29,494,440.35
B —F AR E R AR E R Less: secured loans
due within 1 year 19,985,479.44 19,328,596.78
REEE Carrying amount - 10,165,843.57

ANANRR2014F | —REE QA
HEBo EELEERABEHRXE
B ZRXSNEEELANRTE
ENSER ALEAEEBER
B ¥ o 20156 H30H & A 7@
AREFANETEEFEBARE
50,461,116.6270(2014412 A 31
H:52,874,987.5470) (2 A Mz -
10(1))

MN201556A30H - & R & 8 A

A [ #19,985,479.4471 © /K &
BH—FAEENEREREARE

19,985,479.44TC1E & — F A H /Y
ERBEEENER - 25 -

In 2014, the Company disposed certain machinery and
equipment to a leasing company and leased back the
same. The transaction was treated as a pledged loan as its
economic essence was to secure a borrowing with pledged
assets. As at 30 June 2015, the Company’s fixed assets
with the carrying amounts of RMB50,461,116.62 was
pledged to banks. (31 December 2014: 52,874,987.54)
(see Note V.10 (1))

As at 30 June 2015, the balance of such borrowing was
RMB19,985,479.44, of which the principal repayable
within one year of RMB19,985,479.44 was disclosed as
non-current liabilities due within one year in Note V. 25.

28 - REAFEAT I T 2 28. Long-term employee benefits payable
FREEN c ARKT
Unit: RMB
2015566 A30H 201451248311
EHE Item 30 June 2015 31 December 2014
BREN(ERNEER) Termination benefits (including
early retirement expenses) 5,110,774.06 7,351,320.45
B —FRXNEE D Less: benefits due within
(Hiatsm - 21) one year (Note V.21) 1,812,057.71 2,240,546.39
S Total 3,298,716.35 5,110,774.06

AABHBD EIRIEERNF e b2
ARIK - IRA R A BB T AR
AEIMRTE  AARKAEBE TE LRM
RSB EEXAERKNAEME  HIAHAR
ABTEMBANHEERBRESHR TS
B AR EERASRE  StAE
HEREZR(RREM] - ARAFERN
FREBEARBDNERERZ N HRER
HBI AR o

Some employees of the Company retired from employment
prior to their statutory retirement age. According to the
requirements of the early retirement plan of the Company,
from the date of ceasing service provision up to their respective
statutory retirement dates, such employee salary as proposed
salary and social insurance for early retirement employees were
recognised at their discounted present value as provisions
and were included in current administrative expenses (“early
retirement expenses”). The discount rate selected by the
Company represented the interest rate of national bonds
having the same credit term with early retirement plan of
the Company.
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29 - EIEHEMNRK

29. Special payables - :
DHEEW  ARET
Unit: RMB
20151818 &
20156 A30H & KHEE
Balance at
1 Jan 2015 and

HHE Item 30 June 2015 Causes
HRBEEZ S E DRI Tax refund for import tariff it note
ME DR ERER K and import VAT for key
parts of machine tools 20,947,539.29

g BV EBEREERELZGHA
EFRRHEEEARENE T BEBEREMNRE
RERFERIEENETERFBED
B R B A ) (BB F[2007]11
) REBAREARBRIEEERE -
FEERTHRABERRELRS -
MR ERERHBERBENEIER
REART BBAMEHARBEEER
E o ARREEWRE EHERRRME
NBAREEERRELKERNE
METERETRAHRITRE A
ZERBMHEBERRERASNREF - £
2 BT AAFIRBE T EN - FUIK
BIH SRR KT AR BER R -

30 FEFFEE

Note: Pursuant to the stipulations of the “Notice from the
Ministry of Finance, National Development Reform
Commission, China Customs, State Administration of
Taxation on Import Duties Policy Related to Several
Opinions on the Acceleration of Revitalising the
Equipment Manufacturing Industry” (Cai Guan Shui
[2007] No. 11), the tax refund will be treated as state
investment, and should convert into state capital within
the specified time. If an enterprise cannot convert
the tax refund into state capital within the specified
time, it should return the refund to state treasury on
time. The Company would directly issue shares to its
state-owned substantial shareholders Shenji Group and
Yunnan Industrial Investment within two years after
receiving the tax refund and complete the procedure
of converting tax refund into state capital. Before that
time, the Company will treat it as special payables
according to accounting standards.

30. Provisions

EHEENMN  ARET

Unit: RMB
20151811 201556 A30A8
X REEM rHRD B

Increase Decrease
Balance at during during Balance at
EH Item 1 Jan 2015 the period the period 30 June 2015
EREERE Warranty 8,811,020.12  5,299,112.95  7,259,554.88  6,850,578.19
RARFFR Pending litigation = 865,100.00 = 865,100.00
Bt Total 8,811,020.12  6,164,212.95  7,259,554.88  7,715,678.19

AEE-BEHNEERRESOEBER
HEEERRERE  WHKERSHE
—EREBEENEHEROKENE S
ME AEEEBERRE LRESE
825 SRR B AR R A EE
ELNERESARNELERRERA
sHigw -

Generally, the Group provides after-sale quality service
guarantee to its customers who buy machine tool products
from the Group. If the products have malfunction caused by
non-accident or quality problems within one year after sale,
the Group will provide free maintenance. The above product
quality warranty was made based on the Group’s forecasted
product quality warranty expenditures needed to be undertaken
for products sold during the period and prior periods.
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31 BEEW R 31. Deferred income
DHEN  ARKTT
Unit: RMB
2015F1A18 201556 A30H
BHE KM TEED BE FHRRE
Increase Decrease
Balance at during during Balance at
EH Item 1 Jan 2015 the period the period 30 June 2015 Causes
—ERMABKEEHE - sale and leaseback
causing operating lease 1,231,802.91 - 205,300.00 1,026,502.91 1 Note 1
— BB - government grants 120,071,205.72 7,376,146.00  16,674,350.68  110,773,001.04 2 Note 2
At Total 121,303,00863  7,376,146.00  16,879,650.68 111,799,503.95
g1 RERE - S REEEARNEEN20014F Note 1: Deferred income-sale and leaseback were caused by the
BEHHFEEEEMM L EAER B Group's lease of some buildings and structures and land use
HEKEEHE - IAREREM LM rights after sale in 2001 and the lease constituted operating
AENKARREEEENEZEZEKE lease. Therefore, the difference between the income of
W TE20F HEBHNIREF Z BT selling premises and land use rights and the original book
R M201566A30H « AEEFER — value formed deferred income and would be amortised by
FRNEANMBROBELER S - 1ER—F A straight-line method within 20 years of leasing period. As
FERERBBE(RHER 25)5R at 30 June 2015, the Group treated the deferred income
which was forecasted to be transferred to income statement
within one year as non-current liabilities due within one
year (see Note V. 25).
2 WRBIFHEBMIER ¢ Note 2: Items involved Government grants:
wEEEN - ARKET
Unit: RMB
201551418 RE 5 RHHA 2015568308 REE/
8#E HHEE  EENMMALE H$E HUENE
Amount
Addition recognized as Related to
Balance at grant during  non-operating Balance at assets/
wEER Item 1 Jan 2015 the period income 30 June 2015 income
SRENETRK S Phase one of the CNC heavy 16,000,000.00 - - 16,000,000.00 HEEEH
XEE-HIk and precision machine tool Related to
manufacturing project asset
A R Land use rights of Yanglin Base  13,323,334.00 = 140,000.00  13,183,334.00 EEEMH
Related to
asset
BREHER R&D grants for high precision 7,835,000.00 = 7,835,000.00 - BEWERE
SPEEROTEREE CNC horizontal jig boring Related to
machine tools income
BB AMIAR LM R&D grants for precision 26,532,266.00 1,294,400.00 - 27.826,666.00 EKRIEE
s horizontal and vertical Related to
machining center income
BERERFRRN R&D grants for intelligent 14,000,000.00 - - 14,000,000.00 EU%iEE
HERE manufacturing machine Related to
project income
KHC100 /22T fu R&D grants for KHC100/2 13,117,725.52 920,000.00 - 14,037,725.52 BkFEE
RZARMIFLER Double location precision Related to
horizontal machining center income
Rt HFEE Other government grants 29,262,880.20 5,161,746.00 8,699,350.68  25,725,275.52 HEMzIEH
Related to
income
aif Total 120,071,205.72 7,376,146.00 16,674,350.68  110,773,001.04
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34

35

>

Ay

v

1HH

32. Share capital

Item

Balance at
1 Jan 2015 and
30 June 2015

ARBEBR —BARLETAR
BN ETRINE I — BB EHH

Ordinary domestic A Shares

Overseas foreign H Shares listed in Hong Kong

390,186,228.20
140,894,874.80

SR Total 531,081,103.00
EAXNE 33. Capital reserve
BHEE  ARKT
Unit: RMB
20151818 K
2015566 A30H &R &R
Balance at
1 Jan 2015 and
EHE Item 30 June 2015
IR A E B Share premium 19,206,777.12
EMEARNE—HAmb Other capital reserves — others 558,254.05
&&F Total 19,765,031.17
BeANTE 34. Surplus reserve
BHEE  ARKT
Unit: RMB
20151818 K
20156 A30 H &R &
Balance at
1 Jan 2015 and 30
EHE Item June 2015
EATEBEBNE Statutory surplus reserve 117,077,019.33
k4 B F 5 35. Retained earnings
BHE  ARKT
Unit: RMB
X L
R Item Current period Last period
FAEA LXK BN E Before adjustment, retained earnings

MR EEEE
HERBARDEME

e ABEBRER AR
REVER A Was

HMARRDEHE

at the end of last period
Add: correction of accounting errors
in prior period
After adjustment. retained earnings
at the beginning of the period
Add: comprehensive income attributable
to shareholders of the Company

417,634,420.32

417,634,420.32

-19,380,580.56

650,275,276.12

-28,549,549.27

621,725,726.85

-38,537,064.21

Retained earnings at the end of the period

398,253,839.76

583,188,662.64
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36 ERWA ~ EEAR

36. Operating income and operating costs
THEENMN  ARKET

Unit: RMB
rHBER THRAE
Amount occurred during the Amount occurred during the last
current period period
WA B KA B
EH Item Income cost Income cost
TEEB Operating income
from principal activities 477,447,985.11  373,812,054.01 387,340,438.56  299,899,656.42
Hib % Other operating income 4,000,422.38 2,902,591.15 1,093,910.19 640,236.50
&5 Total of operating income 481,448,407.49 376,714,645.16  388,434,348.75 300,539,892.92
ST ABRA - Breakdown of operating income:
wEEN  ARKT
Unit: RMB
AEAR AR AR
Amount occurred Amount occurred
during the current during the last
IEH Item period period
FEEFRA Operating income from

principal activities

—HEE — income from sales of goods 431,292,961.19 362,638,579.06
— IR AR — income from services 46,155,023.92 24,701,859.50
NEt Sub-total 477,447,985.11 387,340,438.56
H A ZERUA Other operating income 4,000,422.38 1,093,910.19
&5t Total 481,448,407.49 388,434,348.75

BHRIEXBHRA  EARNBESE
BEEMETT - 19 -

Information regarding operating income from principal
activities, expenses and profit included Note XIV. 1.

37 - BEBSRHM 37. Business taxes and surcharges
wFEEN  ARKT
Unit: RMB
AHAE AR LHIB AR

Amount occurred
during the last

Amount occurred
during the current

EHE Item period period
T Business tax - 2,190.00
YT MR AR TR Urban maintenance and

construction tax 2,423,783.02 2,315,800.75
HEBW Education surcharges 1,103,961.68 1,006,698.92
b5 20 & BTN Local education surcharges 659,910.69 671,132.62
axt Total 4,187,655.39 3,995,822.29
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38 - $HEEH

38. Selling and distribution expenses

AHAER
Amount occurred
during the current

Unit: RMB
aph o
Amount occurred
during the last

EHH Item period period

AL Staff cost 14,686,251.63 1 HOAY SO2BR09)
HEMEMNEBHEESR Sales commission and

business promotion expenses 4,348,681.73 5,726,131.60

HAt, Others 18,370,544.48 17,639,109.16

VT Total 37,405,477.84 41,313,163.85

390 « & E 8 39. General and administrative expenses

TERE  ARKT

Unit: RMB

RERE 4 HE THIRARE

Amount occurred Amount occurred

during the current during the last

== Item period period

AT Staff cost 28,975,568.40 35,989,799.84

TE® Depreciation expenses 5,474,297.76 4,280,662.23

HAt Others 35,080,782.44 45,525,842.43

&8t Total 69,530,648.60 85,796,304.50

40 - K ERA 40. Financial expenses

2BE  ARK T

Unit: RMB

AREARE KR rFHIR L

Amount occurred Amount occurred

during the current during the last

HE Item period period

B R A BRIR R S5

B BRI B
TR E B3

(Y= AT - ISR 3R 51
FE R ER
HoAth B 75 B B

At

Interest expenses from loans

and payables 20,598,029.67

11,513,808.48

Less: Capitalized interest expenses 5,077,852.01 6,140,973.50
Interest expenses on deposit

("-" for interest income) -337,762.81 -494,870.82
Net exchange losses 201,349.37 130,820.65
Other financial expenses 1,253,442.76 828,444.98
Total 16,637,206.98 5,837,229.79

AEBEAMARBEEERERAERNCE

The interest rate per annum, at which the borrowing cost were

B H)E AL R 56.60% (2014F1-6 8 :
7.05%) °

capitalized for the current period by the Group was 6.60%
(Jan — June 2014: 7.05%).
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41 - EEREEBRX 41.

Impairment losses on assets

THEENMN  ARKET
Unit: RMB
EHAE AR

Amount occurred
during the last

AHAE R
Amount occurred
during the current

HH Item period period
JE W BR 3R Accounts receivable 19,513,712.30 9,873,349.60
H th fE 3K Other receivables 833,852.25 336,832.53
ey Inventories - -565,371.45
axt Total 20,347,564.55 9,644,810.68
42 - BEWZH 42. Investment income
BREE  ARKT
Unit: RMB
M st AH AR LHIBAERE
Amount Amount
occurred during occurred during
the current the last
hi=li=| Item Note period period
BEEZENRIRERE  Income from long-term
Wees equity investments
accounted for using the
equity method a Ve -887,637.46 951,518.69
BEERBBEREELEDR  Income from disposal
&l of long-term equity
investments - 7,538,290.55
A&t Total -887,637.46 8,489,809.24
43~ EEIPRA 43. Non-operating income
(1) ERIMEADEBEBERWT - (1) Non-operating income by item is as follows:
wEEEN - ARET
Unit: RMB
FHFAERLE N
FEBERE LHREE BRNEE
Amount
Amount occurred  Amount occurred included
during the current during the last in extraordinary
HE Item period period gains or losses
ERBEEREFE Gain on disposal
of non-current assets 288,389.93 - 288,389.93
Heb : BEEERE Of which: gain on fixed
& assets disposal 288,389.93 = 288,389.93
B 8 Bh Government grants 17,068,405.98 767,930.98 17,068,405.98
JESERRERFAEMSE  Gain on restructuring
of accounts payable 1,324,338.08 = 1,324,338.08
Hitp Others 15,452.30 106,942.98 15,452.30
At Total 18,696,586.29 874,873.96 18,696,586.29
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45 - FRISHEHR

(1) HEHERE

HH

(2) BUTHEBHEAA (2) Breakdown of government grants:
——
2EEN  ARKT
Unit: RMB
HEE
AHIE LR EHIBAERE SRR AR
Amount occurred Amount occurred
during the during the last Related to
#ByEE Item current period period assets/income
TGK46100S 158 TGK46100 high 7,835,000.00 - U 5 AH B
SR BA S AL SR R precision CNC Related to income
horizontal jig
boring machine tools
XH2740 XH2740 2,600,000.00 - L ES A S
Related to income
XK2850# 1% #E P R&D grant for XK2850 2,000,000.00 - BRI Z5 AR
LR AT IT R B CNC gantry boring Related to income
and milling machine
Hh Others 4,633,405.98 767,930.98 HEE W EH
Related to
assets/income
S Total 17,068,405.98 767,930.98
44 - EEIHNTH 44. Non-operating expenses
DHE  ARKT
Unit: RMB
AHFT AR EM
AHIE AR LHIRAERE BREE
Amount occurred Amount occurred Amount included
during the during the last in extraordinary
EHE Item current period period gains or losses
FRBDEERE Losses on disposal of non-
BhEst current assets 27,526.42 213,990.98 27,526.42
Heh : BFEERSE  Of which: losses on disposal
HEPS of fixed assets 27,526.42 213,990.98 27,526.42
Hh Others 934,620.19 43,524.21 934,620.19
CE Total 962,146.61 257,515.19 962,146.61

45. Income tax expenses

(1)

Amount occurred during

Item

Table of income tax expenses

FHBER

the current period

THEENMN  ARET
Unit: RMB
LHBER

Amount occurred during

the last period

BEERERREEN

EHHAEH
EEERHZRBE

Current tax expense for the period
based on tax law and regulations

Tax filing discrepancies

Deferred taxation

Total

32,026.65 =
-63,002.02 -114.21
-3,380,559.15 -10,048,416.66
-3,411,534.52 -10,048,530.87
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(2) FSHEREGFAENBERET (2) The relationship between income tax expenses and
accounting profit:

wHEEN - ARET
Unit: RMB
AEABAEE
Amount occurred
during the current

b= Item period
MR AR (R AT- 15751 R) Profit before tax (“-" for loss) -26,527,988.81
BAEE/ BRARETED Income tax calculated under tax rate

FSIHER applicable/statutory tax rate -6,631,997.20
FEREMI YA Non-taxable income -174,325.24
PARMEHIHIRCA ~ B RA Effects of non-deductible costs,

BT E expenses and losses 402,305.78
& AR AR fE R iR it Using unrecognised deferred tax assets

Frigti & Em &G E in prior periods -7,428,028.14
AERERBELEFTSHEERN Effects of deductible temporary differences

AT EERER or losses of unrecognized deferred

BB E tax assets in the period 10,128,779.14
MEREENFE Effects of different tax rates 2,232,355.01
IETHBRIEE MEE Effects of items eligible for additional deduction -1,877,621.85
PE B S =B JfE Tax filing differences -63,002.02
AEIFR S E R Income tax expenses for the period

(TSR Al -13E5)) ("-" for income tax credit) -3,411,534.52

46 - EAEBRUEZNHESRKREZWTE 46. Calculation of basic earnings per share and diluted

BiE earnings per share

(1) BEXEGRWKz= (1) Basic earnings per share
EABRKEZIAEBRADREBER Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing
IR R B A GEFFIE B AR R B 3E1T1E consolidated net losses of the Company attributable to
SNEBARE INAEF BT - ordinary shareholders by the weighted average number

of ordinary shares outstanding:

A L8
HE Item Current period Last period
BBEN AR EERERN Consolidated net profit
EHOFFR(EEAT- 15 attributable to ordinary
B (AREET) shareholders of the
Company (”-" for loss)
(RMB) -19,380,580.56 -38,537,064.21
AR BIEITEINE B Weighted average number of
INE 5 2 (%) ordinary shares outstanding
(share) 531,081,103.00 531,081,103.00
HEARGRR WS (BT - 157 Basic earnings per share
) (7T, B%) ("-" for loss) (RMB/share) -0.0365 -0.0726
REE20159F6H30H 1201456 A For the period six months ended 30 June 2015 and
308 1E]E A HIR - AR FIEEITEI 30 June 2014, there were no changes in the number
BT EROREEEEEEME - of outstanding ordinary shares of the Company. The
BRI AN A R BRI T SN T AR A AN weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
EFEHHEER2015F1 A1 T E for such period was the same as the number of ordinary
AR AR 2L - shares as at 1 January 2015.
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2) BEGKRKZ ()

# 2201596 5308 201446 A30
H1ENE A M - AR RTFERE
MRBEL AR BESRRSEEE
RERI AR o

MEXRERER
HAIBERTHERREEDE

Diluted earnings per share

The diluted earnings per share are the same as the basic
earnings per share, because the Company does not have
any potential dilutive shares in issue during the six months
ended 30 June 2015 and 2014.

v

47 47. Income statement supplementary information

Expenses are analyzed by their nature as follows:

THE - ARKT
Unit: RMB

LFHIB AR
Amount occurred
during the last

REABAE R
Amount occurred
during the current

EHHE Item period period
EEBA Operating income 481,448,407.49 388,434,348.75
o ERmNEERE Less: Changes in inventories

FE# of finished goods
and work-in-progress -7,601,884.47 -10,100,091.19
FEHEEREME Raw materials used 214,247,994.96 201,957,094.81
BIHmMER Employee benefits expenses 150,426,148.91 143,089,619.91
BETEEREMER Depreciation of fixed assets and
BEHIEER amortization of intangible
assets 26,694,103.53 24,348,824.40
BERBEEX Impairment losses on assets 20,347,564.55 9,644,810.68
HEeER Rental expenses 2,725,395.53 3,029,432.19
B 75 & A Financial expenses 16,637,206.98 5,837,229.79
Hh & Other expenses 102,234,305.99 60,830,494.20

EEFIE(EBUAl- I571E%]) Operating profit (“-”) for loss) -44,262,428.49 -50,203,066.04

48 - RERERER 48. Items of cash flow statement
(1) WF69A b ELAE &% ) 5 BF A (1) Cash received relating to other operating activities

B &

TEEMN ARET

Unit: RMB

RERE 4R THIR AR

Amount occurred Amount occurred

during the current during the last

HH Item period period

WS RS 8 Bh 3R I8 Received government grants 7,667,552.00 5,548,030.98

HAith Others 40,517.91 906,008.16

BFF Total 7,708,069.91 6,454,039.14
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(2) ZITayE M EAR &% 85 Bi R (2) Cash paid relating to other operating activities

Bz
SEEE  ARKT
Unit: RMB
AEAR LR LFHAR AR
Amount occurred Amount occurred
during the current during the last
HHE Item period period
EREERES Warranty 6,416,980.33 5,049,760.95
ik Commission 379,000.00 4,119,112.28
HAith Others 25,785,609.03 14,815,883.80
&5t Total 32,581,589.36 23,984,757.03
(3) SITAVEMEEZEEE R (3) Cash paid relating to other financing activities
B &

AEBER

Amount occurred

during the current

IEH Item period

THENMN  ARKET

Unit: RMB
LHARER

Amount occurred
during the last

period

ENREREXNNRE

Cash paid for notes
payable financing -

47,230,000.00

49 - RERERMEEARER

49. Related information of cash flow statement

(1) BenEXR#rEH (1) Supplementary information on cash flow statement
a. BEFEEREASAKYE a.  Reconciliation of net profit/loss to cash flows from
B}EETRE - operating activities:
THEENMN  ARKET
Unit: RMB
LY 5
EH Item Current period Last period

RMECREEN-157E5)
m: EERERE

(B A- J5E5))
BEEERE
BN EEEH
REFEEREH

REETEEENRR
(Yega bAT - 1SRIE51))
MHER
REBK (M bAl- 157 R )
EXFEHREEMNRD
(B A0GAT - 53R 51))
FEHMRD
(4B ANAAT - SRIR51))
B2 RYORR MRS
(S JOIAT- 1853R51)
REERMNAERAEMN
CRUAIAT - 53851))

RERPELNREREFR

Net profit (“-" for net loss)
Add: Provision for impairment
of assets (“-" for reversal)

Depreciation of fixed assets

Amortization of intangible assets

Amortization of long-term
deferred expenses

Amortization of deferred income

Loss on disposal of fixed assets
("-" for profit)

Financial expenses

Investment losses (“-" for gains)

Decrease in deferred tax assets
("-" for increase)

Decrease in inventories
("-" for increase)

Decrease in operating receivable
("-" for increase)

Increase in operating payable
("-" for decrease)

Net cash flows from
operating activities

-23,116,454.29
20,347,564.55
23,413,621.20

3,280,482.33

189,151.26
-16,879,650.68

-260,863.51
14,940,817.80
887,637.46
-3,380,559.11
-16,181,820.24
-93,983,992.02

-11,014,821.20

-39,537,176.40
9,644,810.68
22,065,176.79
2,283,647.61

241,235.93
-242,650.00

213,990.98
5,809,936.50
-8,489,809.24
-10,048,416.66
-34,472,705.17
31,661,224.64

12,102,842.02

-101,758,886.45

-8,767,892.32
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B MReEFEMFEHBER

R
HA Item Current period
e MEIRRER Cash balance at the
end of the period 7 725,650 58 194,279,483.00
W IRV Less: cash balance at the

beginning of the period 124,210,047.71 139,391,654.25

RekReEEBYF Net increase in cash and
80, G BAT - 18R 38 51)) cash equivalents
("-" for decrease) -44,483,396.12 54,887,828.75
(2) KEIERIFF 2 m]HI18R 158 (2) Related information of acquisition of subsidiary
during the period
BREFRARINEREER Related information of acquisition of subsidiary:
A H +5
IEH Item Current period Last period
BETRABINER Price of acquired subsidiary - -
REAEUS F AR AHR Cash and cash equivalents paid

(3)

MM EMIBEEEY  for acquisition of subsidiary - -
B TARIBERMIREF  Less: cash and cash equivalents
ReEEY held by subsidiary

22,569,575.21

BETARIESMNIREFE Net cash from acquisition
of subsidiary

-22,569,575.21

REME T FEEYIIEL (3) Composition of cash and cash equivalents
BB ARKT
Unit: RMB
20156 H30H 2014%12A831H
HE Item 30 June 2015 31 December 2014
Re Cash 79,726,651.59 124,210,047.71
Hh - EHEHRS Including: cash on hand 651,986.71 644,101.93
AIBE R AR S THY Bank deposits available
RITTER on demand 79,074,631.42 123,565,945.78
A B&E R AR 2 AT ) Other currencies available
HtnE¥E® on demand 33.46 =
MARBEeRREEZFEY Balance of cash and cash equivalents
fh%EA at the end of the period 79,726,651.59 124,210,047.71
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50 IERESERAEZERIINEE 50. Assets with ownership or use right restrictions
wHEEN - ARET
Unit: RMB
201551R18 2015%6A30A
8?8 REEM THED BE ZRER
Balance at  Increase during Decrease during Balance at Reason of
EH Item 1 Jan 2015 the period the period 30 June 2015 restriction
-E%Es - Cash at bank and on hand 38,817,949.91  49,202,40461  33,614,456.40  54,405,898.12 FMEH
Pledged
-EYEE - Bills receivable
BERNRITALESR Pledged bank 2,000,000.00 = 2,000,000.00 - FRER
acceptance bills Pledged
BEESHENER Endorsed or discounted 8,526,233.00 2,139,410.00 8,526,233.00 2,139,410.00 BEEIER
EHER commercial acceptance bills Endorsed or
discounted
-ETEE - Fixed assets 63,304,024.98  13,995,687.28 316135184 7413836042 RRER
Pledged
-BVEE - Intangible assets 6,317,425.03  99,221,054.48 3,600,134.15  101,938,345.36  FAREHA
Pledged
ait Total 118,965,632.92  164,558,556.37 50,902,175.39  232,622,013.90
51 N EMMHIER 51. Foreign currencies
BEEN - ARMT
Unit: RMB
HRITE
HAR S B R wHEE=R ARMERE
Foreign currency The conversion
balance at the of RMB balance
end of the at the end of
HHE Item period Exchange rate the period
EBES Cash at bank and on hand
Hr o ET including: USD 410,846.99 6.1136 2,511,754.15
BT EUR 57,850.73 6.8699 397,428.74
B HKD 8,421,818.82 0.7886 6,641,530.54
JE W BR 3R Accounts receivable
Hrb: 50 including: USD 439.00 6.1136 2,683.87
BT EUR 36,718.27 6.8699 252,250.84
FERERR Prepayments:
Had : E5¢ including: USD 447,358.14 6.1136 2,734,968.74
BT EUR 592,690.13 6.8699 4,071,721.92
Ht JYP 12,832,000.00 0.0501 642,267.26
E b & YR Other receivables
He o B including: HKD 2,000.00 0.7886 1,577.22
PR Accounts payable
Heh o BT including: EUR 395,362.40 6.8699 2,716,100.18
TEUER K Advances from customers
Hrh o 7T including: USD 186,073.20 6.1136 1,137,577.11
E th FE A 3K Other payables
Heb o BT including: EUR 28,889.16 6.8699 198,465.64
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N BHEENEE (VI) CHANGE IN THE SCOPE OF CONSOLIDATIC
AABFATERHBHTR2014EE — k& The first meeting of board of directors of the Company"?—'
Eehsn ELEAEBEREKIYEZEFAT subsidiary, Kunming TOS in 2014 passed the resolution to
g B S AR AR (] EEEEET]) - establish its wholly owned subsidiary, Shanghai Tao Si Trade
EEEET 20141 A27 B s lAk S - & Company Limited (the “Shanghai Tao Si”) in Shanghai Free
HRA-+® #ZMEAAARKERS Trade Zone. Shanghai Tao Si incorporated in 27 January
T MEEYREMAELD O XK - R 2014 with 20 years’ operating period and registered capital
HERREONLTE  EENREE ERE RMB5 million. It engages in import and export business of
FrAB AR R T R B - FITEEEE C BRI goods and technology, installation, sales and maintenance of
LA R MRS o & 1F20156 8308 - machinery equipment and accessories, technology development,
BB NRSM MBS - AEAER technology transfer, technical advice and technical services in
¥ ESEET AT AS GEE - the field of machinery science and technology. As at 30 June

2015, Kunming TOS has not paid the above capital yet. The
Group included Shanghai Tao Si in the scope of consolidation
during the period.

FEMAFTEANES (Vi) INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES
EFATHHRER 1. Interests in subsidiaries
(1) 1EFEEMEKL (1) The constitution of the Group

RREAI(%)
(REMRLHLA)
Percentage of
shareholding (%)
(or percentage of
similar interests

RRE
70948 IESEM  ERE EBR BRER  BRE MR WA(%) BESR
Principal Percentage

Name of place of Place of Registered of voting Method of

subsidiary business  registration Nature of business capital ~ Directly Indirectly  rights (%) acquisition

BLER(2) i3 [ EBEg A5 EnREENR ARE 45% - 57.14% JER—EHTHRE
¥R EENRE 50,000,000 At

Xi‘an Ser (note) Xi‘an Xi'an Development, design, RMB50 million Business
production and sales combination not
of compressor series under common
products and accessories control

ROER =3/ =94 BRERZIIERRELH AEH® - 100% 100% FER—EE THRE
% Rat EENHE 10,000,000 aft

Changsha Ser Changsha  Changsha  Development, design, RMB10 million Business
production and sales combination not
of compressor series under common
products and accessories control

RREH(E) EH B R RSB RECHEAY 725,000,000 50% - 57.14% FR-BHTHER
% R LEMHE Ui

Kunming TOS (note) Kunming Kunming Development, design, Euro 5 million Business
production and sales combination not
of machine tool series under common
products and accessories control

s L L EMRBMELORH AR - 100% 100% RERY

5,000,000

Shanghai Tao Si Shanghai Shanghai Import and export business RMB5 million Established through
of goods and technology investments

ERRKER 29 254 R 252 o R ALY ARE 100% - 100% RERU

REARAA RE Rt EENHE 3,000,000
(RRRE)

General Machine  Kunming Kunming Development, design, RMB3 million Established through

production and sales investments

of machine tool series
products and accessories
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RAREARERAREBBEHN
RORBELHIRBBEARBRERKRE
BRI =& PTG B RORME LL P
E > ARBERE WK E EL A
BARERKE =S - WiERH
AZERARBRHABHNENZE
HEBMAZOHReE - AitAR
ARmEREEMBIEARA ZFA
A WERARAEZE -

2) BEEZMIFEEFALA]

Note: The percentage of voting rights of the Company in
Xi‘an Ser and Kunming TOS is determined based on
the percentage of voting rights of the Company in the
board of directors of the investee companies. The Group
has control over the financial and operational decision-
making of the investee companies, and is able to exercise
its power over Xi‘an Ser and Kunming TOS to influence
the amount of its attributable variable returns. Therefore,
the Company has treated the investee companies as its
subsidiaries and adopted the cost method for accounting.

(2)  Major non wholly-owned subsidiaries
THEER
DHBRRMN DERRM WS FEEOERR HRPERR
BIREA  (BKU- 15585 EEDRKHRF BHHE
Profit
attributable to Dividend
Percentage of  non-controlling declared to Balance of

shareholders
for the year

shareholding of
non-controlling

non-controlling
shareholders

non-controlling
interests at the

FATEH Name of subsidiary shareholders ("-" for losses) during the period end of the period
BRER Xi'an Ser 55% -2,987,860.89 - 1,094,276.06
RPER Changsha Ser 55% 126,305.52 - 40,721,087.87
EHEH Kunming TOS 50% -1,208,643.00 1,584,938.43 43,392,229.07

(3) B2 EFRNEHIEEH 5 (3)  Principal financial information on major non wholly-owned
=] subsidiaries

7N

TRIRT L FRBINEBZHHKE
B BETFRARNEIEWHKEERS
BARRZEHANEE - BR2EH

The following table sets forth the principal financial
information on the aforesaid subsidiaries, which
represented the amounts before elimination of intra-

TAHBAABEURSGE—2KE group transactions but after adjustments made based on
B R relevant fair value as at the date of consolidation and
the unified accounting policies:
il 3 RYER ERES
Xi‘an Ser Changsha Ser Kunming TOS

BRBE/ snsE/ BRBE/ gnsE/ BRBE/ guaE/

AEREE LBREE AEREE LHB%EE AEREE LH%EE

Closing balance/ Opening balance/ Closing balance/ Opening balance/ Closing balance/ Opening balance/

amount occurred  amount occurred  amount occurred - amount occurred  amount occurred - amount occurred

ER ltem this period last period this period last period this period last period

FHEE Current assets 137,359,516.52  152,508,054.82  195,824,057.38  202,596,884.75  109,296,858.15  116,581,899.44

FRYEE Non-current assets 2000057506 2103886356 4138961564  43,678,086.17 1544346895  16,328,53166

BEAS Total assets 157,360,091.58  173546,91838  237,213,673.00  246,274,970.92  124,740,327.10  132,910,431.10

TEAE Current liabilities 155,130,498.75  165,351,851.21  163,175,331.44  172,466,275.74 35,116,710.87 37,456,190.43

FRIAE Non-current liabilities 240,000.00 240,000.00 - - 283915810 3,082,619.70

BEA: Total liabilities 155,370,498.75  165,591,851.21  163,175,331.44  172,466,275.74 37,955,868.97 40,538,810.13

EEMA Operating income 5497077469 38,821,471.05  59.333230.65 3042477264 1100558270  38,835259.14
FHECFERN Net profit ("-" for

[-J55851) net losses) -5,432,47434  -2,310,607.77 229,646.40 -2,859,263.48  -2,417,285.99 1,297,415.94

GAbRGE Total comprehensive income ~ -5,432,47434  -2,310,607.77 22964640 -2,859,26348  -2,417,285.99 1,297,415.94

@eEgRene  Cash flows from
operating activities -3,912,269.72 -1,901,793.01 -6,263,40749  -1,098,311.69 6,666,079.11 -1,561,946.93
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EEELEIBELEPHES

2.

Interests in joint ventures and associated
201556 A30H

2014512 H 31

1HE Items 30 June 2015 31 December 2014
B Associated companies

~EBOBELE
B OREER

- Major associated company
Less: provision for impairment

13,496,926.92

14,384,564.38

N Total 13,496,926.92 14,384,564.38
(1) BEEBETE (1) Major associated company:
BB LA
Percentage of
shareholdings
HeELEy
Hed¥Rg HAEEED
LELR TEQEH EHME B BE WeiRERE HMER REEGERM
Accounting
method for
investments in Strategic
Principal joint ventures significance
place of Place of Nature of or associated Registered to the Group's
Name of enterprise business registration  business Directly Indirectly company capital activities
ke 33 33 REFAE  2334% - BERA ARE6,0008T R
HEHE
Xi'an Ruite Xi'an Xi'an Production Equity method RMBGO million Yes
and sales of
laser
prototyping
machine
(2) EEMEPENFENHFEE - (2)  Principal financial information on the major associated

TERINRTARBEEZHELENT

EWBER  ELEBMELENTE

1

BIEERERRERAABEAER
MAEALR S-S BRARENHE

B o SN

TREIRTEBLMBIE

BRREREZABREASEHB T

EREFRMEENHGBE

company:

The following table sets forth the principal financial
information on the major associated company, which
represented the amounts after adjustments made based
on relevant fair value upon investment and the unified
accounting policies. In addition, the following table also
sets forth reconciliation of such financial information to
the carrying amount of the investment in the associated
company of the Group using equity method:
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BRI

Xi'an Ruite
HREE HNEE
RER B A5 FHRAE

Closing balance/ Opening balance/
amount occurred amount occurred

HE Item this period last period
mHEE Current assets 67,310,803.46 68,029,211.23
ERFBEE Non-current assets 65,100,820.49 66,334,649.95
BEAF Total assets 132,411,623.95 134,363,861.18
mENAE Current liabilities 22,205,670.99 26,315,859.77
ERFHEE Non-current liabilities 46,277,800.00 40,231,000.00
ABfEEeF Total liabilities 68,483,470.99 66,546,859.77
FEE Net assets 63,928,152.96 67,817,001.41
DER R RS Non-controlling interests 8,351,030.82 8,435,718.74

BENERRREER

BB L HIET B8

Equity attributable to shareholders
of the Company
Share of net assets calculated based

55,577,122.14

59,381,282.67

FEEMTE on percentage of shareholding 14,920,830.90 15,828,488.13
HEEPERED Carrying amount of investment

REEE in associates 13,496,926.92 14,384,564.38
ZERA Operating income 33,481,851.99 24,250,784.70
F A E Net profit (“-" for losses)

CFEIB AT - 1574E51)) -3,888,848.46 403,474.61
AT ARRE Total comprehensive income -3,888,848.46 403,474.61

(Vi) RISK RELATED TO FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

N~ EEmT BEEENER

AEEEAREHTHESESHTAN
Rk TEBHE:

ERRER
B LR
SN
EE =K [ ez

TXEXEHm Lm0 REFKREA
ARERPHLENEL  AREERRF -
BEMEF ARG ERRBTEREER
HBEME(LSE -

AEBIeEREREIRN B IZ2E R K
HZAMBEENFE - KR ESHE
DHAREPHEEENTHTZE - ERZ
RREEER AEEEHERREER
BRA Z Bl A o3 AT AN 6% [ P T R O LR 0 RR
TEEE M E R AT R XK F AR HENA
IR - AEEAREEAERKF
AEEEeEMEMELRAREERREA
BABEN RS NERTSBRARAE
BEEERBHRE - REEO ARG
Pt E ISk BE i & M BF 1E Il R AR AV BRTT
EENARBREEREK -

The Group is exposed to the following risks from financial
instruments during its ordinary activities:

o Credit risk

o Liquidity risk

o Interest rate risk

o Foreign exchange risk

This note presents information about the Group’s exposure
to each of the above risks and their sources, the Group’s
objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing
risks, etc.

The goal of the Group’s involvement in risk management is to
balance the risk and revenue and minimize the adverse effects
on financial results of the Group brought by the financial
risks. The Group's risk management policies are established to
identify and analyze the risks confronted by the Group, to set
appropriate risk limits and control program, and to monitor risks
and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems
are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions
and the Group's activities. The internal audit department of the
Group also examines whether the exercise of internal control
system meets the requirements of risk management policies
on periodical and random basis.
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My o I%EKF%H SPHBERE
ZREASBEFEHENREFHEKRNEK
KB - REEABERB  AEEMAKX
BB FE R G 7N SR B AR SRR EL b
Wk 4B EEM17.17% (2014512 A31H -
14.94%) 5 AN+ A S [E K 8 HA b R R (B
B FE Uk kT8 E B R B AT HA NP A B 49 R SR AN
BRERFPHBR -

AEEMASZHNEAEARRMO/EE
BERTEBESREENRTESR - A&
B A RMEMAIESAERBAZERR
BREFELR

Credit Risk

Credit risk refers to the risk of financial loss incurred to one
party of the financial instrument due to the other party’s failure
of performing its duty. The Group’s credit risk is primarily
attributable to monetary capital and accounts receivables
and other current assets. Exposure to these credit risks are
monitored by management on an ongoing basis.

As the Group principally puts monetary funds excluding cash
to the financial institutions with good credit standing, the
management considers that there is no significant credit risk
and the Group will not incur loss from the counterparty’s
default.

In respect of receivables, the sales department of the Group
has established a credit policy under which individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers to determine the
amount and term of credit. Credit grading is depending on the
financial condition, external grading and bank credit record (if
any). Generally, except for deposit for warranty, all payments
have to be paid by the end of the negotiated credit term. The
group authorized credit term to customers according to their
payment records and transaction performance, generally, the
credit term will be one to three months. Normally, the Group
does not require collateral from customers.

In monitoring customer credit risk, customers are grouped
according to some factors, such as ageing and maturity date.

The accounts receivable of the Group as at 30 June 2015 and
31 December 2014 that are overdue but not impaired assessed
via individual and collective basis are not significant.

The credit risk of the Group is principally impacted by self-
characteristics of each customer other than their industries or
countries and areas where their businesses operate. Therefore,
significant concentration of credit risk is principally attributable
to individual customers’ significant accounts receivable. As
at the date of balance sheet, 17.17% (31 December 2014:
14.94%) of the total accounts receivable and other receivables
was due from the Group’s top five buyers. Moreover, The
Group’s neither overdue nor impaired accounts receivable
mainly related to those customers without default records
recently.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the
carrying amount of each financial asset in the balance sheet.
The Group does not provide any other guarantees resulted in
credit risk exposure.

Interim Report 2015 Shenji Group Kunming Machine Tool Company Limited |29 -




2\

B B

mBUERR  EREEREBRITARNES
FEMEBEENTAEENEHRHLE
B2RBRHER AABAREFAAAEE
BENASERTE BRASAKNE
HREMEREEFARNEFREFR (N
REFPEEXLTERERLR  FFE
BARFEZSNE) o LI ARFD
SEREMRERGE  ERAFRLNE
BeR  HERLERKREEBRERNT
AERERES  UWREQANESRE
N AEBENBEREENEEEHNED
MRBELFR  UREEAFEERHZE
MRTE @ NEERGERFTRNIRSHE BN
HESZERNAEES  AIKESEIES
BEBAERHEANERES  UWnE
AR ERANRDESFK

AEERNEERABRENESRABRARN
BEWaRReRE(BREARANE(IMER
RPN EERBRAMNRITAE)
AEMNRBIMFERE OHR - ARKEX
NEEFRHAMT

Liquidity risk

Liquidity refers to the risk of short of funds when an enterprise
performs its duty related to financial liabilities. The Group and
its subsidiaries are responsible for their own cash management,
including short-term investment for surplus cash and the raising
of loans to satisfy expected cash demands (if the amount
of borrowings exceeds the preset limits, the approval from
the board of directors is required). On the other hand, the
Company also considers to negotiate with the suppliers by
requiring them to adjust some amount of the debts, or using
the measure of sale long ageing accounts receivable to obtain
money in advance to reduce the pressure of cash flow of the
Company. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its short-
term and long-term liquidity requirements and its compliance
with lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash, readily realizable marketable securities and
adequate committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term.

As at the balance sheet date, the residual contractual term of
the financial assets and liabilities of the Group calculated at the
undiscounted contractual cash flow (including at contractual
interest (in the case of floating rate, at the prevailing interest
at balance sheet date) and their earliest date required to be
repaid are as follows:

THENMN  ARKT

Unit: RMB
01556 AR XFRNARRLRE
At 30 June 2015 undiscounted contractual cash flow
Dk EESR%
EREE 1582f 15556 SENL At REEE
Within one
year or on Carrying amount
L Item demand 1-2 years 2-5 years Over 5 years Total on balance sheet
BHER Short term loans 346,367,258.16 - - - 346,367,258.16  338,000,000.00
ERZE Bils payable 87,508,582.27 - - - 8750858227  87,508,582.2]
EREFREMENT Accounts payable
and other payables 640,215,049.62 - - - 640,215,049.62  640,215,049.62
RHER Long-term borrowings 218,511,374.58 56,211,927.70 79,431,756.73 - 354,155,059.01  324,724,136.15
REERHN Long-term payable 20,990,921.52 342,168.88 1,026,506.64 513,254.35 22,872,851.39 21,371,338.49
GHI Total 1,313,593,186.15 56,554,096.58 80,458,263.37 513,254.35 1,451,118,800.45 1,411,819,106.53

- IRt R




WHUENANAXTENARREHE

At 31 December 2014 undiscounted contractual cash flow

15/, EERER
ER{EE 15828 25358 SENLE &% FEEE
Within one
year or on Carrying amount
R [tem demand 1-2 years 2-5 years Over 5 years Total on balance sheet
BB Short term loans 292,986,496.39 - - - 292,986,496.39  284,500,000.00
ERZE Bills payable 75,048,188.00 - - - 75,048,188.00  75,048,188.00
EREHRAMENT Accounts payable and
other payables 647,932,878.68 - - - 647,932,878.68  647,932,878.68
REER Long-term borrowings 14,186,333.33  205,613,666.67 - - 219,800,000.00  200,000,000.00
REEMF Long-term payable 21,078,052.72  10,710,110.80 1,026,506.64 684,337.76  33,499,007.92  30,986,904.25
5 Total 1,051,231,949.12  216,323,777.47 1,026,506.64 684,337.76  1,269,266,570.99 1,238,467,970.93
| = [ b 3. Interest Rate Risk
BEMEFNIZSFNENEE LT ESD R The Group’s exposure to fair value interest rate risk and
FAREEEDREALBEMNEXER XK SR cash flow interest rate risk mainly arise from interest bearing
S XK@ o ANE .@;ﬁmiﬁiﬁtﬂ;}:ﬁm financial instruments with fixed rate and floating rate. The

B E M R EF B A R T AN -

EHAZE R B EER

REREE E’J.Eﬂ/#@)ﬂ

RTABAG - AEEBYRATESRTA

PR R R o

(a) AEEREEABXRARKENGER

Group determined the proportion of fixed interest rate and
floating interest rate risk based on the market conditions
and maintained an appropriate mix of fixed interest rate and
floating interest rate through regular review and supervision.
The Company did not hedge interest rate risk with derivative
financial instruments.

(a) The interest-bearing financial instruments held by the

BT AT : Group as at the balance sheet date are as follows:
EEfEemT A : Fixed interest rate financial instruments:
TEEMN - AR¥T
Unit: RMB
2015%6A30H 2014%12R31H
30 June 2015 31 December 2014
ERAE 2 ERAE 2
EH Item Real interest rate Amount  Real interest rate Amount
TREE Financial assets
-EHES - monetary fund 3.25% 1,566,000.00 = =
-EfiREEE - other current assets 3.4% -3.6% 23,000,000.00 - -
SRAE Financial liabilities
-BHER - short-term borrowings 5.885% - 7.5% -338,000,000.00 51% - 7.5% -284,500,000.00
fEf Total -313,434,000.00 -284,500,000.00
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(b)

FENERERT A

Floating interest rate financial instruments:

THEENMN  ARET

Unit: RMB
2015%6A30H 20145128318
30 June 2015 31 December 2014
BERAE k2 BRAE £
EH Item Real interest rate Amount Real interest rate Amount
TREE Financial assets
-E%Ee - monetary fund 035%  131,914,563.00 035%  162,383,895.69
tBat Financial liabilities
-REEZ - long-term borrowings 5.4%-5.775%  -324,724,136.15 6.77%  -200,000,000.00
~REEMH - long-term payables
-ERERER - secured loans payables 6.28% -19,985,479.44 6.93% -29,494,440.35
A Total -212,795,052.59 -67,110,544.66
RS (b) Sensitivity Analysis

HE2015%6A308 r ®HME=ET
BEELT BEFELEFH 25
EEI B AEEFFERKRE
R D 3G AR #452,189.49
ik

HE2014F12A318 £HEME s

NERIERT BEMEEFRA TR
25EES S EH AL EFHE LK
R AR 142,609.91
ik

HREBEERBRAKANEASER
mAoanBEMNERRNERTIA £
At RN 3 AT R OO R S BBOR B
NP ERBREEERBERAMERE
A REAHNESE eI A
ETEMERNTE - GAREER
BRAKEN  EAKEEBERSR
BN XEREOFENEIFTETA
b S SRR 53 A R B R K BROR
SR EE RN RS HIRF R
HONEBRARKRANTE - L —F
EODMERRAEOBREMITE

As at 30 June 2015, if the interest rates had been 25 basis
point higher/lower and all other variables held constant,
the net profit and shareholder equity of the Group would
decrease/increase RMB452,189.49.

As at 31 December 2014, if the interest rates had been
25 basis point higher/lower and all other variables held
constant, the net profit and shareholder equity of the
Group would decrease/increase RMB142,609.91.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous
change in the net profit and shareholder equity that
would arise assuming that the change in interest rates
had occurred at the balance sheet date and had been
applied to re-measure those financial instruments held
by the Group which expose the Group to fair value
interest rate risk at the balance sheet date. In respect of
the exposure to cash flow interest rate risk arising from
floating rate non-derivative instruments held by the Group
at the balance sheet date, the impact on the net profit
and shareholder equity is estimated as an annualised
impact on interest expense or income of such a change
in interest rates. The analysis is performed on the same
basis for the prior year.
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Foreign Exchange Risk

In respect of accounts receivables and payables denominated
in foreign currencies other than the functional currency, the
Group ensures that its net exposure is kept to an acceptable
level by buying or selling foreign currencies at spot rates when
necessary to address short-term imbalances.

(a) AEEREEREXRANSINEEE (a)
BEEAEXREBRBOMT o BRI
HRER - BERmOSBEUARE
R LNEERGBERBANRERTE -

The Group’s exposure as at the balance sheet date to
currency risk arising from recognised major assets or
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies is as follows.
For presentation purposes, the amounts of the exposure
are shown in Renminbi, translated using the spot rate at
the balance sheet date.

THRENMN - ARKT

Unit: RMB
2015%6830A8 2014%12A31H
30 June 2015 31 December 2014
NERE FEARWHE HNERE HEARYHE
The The
Foreign conversion Foreign conversion
currency of RMB currency of RMB
HH Item balance balance balance balance
BB Cash at bank and on hand
-B - EUR 57,850.73 397,428.74 20,853.92 155,478.48
-E7 - UsSD 410,846.99 2,511,754.15 48,887.85 299,144.75
— B - HKD 8,421,818.82 6,641,530.54 8,979,524.54 7,083,677.52
JEYAR X Accounts receivable
-But - EUR 36,718.27 252,250.84 - -
-E% - UsSD 439.00 2,683.87 102,236.70 625,586.37
Hib W Other receivables
- - HKD 2,000.00 1,577.22 2,000.00 1,592.74
FET RN Accounts payable
-Bt - EUR -395,362.40 -2,716,100.18 -852,872.38 -6,358,675.33
%7 - UsSDh - - -646,515.58 -3,956,028.81
-Hix - JPY - - -85,380,933.47 -4,386,113.42
HitERR Other payables
-Bt - EUR -28,889.16 -198,465.64 - -
EEBEBRMOLE Total balance sheet
exposure
-B - EUR -329,682.56 -2,264,886.24 -832,018.46 -6,203,196.85
= - UsSD 411,285.99 2,514,438.02 -495,391.03 -3,031,297.69
—H7 - JPY - - -85,380,933.47 -4,386,113.42
— A% - HKD 8,423,818.82 6,643,107.76 8,981,524.54 7,085,270.26
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(b) AEEEANHARBEINED (b) The exchange rates of RMB to foreign currency
ERSFTIT applicable by the Group are as follows:
BB ARKT
Unit: RMB
FiE=E WE QP EER
Reporting date
Average rate mid-spot rate
A =t HR iR
At the At the
Current Last end of beginning of
HH Item period period the period the period
X usD 6.1163 6.1249 6.1136 6.1190
Ht JPY 0.0507 0.0593 0.0501 0.0514
B HKD 0.7887 0.7900 0.7886 0.7889
BT EUR 7.1628 8.4068 6.8699 7.4556
(c) BENEDHT (c) Sensitivity analysis

R TE B BE X A SN E
ETE AEEREERGBR
BARBHXT BT
MR HEREHEARE
181 % 5 28 R AR #E 2 AF A H
B IOR D) BERIAT » W
R EERBRBNHEXY

BER/AREIIR -

Gy Kok
=

R TT

sheet date.

Assuming all other risk variables other than exchange
rate remained constant, a 1% appreciation of the
RMB against the USD, Japanese yen, Euro and HKD
at the balance sheet date would have increased
(decreased) shareholder equity and net profit by
the amount shown below, whose effect is in RMB
and translated using the spot rate at the balance

THENMN  ARKET

Unit: RMB
R ER =% B
EHHE Item Equity Net profit
201556 308 As at 30 June 2015
ETT usD -21,372.72 -21,372.72
et HKD -56,466.42 -56,466.42
BT EUR 19,251.53 19,251.53
At Total -58,587.61 -58,587.61
2014512 A31H As at 31 December 2014
e usD 25,766.03 25,766.03
=5 JPY 37,281.96 37,281.96
s HKD -60,224.80 -60,224.80
BT EUR 52,727.17 52,727.17
= Total 55,550.36 55,550.36

Bl 3¢ casEEesEm6ERAT 205 FHEE




REERBERBE  EREHM
BERFKTEMARET AR
BHXT AT BRTiE®R
MERZEFEARBRZE1%E
BYRRESEMERN M
ERIRE R BEAERET RA
< o

tHBRESTRBREER
BREERZLES U

BHEXHEERBERAAE
BEEN mREXEROSE
MTAETEHNFESLLO -
F—FENTERRAEOR
RIMITIE ©

- RREENKE
AEEENAABEFENEREEXS

mAafE-

AEBEERMEEMNABIERE : ERE
T BWHR - B RIAEMA H L E SR
BEZ BRGNS ATHEESRERE
MRRERES - P e MEEMA EEF
BRBREE  AHEREHEEREAAE
EEZEETEX - ARNELESE D BAH#
HESREENRBERENCAEBE B
HARBREAAELBEIHIESRE

Eo

BABL REABXS
RARWE - KRREBER

Japanese yen, Euro and HKD at the balance sheet
date would have had the equal but opposite effect
on them to the amounts shown above, on the basis
that all other variables remain constant.

The above sensitivity analysis has been ascertained
assuming that the change in foreign exchange
rates had occurred at the balance sheet date and
had re-measured the exposure to foreign exchange
risk for financial instruments held by the Group at
that date. The analysis was performed on the same
assumption and method of the previous year.

(IX) DISCLOSURE OF FAIR VALUE

(X)

The Group had no financial assets and financial liabilities
measured at fair value.

The Group's financial assets and financial liabilities mainly
include: cash at bank and on hand, receivables, payables and
available-for-sale financial assets. Given the above financial
assets and liabilities (other than equity investments which are
classified as available-for-sale financial assets) are expected
to be realized in a short term, the differences between their
carrying amounts and their fair values are insignificant. As
the fair value of equity investments which are classified as
available-for-sale financial assets cannot be obtained, the
Group and the Company measure such financial assets at costs.

RELATED PARTIES AND TRANSACTIONS

Information on the largest shareholder of the
Company

BRAFHERT  BLAAHARTF
HiE R Al NERRELD AAT
BAFEE it EBME dMEE (%) (%) BREEHA
Name of Percentage of Percentage of  Ultimate controlling
the largest  Place of Business shareholding voting rights  shareholder of
shareholder  registration  nature Registered capital (%) (%)  the Company
HEEE PE BREIEHE AR#1,556,480,0007C 25.08 2508 EBTEBEE
EEER%ZE®
Shenji Group  China Production RMB1,556,480,000 Shenyang State-owned
and sales of Assets Supervision and
machine tools Administration
Commission
KATHNFLARER 2. Subsidiaries of the Company

ARBFRBNERFRMEL 1

Please see Note VII.1 for information of subsidiaries of the

Company.
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Name of other related parties

Joint ventures and associated companies of the

Please see Note VII.2 for information of joint ventures and
associated companies of the Company.

Information on other related parties

B 6 R 1R

Related relationship

EMEIEREEREEEREEARA
Yunnan Industrial Investment Holding Group Co Ltd.

EHERERELOBRAR(IE#ELOD])
Yunnan Yun Ji Group Import and Export Co., Ltd. (“Yun Ji | & E Co.")

ERECYEBAERAR(ICYRE])
Yunnan CY Group Co., Ltd.

ERABHERAR([EREEAR])
Kunming Kunji Group Co., Ltd. (“Kunji Group Co.")

EHEEMEERERAR(IZERHEYE])
Yunnan State-owned Assets Property Management Co., Ltd.
("Yunnan State-owned Assets Property”)
EMCYEESEREH ([ SERERK])
Yunnan CY (Group) Company Jinhui Spraying Factory
("Jinhui Spraying Factory”)
EECYSERFABREEREZZPOL(ESF L))
Yunnan CY Group Co., Ltd., Mechanical and
Electrical Products Trading Centre (“Trading Centre”)
BEMARNDBRABI P REEER([hREEERR])
Shenyang Zhongjie Machine Tool Co., Ltd. (“Zhongjie machine tool”)

B R
Shenyang Machine Tool Company Limited (“Shenyang Machine Tool"”)

EERRREBERRAR([REBE])
Shenyang Machine Tool YinFeng Foundry Co., Ltd. (“YinFeng Foundry”)

EEEFMEREEAR([ERAFHE])
Shiess GmbH, Germany (“Shiess”)

EBSRAKEREBREELRI(IKERED
Shenyang Machine Tool complete sets of Equipment Co. Ltd.
("Complete Sets of Equipment”)

RABHEZRNBER
The second largest shareholder
of the Company
RRRE-ARBRRLZ FRF]
Subsidiary of the largest
shareholder of the Company
RRRE—ABRRZ FRF]
Subsidiary of the largest
shareholder of the Company
RRABEZ KRR ZFRF
Subsidiary of the second largest
shareholder of the Company
RRABEZRKBRRZFRA
Subsidiary of the second largest
shareholder of the Company
RRRE-ABRRLZ FRF]
Subsidiary of the largest
shareholder of the Company
ARAE-—ABRRZFAR
Subsidiary of the largest
shareholder of the Company
RRAFE—ARBRRLZ FRA]
Subsidiary of the largest
shareholder of the Company
RRAFE-ARBRRZ FRAA]
Subsidiary of the largest
shareholder of the Company
RRARE—ABRRLZ FRF]
Subsidiary of the largest
shareholder of the Company
RRARE—ABRRLZ FRA]
Subsidiary of the largest
shareholder of the Company
RRAFFE—RBRRZFAA
Subsidiary of the largest
shareholder of the Company
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5- BEXSZER 5. Related party transactions
(1) FREEE G ESLE(TSERE (1) Purchase of goods/receiving services (not included salaries
HEABEFH) for key management staff)
BHEE  ARKT
Unit: RMB
BT HBRXZAR AR AR AR
Amount Amount
Nature of occurred occurred last
Related party connected transaction this period period
TERER BEEY 1,010,962.36 2,088,755.00
Jinhui Spraying Factory Purchase of goods
EE IR BEEY 482,694.73 -
Shenyang Machine Tool Purchase of goods
EEEEYE BX 8% - 362,104.21
Yunnan State-owned Assets Property  Receiving services
(2) HEED  1EBREHK (2)  Sales of goods/providing services
CHEEN  ARKT
Unit: RMB
A BHIXZAR VN e o FHABAER
Amount Amount
Nature of occurred occurred last
Related party connected transaction this period period
SO & B - 3,735.05
Yunji | & E Co. Sales of goods
CY&HE RSB % - 77,487.17
Yunnan CY Group Co., Ltd. Providing services
RERE RS 153,846.15 -
Complete Sets of Equipment Providing services
(3) EAHiHE — %7 (3) Leases
CHEE  ARKT
Unit: RMB
REATERRMN LA
HEGT AW HEEEESE HEE HEE
Lease fee Lease fee
recognised recognised
Name of leaser Type of lease assets in the period in last period
EREEMER(ET) FE RIS 268,609.80 268,609.80
Yunnan State-owned Assets Land and premises
Property (note 1)
BMEB LT (72) T3 K s 2,625,000.00 2,625,000.00

Kunji Group Co. (note 2)

Land and Plant building
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MEMEENFHEEFE NG

AKRABR2014F1A1BEERFEH
EMERHEFAZRGR Tl
A AR¥537,219.607T ° 3 EIR
B2014%1 818 #£ £2015%612A
3181k °

ME#EERAREERE Rk TiE
FR#E -

EREREBRAFRKERE ARK
A - Ed&%f’“rﬁé ARBAF2001
FITANRBEXRRFZEENC LM
FRAEHEESRIIKEEMRES
R)FHBEMMES - IBATREER]
HNHEEHE tHE2AARK
4,457,340.3070 ' BMEMAEAAR
#792,659.707C © B W H /£2010
F11H128 ®2013%F11/A118 »
)‘5@2014%8)%285 PN/ e e
ERERAD ERATH‘ Lmiiﬁﬁ
ﬁﬁ%fuﬁﬁ%fﬁ S AEEESSE
BBERTE - ﬁxﬁ,ﬁﬁZ%ZOBfFH
A12B%2016F11A11H -

BEALFEFOHEERZE A2
AEEREREE L ARME AL
¥ B E B2015F1818 %68
0B LHHEOBEERAFARYE
2,625,000.007C °

(4) FIREEASHHY

Note 1:

Note 2:

The transactions were about rental fees for land and
premises paid to Yunnan State-owned Assets Property.

On 1 January 2014, the Company entered into the
rental adjustment agreement with Yunnan State-
owned Assets Property to adjust the annual rental to
RMB537,219.60. The agreement was effective from
1 January 2014 to 31 December 2015.

The transactions were about rental fees for premises
and land use rights paid to Kunji Group Co.

Kunji Group Co. who was authorized by the People’s
Government of Yunnan Province to succeed the rights
and obligations of the “The Premise Rental Agreement”
and “The Land Use Rights Rental Agreement” signed
between the People’s Government of Yunnan Province
and the Company on 12 November 2001. According
to the previous rental agreement, the annual rent
of land use rights was adjusted to RMB4,457,340,
and the annual rent of premises was adjusted to
RMB792,660. The adjusted annual rent was effective
from 12 November 2010 to 11 November 2013. On
28 August 2014, the Company renewed the aforesaid
land use right and premise rental agreement. Relevant
amount of the rent remains unchanged and the
agreements were effective from 12 November 2013
to 11 November 2016.

According to the renewed agreements, the Company
continued to rent land and premises from Kunming
Kunji Group Co., in the period of 1 January to 30 June
2015, the rental fees amounted to RMB2,625,000.00.

Emoluments of key management staff

THENMN  ARKT

Unit: RMB

RERBAEE FHRAE

Amount occurred Amount occurred

EHH Item this period last period
ARETE A BB Emoluments of key management staff 2,344,568.30 2,591,028.38
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(5) BAHIER

(6)

__

f
B

TR,

(5) Guarantee to related parties ;
Unit: RMB
ERREE
ERA RERE BE EREE ERERA ERESA BETRE
Whether
The secured the guarantee
Guarantor party Currency Amount  Commencement  Expiration completed
TREE NG N:4: 39,000,000.00  28/04/2014 28/04/2016 &
Shenyang Machine Tool (Group) ~ The Company ~ RMB No
THEE VYN ARE 21,000,000.00  28/04/2014 28/04/2016 &
Shenyang Machine Tool (Group)) ~ The Company ~ RMB No
T EE NG N 50,000,000.00  30/05/2014 30/05/2016 &
Shenyang Machine Tool (Group) ~ The Company ~ RMB No
THER YN AE% 90,000,000.00  26/06/2014 26/06/2016 &
Shenyang Machine Tool (Group) ~ The Company ~ RMB No
TRER NG| AE% 32,000,000.00  26/11/2014 25/05/2015 =
Shenyang Machine Tool (Group) ~ The Company ~ RMB Yes
TREE VNG AE% 50,000,000.00  11/03/2014 11/03/2015 =
Shenyang Machine Tool (Group) ~ The Company ~ RMB Yes
TREE AR AEH 32,000,000.00  28/05/2015 2411112015 &
Shenyang Machine Tool (Group) ~ The Company ~ RMB No
THEE NG AR 20,000,000.00  21/04/2015 21/04/2016 B
Shenyang Machine Tool (Group) ~ The Company ~ RMB No
TEEE AR7] N 60,000,000.00  06/05/2015 03/05/2016 &
Shenyang Machine Tool (Group) ~ The Company ~ RMB No
THEE NG N:e: 50,000,000.00  25/03/2015 25/03/2017 &
Shenyang Machine Tool (Group) ~ The Company ~ RMB No
THER AR AT RPRELQOET Shenyang (Group) provided guarantee for the Company’s
RENREEEIRMEER EEE financing facilities at a total amount of RMB300 million
wEE A ANRE3EI o A RAIN2015 secured from the Export-Import Bank of China. As at
FeHI VAWM EMN S HEZSTE A 30 June 2015, balance of short-term loan was RMB32
AEBO32EBTL(MzxT - 17) - EH million (see note V.17) and long-term loan was RMB250
BERBEAARKE2 SEL(MER million (see note V. 26).
26) °
CHEEE AANN T AELIRITEHEN Shenyang (Group) provided guarantee for the Company’s
BIEFEEIRMIER  REEEATRA financing facilities at a total amount of RMB100 million
ARBIUEIT o KA A R2015%F6 A secured from the Evergrowing Bank. As at 30 June 2015,
30EE AN S HIfERgE A ARK balance of short-term loan was RMB80 million (see note
0.8B T (MisEH ~ 17) ° V. 17).
B EEES (6) Provision of funds/Receipt of funds
TEEMN - ARET
Unit: RMB
B BHIXZAR 7B L
Related party Nature of connected transaction Current period Last period
BHREE AT RHEES —KRBFKIA 599,008.01 124.44

Kunji Group Co.

Provision of funds — other expenses
on behalf of related parties

Interim Report 2015 Shenji Group Kunming Machine Tool Company Limited |39 -




6 PBAM S EWENRE
e BEBE T SR

6. Receivables and payables from/to related parties

Receivables from related parties

TEHENMN  ARET
Unit: RMB

HEE® S 20156 A30H 2014%12AH31H
Name Related parties 30 June 2015 31 December 2014
JE W BR R B 5 IR 1,123,219.99 1,123,219.99
Accounts receivable Shenyang Machine Tool
JE W BR R =R & AT 251,438.34 272,874.96
Accounts receivable Schiess
Hi3EmEBEE 2B 7 Hy 41,477,764.74 39,656,925.20
Other non-current assets Schiess
JE1T B8 5 50 H Payables to related parties

BEEN  ARKT

Unit: RMB
REE® S 20156 A30H 2014F12A31H
Name Related parties 30 June 2015 31 December 2014
JE ST BR K TERRK 2,366,856.37 1,678,617.65
Accounts payable Jinhui Spraying Factory
JE S BRR B IR 604,465.50 421,770.77
Accounts payable Shenyang Machine Tool
TR FRIA CYEH 4,640.00 4,640.00
Advances from customers Yunnan CY Group Co., Ltd.
TR FRIA BP0 5,000.00 5,000.00
Advances from customers Trading Centre
TR IE B R 936,000.00 -
Advances from customers Shenyang Machine Tool
H At &5 3K EREELNT 7,875,000.00 5,253,903.52
Other payables Kunji Group Co.
H At RS 3K EEBEEME - 13,195.96
Other payables Yunnan State-owned Assets Property
NS BIRREH 200,000.00 1,530,000.00
Bills payables Jinhui Spraying Factory
t- EXREE (XI) CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

AEEEAREENBEZREERBBYER
737 R E E B oK T AR E RO (B AR AR R AR
BENBEEE BRAKENFELE
BENFMAEMES  NEFAKRENERY
I A R ([ 3R o

AREBEARRSERERENKFE - RE
HREFREEAGER - KRITEEMN
MWER - AEENEERBEXR(AIRAER
NREE) RERHERNERETEE -

The Group’s primary objective in managing capital is to
safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and
profitability by pricing its products with the level of risks it
faced and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost,
so as to maintain sustainable development of the Group and
provide return to the shareholders.

The Group manages the amount of capital in proportion to risk
and manages its debt portfolio in conjunction with projected
financing requirements. In accordance with industry practice,
the Group monitors capital structure on the basis of the debt
to equity ratio (calculated as total debt divided by total assets).

- B e




B EEMAL  2015F FEEAREE
MNEREBRFARBEE L IBFEESR
BEHAFREEBEN - BEFFRL
tbE  AREBAARRARRKRENRE S
- EERMERELEEEANRLEBE -
MR2015F6A30H ' AEBMEEEEER
561% (2014512 831H : 58%) °

ARAMEF AR FEIBRHERNE

B
There was no change in the Group’s approacﬂ“t
management for first half year of 2015 as compared with prior
years, i.e. maintaining the debt to equity ratio at a reasonable
range. To maintain or adjust this ratio, the Group may adjust the
dividend payment to shareholders, implement debt finance and
dispose of assets to reduce debts. The Group’s debt to equity

1Y ;,“___'(I

ratio was 61% as at 30 June 2015 (31 December 2014: 58%).

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject

Xk e to externally imposed capital requirements.
T EEREEER (XIl) COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
1 EEAHEE 1. Significant commitments
(1) EBEF#EE (1) Capital commitments
2EEN  ARKT
Unit: RMB
20156 H30H 20145128311
HHE Item 30 June 2015 31 December 2014
BEIIMABITH M ATSE  Construction contract signed but
BITHEZTIEAR not implemented or not fully
implemented 76,022,183.62 84,215,440.80
EREERFITHARET Construction contract
HERTEEITHY authorized but not signed or
ERIEEMR not implemented or not fully
implemented 242,608,266.62 250,337,149.62
BEFTEEREFRETH Proprietary technology and patent
EERMMEFNFAIER licensing contract signed and
implementing or proposed to
implement 42,241,312.67 42,241,312.67
CEl Total 360,871,762.91 376,793,903.09
(2) #AEETHEHAIE (2) Operating Lease commitments
BIERTBIENEEERESCLAER According to the irrevocable lease agreement of premises,

& ARBRNEERBERANEKEX

NOKEREMREDT

the minimum lease payments after the date of the

reporting period that the Group should pay are as follows:

TEHENMN  ARET
Unit: RMB

2015%6H30H 2014%12A31H
HA Item 30 June 2015 31 December 2014
TFEAA(E14E) Within 1 year (including 1 year) 6,512,448.00 6,363,517.60
1FANE2FURN(E2F) 1-2 years (including 2 years) 5,250,000.00 5,271,750.00
2FLAE3FAR(E3IF) 2-3 years (including 3 years) 5,250,000.00 5,250,000.00
3FAE Over 3 years 17,500,000.00 22,750,000.00
=X Total 34,512,448.00 39,635,267.60
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RNAE EEHEEIE RS EAE R ER
RAR(ATEBIEm®E ) R201146F8
RAEZETHRAREESR  RABAARES
TCEERREES) - HEILZHEUZ
BWRE2MEMZFEIRMD AR 2 AN
TEB EME2FDNBIEEE - WAEAHE
HZBRERELEERFEREME - PERILER
BERKIAPFEMEFREB THRRHEE
AR °2013F11 A EMEFHILEHE
MARBDRERSE — NE _HEREF
B RBIEERHEUARAAREERLR
HATREERIBRRAEREEME B
REEY UERKIEEHEREENER
ARBI173258B T R NHEBEOS A
R#123 587 ABFEERAR A RIEE
BRNER - AARE—FEHPER
ARBEEBITTEERFEN - MAR
RAREERBITLERN(CRIGE - T
E)VAIUEAERFZRAR —EERETH
TEMAE  RIEARGEEENTA T
JEAEBESEM 201470248 » R
EBXR - ERETE T R IR ETT
ZF 22014127188 - EFHEH AR
S EREEANETESRETEETA
HEE G -

T H A RMBIBEME T TP RARER
REHRE - T2HRMT

a> MBRREHEMEFERBRMDBRAF]
B E AL RS A E MR E B R A
BIZR AT HICTK692 6 45 7% b $L 4% PR 7%
BAR) BRESEMEFEIR
DB MR A RS L% EERBAEK
AR 17 B BR A A2 5T RIS TK6926 515 %
8 88 IR B AT 1935 )

b WELKEBEREKKRNDBRRA
RAHFREBE T HARREEME
FTERBENARQARESRER

1,173.258 70 I HEH£61.758
JC

Contingencies

The Company and its distributor Beijing Hanhai Hongzheng
Machinery Co., Ltd. (“Beijing Hanhai"”) signed a Machine Tool
Sales Contract in August 2011, and the Company signed a
Manufacturer Authorization Letter authorizing Beijing Hanhai
to participate in a tender exercise conducted by Jilin Haoyu
Electrical Co., Ltd. (“Jilin Haoyu”) using the tool machine,
and the Company undertook to assume responsibility for
quality assurance of the tool machine. Subsequent to being
awarded the tender, Beijing Hanhai signed a Machine Tool Sales
Contract with the end-user, Jilin Haoyu. Jilin Haoyu instituted
legal proceedings in November 2013 whereby Beijing Hanhai
and the Company was named the 1st and 2nd defendants,
respectively. Jilin Haoyu considered that Beijing Hanhai and
the Company were unable to resolve product quality issues
effectively within the product warranty period, and requested
that the product be returned and the amount of RMB11.7325
million paid to Beijing Hanhai be refunded, and liquidated
damages of RMB1.235 million be paid; and at the same time
requested that the Company assume joint and several liabilities
for payment. The Company pointed out in its defence at the
trial of first instance that the Company had performed its
guality assurance obligations, and that in accordance with the
confirmed Service Invoice and Work Completion Invoice for
the maintenance service of the Company, it could basically
be confirmed that the tool machine under dispute had been
functioning normally. Therefore, the Company did not commit
any act in breach of the contract and should not assume joint
and several liabilities. On 24 July 2014, as requested by the
plaintiff, the court commissioned the identification organization
to identify the machine. On 18 December 2014, identification
organization issued a report that the main entrusted identified
issues of the machine did not have the identification conditions.

Recently, the Company received a civil judgment from the
Intermediate People’s Court of Jilin City, Jilin Province that:

a. the Purchase Contract on TK6926 CNC Floor-type Boring
and Milling Machine Tool between Jilin Haoyu Electrical
Co., Ltd. (the plaintiff) and Beijing Hanhai Hongzheng
Machinery Co., Ltd. (the defendant) be discharged; the
Technical Services Agreement on TK6926 CNC Floor-
type Boring and Milling Machine Tool between Jilin
Haoyu Electrical Co., Ltd. (the plaintiff) and Shenji Group
Kunming Machine Tool Co., Ltd. (the defendant) be
discharged;

b.  within ten days after the judgment comes into force,
Shenji Group Kunming Machine Tool Co., Ltd. (the
defendant) shall return to Jilin Haoyu Electrical Co.,
Ltd. (the plaintiff) the consideration of the contract of
RMB11,732,500, together with a payment of RMB617,500
as liquidated damages;
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c.  upon fulfilment of the payment obligations as determin :
in paragraph b above, Shenji Group Kunming Machine
Tool Co., Ltd. (the defendant) may at its own cost fetch
the TK6926 CNC floor-type boring and milling machine
tool deposited at Jilin Haoyu Electrical Co., Ltd. (the
plaintiff);

The costs of action of RMB99,600 and authentication fee of
RMB148,000, RMB247,600 in total, shall be borne by Shenji
Group Kunming Machine Tool Co., Ltd. (the defendant).

After receiving the judgment and duly consulting its lawyer,
the Company believed that the facts identified in the first
instance judgment went against the opinion of authentication.
Accordingly, the Company has filed an appeal to the Higher
People’s Court of Jilin Province.

According to professional opinions issued by lawyers, results
of the second trial would exist uncertainty. The economic
losses to be caused by the case cannot be judged at present.
Due to the prudential principle, the Company recognised the
penalty, court acceptance fee and appraisal fee amounted
RMB865,100 which should be undertaken by the Company
according to the first trial decision as provision in the 2015
interim financial statements (see note V.30).

(X)) SUBSEQUENT EVENT TO THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

The Group had no subsequent event to the balance sheet
date to be disclosed.

(XIV) OTHER SIGNIFICANT EVENTS

1.

Segment reporting

The Group has two reportable segments, which are boring
machines segment and turbo machines segment, determined
based on the structure of its internal organization, management
requirements and internal reporting system. Each reportable
segment is a separate business unit which offers different
products and services, and is managed separately because
they require different technology and marketing strategies.
The financial information of the different segments is regularly
reviewed by the Group’s management to make decisions
about resources to be allocated to each segment and assess
its performance.
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(1)

Profit or loss, assets and liabilities of reporting segments

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s
management regularly reviews the assets, liabilities,
revenue, expenses and results of operations, attributable
to each reportable segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible assets, intangible
assets, other long-term assets and receivables, with the
exception of deferred tax assets, available-for-sale financial
assets, long-term equity investment and other unassigned
headquarters’ assets arising from the unrealized profit of
internal transactions. Segment liabilities include payables,
advances, bank borrowings and provisions attributable
to the individual segments.

Financial performance is operating income (including
operating income from external customers and Inter-
segment operating income) after deducting expenses,
depreciation, amortization and impairment. Losses
attributable to the individual segments, and interest
income and expense from cash balances and borrowings
managed directly by the segments. Inter-segment sales are
determined with reference to Prices charged to external
parties for similar orders. Investment income and directors’
remunerations are not allocated to individual segments.

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments
set out below is the measure of segment profit (“-" for
loss) and segment assets and liabilities reviewed by the
chief operating decision maker or is otherwise regularly
provided to the chief operating decision maker, even if
not included in the measure of segment profit or loss
and segment assets and liabilities:
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(2)

BREHAD FRIBOEERRELS Pl AARER #it
Boring machins Turbo machines Elimination among segments Unallocated items Total
18 18 ¥ L4 58 13 58 L4 ¥ 14
ER Item Current period Last period ~ Current period Last period ~ Current period Last period  Current period Last period ~ Current period Last period
SIRFHA Operating income from external customers~ 420371,592.65 33898793071 6107681484 49446,418.04 - - - - 3144840749 38843434875
ABERAMA Inte seqment operating income = - - - = - - - - -
HBENGELRN Income from investment in associates
el and joint ventures 2 - . - - - R4 %1518 G846 9515186
EHLERERK Impaiment losses
(BE-BIF) (" for reversal) 20,347,564.55 9,644,810.68 - - - - - - 20,347,564.55 9,644,810.68
fENRERER Depreciation and amortization 138689192 2107361837 286721161 3.275,206.03 - - - - 2669410353 243488440
FkRHERA Interest income from bank deposits 31313838 374,065.76 2604483 120,805.06 - - - - 33776281 494870.82
ek Interest expense 14514743.08 453336447 1,005,43458 83947051 - - - - 1552017766 5372,834.98
HRLE(BREE Profit before income tax
) (" for losses| 1972500645 5281288455 451867042 -2,852,580.16 - - L 8005194 6,079,757.44 2652798881  -49,585,707.27
Income tax expense
(" for tax credt) -3018,043.84  -10544,815.72 76,294.56 347,593.66 o o -469,785.24 14869119 341153450 -10,048,53087
Net profit (*-" for loss) 1670702261 -42,268,00883 459496498 -3,200,17382 - - 181446670 59310065 2311645429 -39,537,176.40
Total assets 2600426471.08 249313167979 318619,639.41  409,058,177.98 1966114339 2199468477 1473886936 1494197626 2916,123836.46 2,895,137,149.26
Total liabilties 1536310,58036  1,24992979%.22 25337827443 30647837637 -19.661,14339 2199468477 S - 1TI0027,711.40 155441348782
Other items:
- Operating income 4637117027 33789402052 61,07681484 49,446, 418.04 - - = - AT7447985.11 38734043856
- Operating cost 322,182,885.36 26328269457 5162916865  36,616,961.85 - - & - 37381205401 299,899,656.42
bihe) - Other non-cash expenses other than
depreciation and amortization 1456489595 12,254,569.95 - - - - - - 1456489595 12,254)569.95
-HBECENRARER - Longtem investment in
EAEESREE  asocates and financil
assets available for sale - - - - - - 1464192692 1455414000 1464192692 14,554,140.11
-RERERENN - Inoesse in ofher
AEEHEEENE non-current assets other
(M- J17) than long-tem equity
investments (" for decrease) 1800952924 433163193 -2,905,104.40 8751250 -132516.44 13251644 o - 1497190840 432713159
@ = 8 (2)  Geographic Information

AEEZTRMERROEBIEH
HIZXZWARERIERBEE(TE
EeREE  BURFEE  RIEAM
BHREE > TRIWNEBR TR Y
IR BBAREEXRFXEEER
MEPHMEMETEID - JERBE
EREREEBEMAEM(HREE
BEMS)RBEHEINBBEEDAR
EH(HEFEEMAEMS XA E
KBS PRMNTAEETE D o

The Group according to different regions presented
information which related to the revenue from External
customers and non-current assets (not including financial
assets, separate account, deferred tax assets, the same
below) in the table below. Revenue from external
customers is divided according to the customer’s location
of accepting service or purchase products. Whereas non-
current assets is divided according to physical location of
assets (for fixed assets) or location of assigned relevant
business (for intangible assets and goodwill) or location
of joint control enterprises and associate companies.

HIHRZWARE

Revenue from external customers

RS L HBAER

Amount occurred Amount occurred

B Rt E Country or region this period last period
F [ A P Mainland China 477,808,294.85 368,963,410.82
[ BR Overseas 3,640,112.64 19,470,937.93
il Total 481,448,407.49 388,434,348.75

AEBHZERBEEHUN P BEALRE
B o

The Group’s non-current assets are all located in Mainland
China.
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TE BARMBBREIBEHATE

e Wit Bl R
(1) BRI ERKE

1 >

(XV) NOTES TO PRINCIPLE ITEMS OF THE PARENT
COMPANY'’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Accounts receivable
(1) Analysis of the accounts receivable by category

THENMN ARET

Unit: RMB
15E6830R WUENFNR
30 June 2015 31 December 2014
FinE ThER i FEER
Provision for bad Provision for bad
Carmying amount and doubtful debts Carrying amount and doubtful debts
# £ HAi(%) i W) EEEE i BAICR) £ i) KERE
Proportion Proportion Proportion Proportion
[tem Note Amount (%) Amount (%) Book value Amount () Amount (%) Book value
Indvicualy signficant
accounts receivable
Wwith indhidual e debt
proviion [ 2843878976 338 - - DBA3B78976 21175544655 02 40364669 191 20771897786
Bad debt provision for
accounts receivable by
combinaton with redit
sk characters
EhE=m3E Receiabl due fom
the third pary b 02226369 6270 189,85,852.07 3861 30093678483 437381253.09 6654 1730690537 3057 2643121998
Receivable due from
the relaed party [ 7194643 09 - 11%46436 521376132 079 - - 537613
Sub-total 4974191016 6362 18928585207 3805 3081332019 442595,014.41 6133 11306908327 310 269,525,%1.14
EESETERRER  ndiidualy notsinficant
FABERNRIEE  acounts recevalle but
with indidual bad debt
proviion - - - 30131500 046 301315500
it Total 781.801.891.02 10000 189,285,850 U2 5925160389 6573636159 10000 177,105321.% 269 480,258,094.00
(a) BiREBEBEESTEEATLHEBETIR (a) Individually not significant accounts receivable but
EIREBEEUIRR with individual bad debt provision as at the end of
the period:
2REE - ARKT
Unit: RMB
ERER HREERER BRER sHREAl  FHRER
Provision
for bad and
Carrying doubtful Reasons for
Type of business amount debts Proportion making provision
BREXBLBHEZARE 284,382,789.76 - - ERERNAR
FRA700E T E MR THEREERE

Single accounts receivable over RMB7
million in machine tools business

Impairment occurred
under individual
assessment method
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(b)y #MEF - HRZREER SR
RRIBERERNE =T BN

(b)  Provisions for accounts receivable due f%'m
party in groups using ageing analysis method:

EHEN  ARKET

Unit: RMB
BEAE BRER Bg=4]
Provision
Carrying for bad and
BRE Ageing amount  doubtful debts Proportion
1ER Within 1 year 217,072,857.35 10,853,642.87 5%
1£22F 1-2 years 103,733,072.42 31,119,921.72 30%
2E3F 2-3 years 38,953,098.00 23,371,858.80 60%
3N E Over 3 years 130,463,609.13 123,940,428.68 95%
el Total 490,222,636.90 189,285,852.07
(o) e REARE T 5B (c) Accounts receivable due from related parties
SHEE - ARKT
Unit: RMB
EEBER
fist HAD ARG &8 BEBLBI(%)
Relationship Percentage of
with the total accounts
BURE Name Note Company Amount receivable (%)
BB Kunming TOS t6 FRF 5,577,806.03 0.71
X6 Subsidiary
BIZER Shenyang Machine Tool T6 ) 1,123,219.99 0.15
X6 Related party
EEA Shiess f-6 R 251,438.34 0.03
X6 Related party
ROER Changsha Ser t6 FRA 244,000.00 0.03
X6 Subsidiary
At Total 7,196,464.36 0.92

20156 A30H » AR FIEE
W R T BORIE (T RIS - R
AEBEHRERER -

(2) AHjatiE - Helo] 82 [0 a5 AR E

As at 30 June 2015, the Group conducted individual
assessment on accounts receivables due from related
parties and considered that there was no need to
make provisions for bad and doubtful debts.

(2) The provision, recovery and reversal of bad debts during

EIET - the period:
TEEN  ARET
Unit: RMB
i 201546 H30H 2014%12H31H
EH Item Note 30 June 2015 31 December 2014
HR W6 %5E Opening balance 177,105,521.96 155,495,696.39
NEAET IR Provision for the period 18,662,936.30 21,795,825.57

7R HA U [B] 3 6 ] Recovery or reversal during

the period (a) - -
N BA A% 8 Write-off during the period (b) -6,482,606.19 -186,000.00
HARBR%E Closing balance 189,285,852.07 177,105,521.96
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(3)

(a) AHARBARBLEEZNRW
RFRRER K DR -
(b) ARARAHESHEANRARE

7008 TTAYEURFRIZ 1T ©

RN ERSE I B K PR R AT B
) JEM IR X182
AREERBEI DA EURERE

s AE®158,471,381.077T * 15
BRI R RS T EAI20.27%

The Company did not occurred major recovered or

reversed provisions for bad debts during the period.

(b)

The Company had no written-off accounts payable

of more than RMB7 million during the period.

(3)

the period

Top five accounts receivable by debtor as at the end of

The Company’s top five balances of accounts receivable
at the end of the period totaled RMB158,471,381.07,
accounting for 20.27% of the Company’s total balance
of accounts receivable as at the end of the period.

2 HMEWR 2. Other receivables
(1) AMEWK I E (1) Analysis of other receivables by category:
EHEEN - ARKT
Unit: RMB
15E6430H WUENRNR
30 June 2015 31 December 2014
BEBE SRER FasE SRER
Provision for bad Provision for bad
Carying amount and doubtful debts ~ Book Value Catrying amount and doubtful debts Book Value
# £ %) 1 | A BEEE Ei tfi(%) i B BEEE
Proportion Proportion Proportion Proportion
i [tem Note  Amount (%) Amount (%) Amount (%) Amount (%)
FESEERTEE  Indhicualy signficant
Rptall other receivables with
EhRist indhicully bad debt
provision ] 5 S S = 5 S = = 5 S
BETEREHES  Bad debt proviion for
HREBEEOL  otherrecehablesy
RISt combination with
credit isk characters
BUE=R3E Receivables due from
third party (b 1915702087 6658 386111871 2016 15,295,901.9 17,586,601.35 6447 303392207 17.25 145526798
BiER A Receiabls due from
relate party (0 9615802 B4 - - 9R158293 96907544 353 - - 0,690,754
Ea Sub-total 2877284990 10000 3,861,118.71 1342 491173119 27.277.355.79 10000 303392207 112 4283437
ERSENEAEEE  ndvidualy not signficant
HRERERN other recevables but
EWRIR vith indvidall dab
debt provision - - - - - - - - - -
&3t Total 28771284990 10000 3,861,118.71 1342 49173119 2727735579 10000 303392207 1112 44343372
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(@)

HARARREEREHREKRY
BRI T ERERENEME
WK o

MEF - BIRRERER SR
REREFNE=ZTHMEK

No other receivables was individually significa
assessed individually for bad and doubtful deb

the end of the period.

Other receivables due from the

third party in groups

with provision for bad and doubtful debts using

K ageing analysis method:
THE c ARKT
Unit: RMB
REGE BIRER FTREA
Provision
Carrying for bad and Proportion
Rk Ageing amount  doubtful debts (%)
1EAR Within 1 year 14,745,775.72 572,635.97 4%
1224 1-2 years 2,245,524.43 1,122,762.22 50%
2E3F 2-3 years 199,809.97 199,809.97 100%
3FEME Over 3 years 1,965,910.55 1,965,910.55 100%
A&t Total 19,157,020.67 3,861,118.71
(o)  Ho b W B ES 5 FRIENE (c)  Other receivables due from the related party
TEHE  ARKT
Unit: RMB
1k EL ft FE WK
BuEHE HAQATBER &5 HEEH L BI(%)
Percentage
Relationship of total other
Name with the Company Amount receivables (%)
[ifeE o ] FRA 8,408,022.72 29.22
Xi'an Ser subsidiary
AR EHT FRA 1,207,806.51 4.20
Kunming TOS subsidiary
a&t
Total 9,615,829.23 33.42
20156 A30H © AR Al ¥ As at 30 June 2015, the Group conducted individual
H th i Uy B8 B U7 BOIR AT E B assessment on other receivables due from related
S RAEFTIRERER - parties and considered that there was no need to
make provisions for bad and doubtful debts.
(4) ZNEFEIE - Y [o] ot #2 [o] 4 152 AR 2E (4) The provision, recovery and reversal of bad debts during
HEIE7 - the period:
THEl - ARKT
Unit: RMB
2015%6A30H 2014F12A31H
HA Item Note 30 June 2015 31 December 2014
H Y] ehER Opening balance 3,033,922.07 2,394,670.06
NEAGTIR Provision for the period 827,196.64 639,252.01
7K HA Uk [E] 3k 8 [ Recovery or reversal
during the period (a) - -
7R BRAZ 8 Write-off during the period  (b) = =
HARER%E Closing balance 3,861,118.71 3,033,922.07
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(5)

(6)

(@) AHARBARBLEEEZWHM
FE W IR AR = U Bl g el -

(b) AHARBRBLEEEZNHM

FEMGRAZ A -

(a) The Group did not occurred any significant recovered
or reversed provisions for bad debts for other
receivables during the period.

(b) The Company had not occurred any significant
written-off other payables during the period.

H o ST 1 50T M o B R (5) Other receivables by nature
TEE  ARMT
Unit: RMB
20156 A30H 20145128318
MEME Nature 30 June 2015 31 December 2014
e Deposit 5,961,463.40 9,432,288.40
HR® Petty cash 3,460,603.18 1,391,352.16
EREFEERE Royalties receivable 4,595,571.77 4,595,371.74
FE U R R 1) B Interest of dividend receivable 3,812,450.95 3,835,401.82
Efy Others 10,942,760.60 8,022,941.67
NEF Sub-total 28,772,849.90 27,277,355.79
T ERERER Less: provision for bad debts 3,861,118.71 3,033,922.07

SNl Total 24,911,731.19 24,243,433.72
BERA T B ER BRI B A (6) Top five other receivables by debtor as at the end of the
B E il E W IE T period
wREEN  ARKT
Unit: RMB
15 ELfth B WK R
RABETBN FREFHRER
vt HIEHME BARGBE R ELB1(%) #
Percentage of
total balance Balance of
of other  provision for
receivables at bad debts
Closing the end of the  at the end of
Name of company Nature balance  Ageing period (%) the period
(kS RBER 8,408,022.72  1-2F 29.22 -
Xi'an Ser Other expenses on behalf Within one
of related parties year
ERERHEEBRAA REE 3,888,888.00 14 LAM 13.52 194,444.40
Far Eastern International Deposit 1-2 years
Leasing Co., Ltd.
TEFREEREERNBRAR  RER 1,787,240.00  1FLAR 6.21 89,362.00
China Kangfu International Deposit Within one
Leasing Co., Ltd. year
RHBH ENEMEERE - 1,207,806.51  1-2F 4.20 -
FERIRMF S
Kunming TOS Royalties payable, Interest 1-2 years
of dividends payable
ERREARETIRARRA ER® 1,090,000.00  14FLAR 3.79 54,500.00
Kunming Qun Chuang funding transactions Within one
Construction Co., Ltd. year
&t Total 56.94 338,306.40

16,381,957.23

- BRI re R




3

2)

(3)

(1) RERERESEWT - (1) Long-term equity investments by
2015468308 20144128318
HA Item 30 June 2915 31 December 2014
HFATIREE Investments in subsidiaries 68,126,236.86 68,126,236.86
WL D EHIRE Investments in associates 13,496,926.92 14,384,564.38
S Total 81,623,163.78 82,510,801.24
HFREIKE (2) Investments in subsidiaries
SHEL  ARKT
Unit: RMB
201551718 2015565308 AR AEER
23] AHEm AR BE HEER BRBE
Impairment Closing
Increase Decrease provision balance of
Balance at during the during the Balanceat  made during impairment
AR Subsidiary 1 Jan 2015 period period 30 June 2015 the period provision
RHER Kunming TOS 43,432,971.01 - - 4343297101 - -
e ] Xi'an Ser 21,693,265.85 - - 21,693,265.85 - -
BRERE General Machine 3,000,000.00 - - 3,000,000.00 - -
H Total 68,126,236.86 - - 68,126,236.86 - -
KRR FRAMEEREEZRME Please refer to the note VIl for the information of the
t e subsidiaries of the Company.
HHETRERKE - (3) Investments in associate
BEEEW  ARKT
Unit: RMB
KEERSE
Changes in equity for the period
1A EERH
WISF1A1R B BERA WISE6A3NR HEEE
BE ElIRE HoRE REWE  EfsARE  REEeE IR HRRERE 4] 48 HRBE
Investment Closing
income balance of
recognized Declared ~ Impairment Impairment
under the Other ~ Movement cash provision Investment
Balanceat  Additional Decrease equity  comprehensive of other dividends  made during Balance at company
HREEN Investment company 1Jan2015  investment  investment method income equity orprofits ~ the period Others 30 June 2015 provision
EZFRREHEIRAS Wan Ruite
RRARIEZAS) 14,384,56438 8763746 - - - = - 13496969

REKRERE

3. Long-term equity in

ARABECFNEMREESAME

to

Please refer to the note VII for the information of the
associates of the Company.
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4 EEWRAMEERK 4. Operating income and operating costs
TEE c ARET
Unit: RMB
RHRER TE RS
Amount occurred in Amount occurred in
the current period last period
O R A BRA
BE Item Income Cost Income Cost
TEEK Operating income from

principal activities 406,646,956.13  315,206,811.76  319,534,276.99  254,280,869.86

HE® Other operating income 4,000,422.38 2,902,591.15 1,093,910.19 640,236.50

& Total of operating income 410,647,378.51  318,109,402.91 320,628,187.18  254,921,106.36

5 REWS 5. Investment income

TEEN  AR¥T

Unit: RMB

b= e L HiE AR

Amount Amount

occurred occurred

during the during the

HH Item current period last period
A EZ BN R ARERE Income from long-term equity

Wezs (FBRIAT-15R3ES)) investments accounted for using

the cost method (“-" for loss)) 1,584,938.43 =

EREZENRRERE Income from long-term equity
Wz (18K BAT - 15R3E %)) investments accounted for using
the equity method (“-" for loss)) -887,637.46 951,518.69
&&F Total 697,300.97 951,518.69
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Related information of cash flow statecf-ﬁ’é

6 HEREREBAER 6.
(1) BHEREXFTEN (1) Supplementary information on cash flow statement
a. BENE EBREASHKALSEE a. Reconciliation of net profit (“-" for net loss) to cash
FHEERE flows from operating activities:
ZHEN  ARKT
Unit: RMB
A i
BrEH Supplementary information Current period Last period
SERE GEEE A58 Net profit (“-" for net loss)
7)) -14,631,543.17 -45,513,146.92
m: BEREES Add: Provision for impairment
of assets 19,490,132.94 10,335,401.36
BEEBEFE Depreciation of fixed assets 20,077,864.05 18,799,206.40
E A BN Amortization of intangible
assets 2,585,713.18 1,954,641.09
REG®EREN Amortization of long-term
deferred expenses 179,149.26 177,065.93
IR AN %5 6 Amortization of deferred
income -16,879,650.68 -242,650.00
REETEEENEL Loss on disposal of fixed
(Ugz AT - 157 4E71)) assets (“-" for profit) -270,087.83 47,857.94
W% E R Financial expenses 14,590,210.85 4,794,936.55
‘EBR WA Investment losses
[-15%3E%1) ("-" for income) -697,300.97 -951,518.69
BREFSHEER Decrease in deferred tax
B (3G AN LA assets (“-" for increase)
[-15%3E%1) -3,099,997.95 -10,130,889.63

TFE AR A (B A0EA
[-15%851)
A REEIAE R
A (38 LA
[-15%3851)
REMENIRE R
12 ORt
PAT - I573851))

REBZHELNHRERE

Decrease in inventories
("-" for increase)
Decrease in operating

receivable (“-" for increase)

Increase in operating payable

("-" for decrease)

Net cash flows from operating

-28,350,339.03

-108,343,143.85

17,109,766.73

-45,817,431.48

31,855,249.05

33,436,282.86

FRR activities -98,239,226.47 -1,254,995.54
RekReFEMFEHEN: b. Net change in cash and cash equivalents:
TEEN  ARET
Unit: RMB
2015%6H30H 2014%12A31H
HEB Item 30 June 2015 31 December 2014
e MEIRHE Cash balance at the end

- IR R EIIERER

Ao RASSEY
BRI (R
BAT- 5 85)

of the period
Less: cash balance at the
beginning of the period

Net increase in cash and
cash equivalents
("-" for decrease)

70,181,515.56

91,613,342.33

173,447,077.77

131,661,936.74

-21,431,826.77

41,785,141.03
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(2) HeMHELFEYHEK

(2) Composition of cash and cash equivalents

THEN  ARKET
Unit: RMB

20156 A30H 2014%12A31H
EHH Item 30 June 2015 31 December 2014
Re Cash 70,181,515.56 91,613,342.33
Hrh: BFES Including: cash on hand 521,357.50 494,497 .43
L ASEESSERLE Bank deposits available
RITIFH on demand 69,660,124.60 91,118,844.90
AIRERF AR AT E Other currencies
HthE¥Ee available for payment

PRAZ LR EEVHRE

on demand 33.46 -

Cash and cash equivalents

at the end of the period 70,181,515.56 91,613,342.33

g NEBRBENReNREEEMTE Note: The above disclosed cash and cash equivalents did not
FAZRHINEYEES REREN include the monetary funds with use restricted and the

REMSHE - investment with very short-term period.

TR FERBEE (XVl) NET CURRENT ASSETS
TEEEN  ARMT
Unit: RMB
K58 VN
The Group The Company

2015%6A30H 2014%12A31H 2015%6A30H 2014%12A31R
HE Item 30 June 2015 31 December 2014 30 June 2015 31 December 2014
MEEE Current assets 1,839,996,295.19  1,753,078,243.58  1,511,388,675.06  1,393,296,221.72

B RBAE

Less: current liabilities

1,500,369,487.42  1,276,706,555.56  1,263,885,765.15  1,015,684,214.55

FRHEE Net current assets 339,626,807.77 476,371,688.02 247,502,909.91 377,612,007.17

Tt BEERRBEE (XVINTOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES
TEEN  ARKT
Unit: RMB

K58 b N

The Group The Company
2015%6A30A 20145128318 2015%6A30A 2014128318
HE Item 30 June 2015 31 December 2014 30 June 2015 31 December 2014
BEMA Total assets 2,916,123,836.46  2,815,121,513.91 2,581,440,044.22 2,445,585,791.78

B RBAE

BEERRDARE

Less: current liabilities

Total assets less current liabilities

1,500,369,487.42  1,276,706,555.56  1,263,885,765.15  1,015,684,214.55

1,415,754,349.04  1,538,414,958.35  1,317,554,279.07  1,429,901,577.23
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TNERFEKEEHBEBAAR (XVI) EXTRAORDINARY GAINS AND LOSSES FOR
CURRENT PERIOD

eHEEN  ARKT

Unit: RMB

&8

EHE Item Amount
ERBEEREF W Net gain of Disposal of non-current assets

(FBERLAT- 158 517R) ("-" for loss) 260,863.51

AR MBSO BTME (EEE
R — 128
ERLTEEZ IR BRI

EBTIER - ZRE

FEf RR KBS HENEF

B Ll 5 TR 2 SN B Al 2 SN

M3 588
FTisti 298
BB RERT B

At

B EREFEFIAREALRHALE

N

Th-FEERERRERKE

AEEZRBREESHEMAO(OABRITESD
AME B W ERREIRAABE IR —
MR ENE REE) (2010F &
AREFEREBRRESTENFEERS

RGBT

FEEWS R

Government grants recognized through
profit or loss (excluding those having close
relationship with the Group’s operation

and enjoyed in fixed amount or quantity
according to uniform national standard)
Gain on debt restructuring of account payable

Effect of income tax
Effect of non-controlling interests

Total

tax.

Net amount of other non-operating income
and expenses besides items above

17,068,405.98
1,324,338.08

-919,167.89
-2,660,165.95
4,050.57

15,078,324.30

Note: The above extraordinary gains and losses items listed before

(IXX) RETURN ON NET ASSETS AND EARNINGS PER SHARE

&)

The return on net assets and earnings per share prepared
in accordance with No.9 of Rules for the Compilation and
Submission of Information Disclosure by Public Offering
Companies issued by China Securities Regulatory Commission

(2010 revised) and regulations of relevant accounting standards
are as follows:

TR E
Earnings per share
I E G F
EERZR(%) EXxSREzZ HESRKE
Weighted
average of
return on net Basic Diluted
Earnings during the assets (%) earnings earnings
WEHFE reporting period (restated) per share per share
BN AR TR IR Net earnings attributable to the
SEFE CHEIBLAT- 157 ordinary shareholders of the
1E75)) Company (“-" for net loss) -1.80 -0.0365 -0.0365
B IEREMHIBEEEBR  Net earnings attributable to
RaEE R IR A EFE the ordinary shareholders
CFEIE AT -1574E%1) of the Company excluding
extraordinary gains or losses
("-" for net loss) -3.23 -0.0649 -0.0649
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 AERLEBNMBHRE

(Z) BEPRNETEEESEERE LD
REEBNMERRXHNERARRA
EH RS

(=) 2015FFFEFRE

(M) E%  SREEABH2015FFF
EHRENEEERE

() EFSHEFSRBUMNCQ0I5FF4F
BHREMEAEZERL

BER: I®
MEEEEREKRAERLD A
B ARXEE  20159F8H27H

representative and financial officer of the Company

(I Original copy of all documents and the drafts of
announcements as disclosed in newspapers as specified
by the CSRC during the reporting period

(1) 2015 Interim Report

(IV) Written confirmation for the 2015 Interim Report by
directors and senior management officers

(V) Written approval by supervisory committee for 2015
Interim Report prepared by the Board

Shenji Group Kunming Machine Tool Co., Ltd.
Wang Xing Chairman
27th August 2015
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